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Dear Sir or Madam: 

Attached is an application by Continental Divide Electric 
Cooperative, Inc., (CDEC) for sale of its electric transmission and 
distribution systems in the State of Arizona. The purpose of this 
application is to obtain the approval of the sale of CDEC’s electric 
transmission and distribution system assets and to transfer its 
certificate of convenience and necessity to the Navajo Tribal Utility 
Authority (NTUA). The respective boards of directors of the two 
companies have approved such purchase and copies of the resolutions 
authorizing the purchase are attached as exhibits to the application. Also, 
the customers will be notified by publication of a public notice in a 
newspaper of area wide circulation, a copy of which is also attached to 
the application. Proof of publication will be provided once publication is 
made. NTUA and CDEC have both executed a purchase and sale agreement 
and a purchase power agreement. These documents are also filed with the 
application. 

The Rural Utilities Service has notified NTUA by its Regional 
Representative that this transaction does not require its approval, only 
notification. 

As shown in the exhibit attached to the application comparing CDEC 
and NTUA rates, NTUA’s rates are generally lower than CDEC’s. 

If there are any questions concerning this filing, please call me at 
my office and we will promptly respond to any inquiries. 

Telephone: (520) 871-2512.W. Highway 264, P.O. Box 2544.Window Rock, AZ 86515-2544eTelefax: (520) 871-2045 
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Sincerely, 

- J 

Louis Denetsosie 

Attachments 

I Telephone: (520) 871-2512.W. Highway 264, P.O. Box 2544*Window Rock, AZ 86515-25440Telefax: (520) 871-2045 





1. 

2 .  

DEFINITIVE AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE 

This DEFINITIVE AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE, dated as of 

I 3 , 2000, (the IfAgreementff), by and between 

CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. , (ifCDEC1f) , a 

corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of New Mexico and a rural electric cooperative, 

( ) , and the NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY, 

("NTUAff) , an organization created by and acting upon the 

authority of the NAVAJO NATION COuhrCIL,  ("Buyerff) , herein 

collectively referred to as IfPartiesf1 and individually as 

I' Party. If 

RECITALS: This Agreement is made with reference to the 

following facts, among others: 

2.1 CDEC is engaged in the transmission and distribution 

of electric power and energy in the states of New 

Mexico and Arizona. 

, 

2.2 NTUA is engaged in the transmission and distribution 

of electric power and energy on the Navajo 

Reservation, which includes the states of New Mexico, 

Arizona, and Utah. 

2.3 CDEC has been operating an electric utility business 

on certain portions of the Navajo Reservation since 

at least May 7, 1964. By terms of the 1964 

Franchise, the Navajo Nation granted CDEC rights-of - 

way for a term of 25 years and upon expiration of the 

Franchise the Navajo Nation had the option to 



2.4 

2.5 

2 . 6  

2 . 7  - a  
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purchase CDEC's lines and facilities on the 

Reservation at such price and terms as shall be 

negotiated. Additionally, CDEC was granted a 

transmission easement to serve a portion of its 

system outside the Reservation. 

The Navajo Nation exercised its option to purchase 

pursuant to the 1964 Franchise, but negotiations for 

the purchase and sale were not completed prior to the 

expiration of the Franchise. 

CDEC and the Navajo Nation entered into the 1992 

Franchise Agreement dated September 24 I 1992 I 

attached as Exhibit A which, among other matters, 

provided for CDEC to continue on an interim basis to 

provide electric service on the Reservation and 

install additional facilities and provide electric 

service on certain additional lands (!!New Lands") 

which were claimed by the Navajo Nation to be a part 

of the Reservation. 

The Navajo Nation notified CDEC by letter dated 

December 28, 1994, attached as Exhibit B, that it was 

exercising its option pursuant to the 1992 Agreement 

to purchase those Additional Facilities constructed 

on New Lands, and referred to in the 1992 Agreement 

as IlDescribed Lands", and that NTUA would act as its 

agent to negotiate and purchase these electrical 

facilities. 

Subiect to the obtaining of corporate, regulatory and 



lender approvals and agreements, CDEC desires to sell 

those electrical facilities located on Described 

Lands as defined in the 1992 Agreement and all 

remaining facilities in Arizona and certain other 

facilities located in and around Standing Rock, New 

Mexico, and as more fully described in Exhibit C. 

CDEC is also willing to sell to NTUA electrical power 

and energy. 

NTUA desires to purchase the electrical facilities as 

described in Exhibit C and to purchase electric power 

and energy from CDEC for its Arizona operations area 

currently owned by CDEC. 

3. AGREEMENT: The Parties agree as follows: 

4. DESCRIPTION OF ELECTRIC FACILITIES TO BE "SFERRED: 

Seller will assign, transfer, convey and deliver to Buyer, 

upon the terms and subject to the conditions stated herein, 

the electric facilities and right-of-way easements 

described in Exhibit C and within the areas shown on the 
maps Exhibits D and E. The electric facilities and 

easements to be transferred, as described in Exhibit C, are 

hereinafter referred to as the "Electric System. 1' The 

purchase will include all of CDEC's facilities in the State 

of Arizona, and approximately 2,400 feet of the 69 kV line 

in New Mexico to the Lupton Switch, and all of the 

electrical facilities in the area known as Standing Rock, 

New Mexico, and the three phase line, operated as single 

phase, which runs north and parallel to the existing Navajo 

2 . 8  

I 

I 
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Nation Reservation Boundary. 

5. PURCHASE PRICE: The purchase price for the Electric System 

to be sold to Buyer shall be $2,300,000. If there are any 

installations or replacements that are in progress but are 

not complete as of the Closing Date, such costs will be 

billed to NTUA upon completion of the work and payment will 

be made after review and acceptance of work. In order to 

keep this amount to a minimum, CDEC and NTUA will 

coordinate these activities and attempt to schedule a l l  

work to be completed before the Closing Date, or defer such 

construction until after the Closing Date, if possible. 

NTUA will cause to be constructed a distribution line 

connecting the terminous of CDEC's distribution line in 

Section 23, Range 13W, Township 19N, thence running in an 

east-southeast direction for approximately 1.75 miles to 

CDEC's distribution line which currently terminates in 

Section 19, Range 13S, Township 19N. NTUA will obtain all 

necessary permits, easements and rights-of-way necessary to 

construct the distribution line and transfer such documents 

along with title to the electric facilities at the time of 

closing. The line will be constructed in accordance with 

Rural Utilities Services' (RUS) standards. 

6 .  PURCHASE OF CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE: Seller shall 

furnish Buyer all customer billing information necessary to 

determine the amount of accounts receivable to be 

purchased. For the purpose of this Definitive Agreement, 

all accounts that are over ninety ( 9 0 )  days past due shall 

4 
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be deemed to be uncollectible and such amounts shall be 

deducted from the amount paid by Buyer for Seller's 

electric sales accounts receivable. After the Closing 

Date, Buyer will be responsible for collecting all accounts 

receivable purchased and Seller shall be responsible for 

collecting from all accounts deemed uncollectible. The 

Parties agree to cooperate to the extent reasonably 

necessary to correct previous billing errors and make 

adjustments as necessary. 

7. TAXES AND OTHER ASSESSMENTS: Buyer will be responsible for 

payment of privilege taxes, if applicable, arising as a 

result of this transaction and Seller shall be responsible 

for its pro rata share (to the date of closing) of any 

state and local real and personal property taxes, New 

Mexico PuSlic Regulation Commission and Arizona 

Corporation Cornmission assessments, any city or county 

franchise taxes, or any other fees, assessments, or taxes 

due or payable prior to the Closing Date, except for any 

taxes or fees claimed to be payable to the Navajo Nation 

which have not been collected through electric rates from 

the Seller's customers prior to the Closing Date, which 

tribal taxes and fees shall be the responsibility of Buyer 

I 
I 

even through arising prior to the Closing Date. 

8. CLOSING DATE: The closing of the sale of the Electric 

System shall take place on the first regular business day 

of the month following approval of all regulatory 

authorities, RUS, and the National Rural Utilities 

5 



Cooperative Finance Corporation (CFC) . The closing shall be 
at a date, place, and time as is mutually agreeable to the 

Parties. The date of closing as determined herein shall be 

referred to as the "Closing Date." 

8.1 Conditions of Closing 

8.1.1 Wheeling Agreement. Before the Closing Date, 

CDEC and NTUA will have entered into a (a) 

purchase power agreement whereby CDEC will sell 

and NTUA will purchase certain power and energy 

and (b) a wheeling agreement whereby NTUA 

agrees to wheel power for CDEC through the 

system NTUA has purchased to CDEC' s 

distribution facilities in Section 23, Range 

13W, Township 19N, to deliver power to CDEC's 

customers until such time as construction of 

the distribution line in the area is completed 

by NTUA. The agreements will contain terms and 

provisions which are mutually acceptable to the 

parties. 

8.1.2 Certificate from Office of Navajo Tax 

Commission. At the time of Closing, NTUA will, 

in lieu of payment for tribal taxes and fees by 

Buyer pursuant to Sections 7 and 10.1, deliver 

a certificate from the Office of Navajo Tax 

Commission that no Navajo Nation taxes are due 

from or will be assessed against CDEC by virtue 

of its past operation and ownership of the 

6 



Electric System being transferred. 

8.1.3 Regulatory and Lender Approval. The Arizona 

Corporation Commission and New Mexico Public 

Regulation Commission will have entered final, 

non-appealable orders authorizing the sale of 

the Electric System to NTUA and abandoning 

service in form and substance agreeable to the 

parties and RUS and CFC will have given their 

approval and executed and delivered releases 

of mortgage liens to the assets to be conveyed. 

9. DOCUMENTS TO BE DELIVERED BY SELLER: Seller shall deliver 

the following to Buyer on the Closing Date: 

9.1 Deeds, Bills of Sale, and Assignments, if applicable. 

Seller will provide special warranty deeds, bills of 

sale, assignments of rights-of-way, releases of 

mortgages and any encumbrances, and other good and 

sufficient instruments of transfer, conveyance, and 

assignment as shall be effective to vest in Buyer 

title to the Electric System as described in Exhibit 

C. Title to real property conveyed to Buyer shall be 

free and clear of all liens and encumbrances except 

Permitted Encumbrances as set forth in Seller's 

mortgage created by and during the term of the 

Seller's ownership. Personal property and fixtures 

shall only have warranties of title and no other 

warranties except as consistent with Section 18.8. 

9.2. An opinion of counsel for Seller, dated on the 

7 



Closing Date, stating that: 

9.2.1 The execution and delivery of this Agreement by 

Seller and the consummation of the transactions 

set forth herein have been duly authorized by 

the Board of Trustees of Seller and this 

Agreement has been duly executed and delivered 

by Seller and constitutes the valid and binding 

obligation of Seller, enforceable against the 

Seller, in accordance with their respective 

terms, provided, however, that enforceability 

may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, or 

other similar laws of general application 

relating to or affecting the enforcement of 

creditors’ rights and that the enforcement 

thereof may be limited by laws with respect to 

or affecting the remedies provided for in said 

Agreement or instrument. 

9.2.2 Necessary regulatory, RUS and CFC approvals 

have been obtained; and 

9.2.3. There is no litigation threatened relating to 

the acquisition of the Electric System which 

may materially or adversely affect provisions 

of this Agreement prior to the Closing Date. 

9 . 3  The release of the Electric System from any lien with 

the RUS and CFC has been obtained. 

9.4 Prior to the Closing Date, Seller shall furnish Buyer 

with a list of all affected customers served by the 



9 . 5  

Electric System to be purchased by Buyer. 

Representatives of Seller and Buyer will meet prior 

to the Closing Date to establish the level of 

information available and to effectuate the transfer 

of information. In the event this Agreement is 

terminated and Buyer does not obtain ownership of the 

Electric System, Buyer shall return the customer 

lists, records, and documents provided by Seller. 

A certificate, dated on the Closing Date, stating 

that each of the representations and warranties 

stated in Section 18 hereof are, to the Seller's 

knowledge, true and correct in all material respects 

and that Seller has performed and complied in all 

material respects with all the terms, covenants, 

agreements, and conditions required by this Agreement 

to be performed or complied with by it prior to or at 

the Closing Date. 

10. DOCUMENTS TO BE DELIVERED BY BUYER: On the Closing Date 

Buyer 

10.1 

shall deliver the following to Seller: 

The purchase price for the Electric System of 

$2,300,000, plus an amount equal to the sum of a l l  

possessory interest tax, business activities tax, and 

other tribal fees and charges claimed by the Navajo 

Nation to be due and payable by reason of the 

Electric System and its use by CDEC to the extent not 

abated, amortized, or credited, shall be paid by 

Buyer to Seller by certified or official bank check 

9 
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10.2 

10.3 

or wire transfer, payable in Federal Funds to the 

order of Seller. 

Buyer agrees to pay, perform, and discharge all 

liabilities and obligations of Seller with regard to 

refundable advances, if any, relating to the Electric 

System purchased by Buyer, exclusive of refundable 

customer deposits. 

An opinion of counsel for Buyer and the Navajo 

Nation, dated as of the 

10.3.1 

Closing Date, stating that: 

the execution and delivery of this Agreement 

by Buyer and the consummation of the 

transactions set forth herein have been duly 

authorized by the Buyer's Management Board and 

has been duly executed and delivered by Buyer, 

enforceable against the Buyer, in accordance 

with their respective terms, provided, however, 

that enforceability may be limited by 

bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar laws 

of general application relating to or affecting 

the enforcement of creditors' rights and that 

the enforcement thereof may be limited by laws 

with respect to or affecting the remedies 

provided for in said Agreement or instrument, 

and 

10.3.2 there is no litigation threatened relating to 

the acquisition of the Electric System other 

than that already disclosed prior to the 

10 



l -  

Closing Date. 

10.4 A certificate, dated the Closing Date, from Buyer to 

the effect that to the best of its knowledge each of 

the representations and warranties of Buyer contained 

in Section 19 are true and correct in all material 

respects and that Buyer has performed and complied in 

all material respects with all the terms, covenants, 

agreements, and conditions required by this Agreement 

to be performed or complied with prior to or at the 

Closing Date. 

11. RISK OF LOSS: In the event that the Electric System is 

damaged or suffers a casualty prior to the Closing Date, 

Seller shall use such efforts as it would use if Seller 

continued to own and operate the Electric System to repair 

or replace the damaged portion of the Electric System. In 

the event that such damage cannot be repaired or replaced 

prior to the Closing Date, the Closing Date shall take 

place so long as the Seller continues in good faith to 

repair or replace the damaged facilities. In the event 

such damage to the Electric System exceeds ten percent 

(10%) of the purchase price of either system established in 

Exhibit C, the Buyer shall have the option of terminating 

this Agreement at any time within ten (10) calendar days of 

receipt from Seller of notice of such damage 

that such damage exceeds ten percent (10%) of 

price of either electric system. 

12. APPROVAL OF LEGAL MATTERS BY BUYER'S COUNSEL 

and the fact 

the purchase 

All legal 



matters in connection with the matters herein provided for 

o r  the transactions contemplated hereby and all papers and 

documents in connection therewith shall be reasonably 

satisfactory in form and substance to counsel for Buyer and 

there shall have been furnished to such counsel such 

corporate and other records and information as counsel for 

Buyer may reasonably have requested f o r  such purpose. 

13. APPROVAL OF LEGAL MATTERS BY SELLER'S COUNSEL: All legal 

matters in connection with the matters herein provided for 

or the transactions contemplated hereby and all papers and 

documents in connection therewith shall be reasonably 

satisfactory in form and substance to counsel for Seller 

and there shall have been furnished to such counsel such 

records and information as counsel for Seller may 

reasonably have requested for such purpose. 

EXISTING FRANCHISE: After the Closing Date, Buyer shall 

assume a l l  of Seller's obligations to supply electricity to 

those customers served by Seller pursuant to the franchise. 

Buyer shall hold Seller harmless from all claims made by 

such customers for electric service after the Closing Date. 

15. MEMBERSHIP FEES: CUSTOMER DEPOSITS; CAPITAL CREDITS: Buyer 

shall have no liability for membership fees, customer 

deposits, or capital credits owing to Seller's customers. 

Seller's customers who have paid a membership fee shall be 

entitled to a refund of such fee in accordance with 

Seller's Rules and Bylaws subject to amounts owed by CDEC. 

Customers of Seller may, after termination of service by 

14. 
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16. 

17. 

Seller, become entitled to refund of Capital Credits from 

Seller, in accordance with the Bylaws and Rules of Seller 

subject to amounts owed to CDEC. Seller shall make such 

patronage capital distributions directly to such customers, 

in accordance with its Bylaws and Rules subject to amounts 

owed to CDEC. Buyers shall have no responsibilities or 

rights with regard to such refunds, except as Buyer 

themselves were customers of Seller. 

REGULATORY AUTHORITIES: The covenants of the parties 

pursuant to Sections 4, 5 and 6 are subject to obtaining 

the consent and authorizations of regulatory authorities 

and lenders referred to in Section 8.1.3. 

RESOLUTION OF OTHER CLAIMS: Seller and Buyer acknowledge 

that this Agreement resolves all outstanding claims and 

issues between the parties, including without limitation, 

franchise performance and operation, damages f o r  severance, 

claims arising out of the sale and attempts to negotiate 

the sale, and claims arising out of relationships, 

communications or contacts with third parties in connection 

with negotiation and fulfillment of the sale. 

Seller 

represents and warrants to Buyer, subject to the conditions 

precedent, consents and approvals which are enumerated as 

18. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY SELLER: 

follows: 

18.1 Required Consents and Approvals. Other than those 

disclosed or listed in this Agreement, or otherwise 

contemplated herein, no notice, consent, approval, 



waiver, or other action of any kind is required to be 

obtained by Seller by virtue of the execution hereof 

by Seller or in connection with the consummation of 

any of the transactions contemplated herein. Buyer 

is aware of the requirement that Seller's members may 

have to approve the sale by a 2/3 vote. The Parties 

are also aware that assignment of rights-of-way 

across tribal trust or allotted Indian lands may 

require the consent of Navajo Nation, Indian 

allottees and the United States government. 

18.2 Authority Relative to this Agreement. Subject to the 

enumerated consents and approvals , Seller has the 

corporate power and authority to enter into this 

Agreement, to convey the Electric System to Buyer, 

and to carry out its duties and obligations hereunder 

and the execution and delivery of this Agreement does 

not, and the consummation of the transactions 

contemplated hereby will not, constitute a violation 

of or default under any provisions of the Articles of 

Incorporation or Bylaws of Seller or any mortgage, 

lien, lease , agreement, instrument , order , 

arbitration award, judgment or decree to which Seller 

is a party or by which it or its property is bound or 

affected. The execution and delivery of this 

Agreement by Seller and the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated has been duly authorized by 

Seller's Board of Trustees and no other corporate 
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proceedings on the part of Seller are necessary to 

authorize this Agreement and the transactions 

contemplated herein. 
18.3 No Litigation. No litigation, proceeding or 

controversy is pending against Seller, or to its 

knowledge threatened, before any court or any 

governmental agency which would have a material 
adverse effect upon : (a) any license, grant, 

assignment, franchise, right-of-way, easement or 

right reasonably necessary for the operation of the 

Electric System; or (b) the ability of Seller to 

perform its obligations under this Agreement. No 

claim or action is pending, or to the best of 

Seller's knowledge, threatened against Seller arising 

out of Seller's ownership or operation of the 

Electric System. 

18.4 Operating Rights. Seller holds, and has at all times 

held, all licenses, certificates, permits, franchises 

and rights from appropriate federal, state or other 

public authorities reasonably necessary to operate 

the Electric System described in Exhibit C and for 

the business it conducts and for the services it 

provides. 

18.5 Rights from Private Parties. Seller has not received 

notice from any private Or nongovernmental party that 

it has violated or has failed to obtain any license, 

grant, assignment, right-of-way, easement or right 

15 



reasonably necessary for the business it conducts and 

the services it provides, nor does Seller have actual 

notice of any such violation or failure. 

18.6 Personal Property. Seller has, and at all times has 

had, good and marketable title to all personal 

property of the Electric System. There are no liens 

and encumbrances, other than the mortgages, with 

respect to such personal property. With respect to 

all personal property comprising a part of the 

Electric System, Seller has not received notice from 

any party claiming title to any part of all of such 

personal property or claiming a lien or other 

interest adverse to Seller in such personal property, 

nor does Seller have actual notice of any such claim, 

lien or interest, other than the mortgages. 

18.7 No Violations of Law. The participation of Seller in 

this Agreement does not cause a violation of any 

federal, state or local law, statute, rule, 

regulation or ordinance related to or in any way 

connected with matters contained in this Agreement. 

18.8 CONDITION OF PROPERTY. ALL ASSETS ARE SOLD "AS IS" 

WITHOUT REPRESENTATION AS TO QUALITY, FUNCTIONALITY, 

AND WORKABILITY. SELLER MAKES NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS 

OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR 

A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY OF THE ASSETS. CDEC will 

accept for storage and disposal from NTUA any 

transformers found to contain PCB's. Seller shall 

16 



deliver copies of its inventory and records 

pertaining to transformers to Buyer. Such records 

shall disclose information regarding PCB transformers 

to the extent such information is available. 

19. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY BWERS: Buyer represents 

and warrants to Seller, subject to the conditions 

precedent, consents and approvals which are enumerated as 

follows: 

19.1 Required Consents and Approvals. Other than as set 

forth herein and by this reference made a part 

hereof, no notice, consent, approval, waiver, or 

other action of any kind is required to be obtained 

by Buyer by virtue of the execution hereof by Buyer 

or in connection with the consummation of any of the 

transactions contemplated herein. 

19.2 Authority Relative to this Agreement. Buyer has the 

power and authority to enter into this Agreement and 

to carry out its duties and obligations hereunder. 

The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the 

consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby 

have been duly authorized by the governing body of 

Buyer, and no other proceedings on the part of Buyer 

are necessary to authorize this Agreement and the 

transactions contemplated herein, including formal 

action from the Navajo Nation. Neither the execution 

and delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation 

of the transactions contemplated hereby will 

17 
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19.3 

19.4 

Constitute a violation of or default under any of the 

tribal provisions under which NTUA is organized or by 

which it is governed or any mortgage, lien, lease, 

agreement, instrument, order, arbitration award, 

judgment or decree to which Buyer is a party or by 

which it or its property is bound or affected. 

No Litigation. No litigation, proceeding or 

controversy is pending against Buyer, or to its 

knowledge threatened, before any court or any 

governmental agency which would have a material 

adverse effect upon the ability of Buyer to perform 

its obligations under this Agreement or conduct the 

operations of the Electric System. 

No Violations of Law. The participation of Buyer in 

this Agreement does not cause a violation of any 

federal, state, or local law, statute, rule, 

regulation, or ordinance related to or in any way 

connected with matters contained in this Agreement. 

2 0 .  COVENANTS OF SELLER PENDING THE CLOSING DATE: Pending the 

Closing, except as otherwise consented to by Buyer, Seller 

covenants that: 

20.1 Maintenance and Improvements. Seller will use its 

best efforts to maintain the Electric System in the 

same condition as at the date hereof, reasonable wear 

from normal usage excepted, and will cause all 

necessary maintenance and additions, betterments, 

improvements or extensions to the Electric System 

18 



l -  

prior to the Closing Date hereof to be made in a 

reasonable and workmanlike manner in accordance with 

prudent utility practice. 

20.2 Access to Information. Seller will give 

representatives of Buyer reasonable access in such 

manner as does not interfere with the normal 

operation of Seller's electric utility business, 

during normal business hours and upon reasonable 

notice, to all of the assets, properties, books, 

records and agreements of Seller relating to the 

Electric System. Buyer shall pay Seller, as incurred 

by Seller and billed to Buyer, the cost of: (a) in- 

house labor expense plus overhead (b) outside 

consulting and legal fees, expenses and taxes, 

provided that Buyer shall not be responsible for more 

than $30,000 of outside consulting and legal costs 

without Buyer's consent. Provided, further, that if 

Buyer does not consent, then Seller has no obligation 

to incur additional expenses. Buyer agrees to 

provide necessary legal representation assisting 

Seller before the state regulatory commissions. 

20.3 Secure Necessary Consents, Etc. Seller will use 

reasonable efforts to obtain all consents, approvals 

and agreements required to carry out the transactions 

contemplated by this Agreement. In the event Seller 

cannot reasonably obtain a required consent, approval 

or agreement by a designated Closing Date, despite 
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good faith efforts to do SO, Seller may by notice 

given in advance of that Closing Date, extend that 

Closing Date if delay may reasonably be expected to 

result in obtaining the required consent, approvals 

or agreements or, if not, terminate this Agreement, 

in which event neither Party shall have any liability 

to the other Party. Unless mutually agreed to, there 

shall be no extension beyond September 24, 2000. 

2 1 .  COVENANTS OF BUYER PENDING THE CLOSING DATE: Pending the 

Closing Date, except as otherwise consented to by Seller, 

Buyer covenants that: 

21.0 Furnishing of Information. Buyer shall furnish to 

Seller all of the information concerning Buyer which 

may be reasonably required for inclusion in any 

application to any governmental authority relating to 

transactions contemplated hereby. 

21.1 Secure Necessary Consents, Etc. Buyer shall use its 

best effort to obtain all consents, approvals, and 

agreements required to carry out the transactions 

contemplated by this Agreement. In the event Buyer 

cannot reasonably obtain a required consent, approval 

or agreement by a designated Closing Date, despite 

good faith efforts to do SO, Buyer may by notice 

given in advance of the Closing Date extend the 

Closing Date if delay may reasonably be expected to 

result in obtaining the required consent, approvals 

or agreements or, if not, terminate this Agreement, 

20 
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in which event neither party shall have any liability ' 

to the other Party. Unless mutually agreed upon by 

the Parties, there shall be no extension beyond 

September 24 ,  2000, 

TERMINATION: This Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

2 2 . 1  

2 2 . 2  

Seller's Right to Terminate. Seller may terminate 

this Agreement by notice given to Buyer in writing if 

Seller is entitled to and does elect to terminate in 

accordance with Section 20.3  or if any final order or 

decision is rendered after a hearing by a court or 

agency having jurisdiction that materially impedes or 

prevents Seller or Buyer from closing the sale of the 

Electric System. 

Buyer's Right to Terminate. Buyer may terminate its 

obligations under this Agreement by notice given to 

Seller in writing if Buyer is entitled to and does 

elect to terminate in accordance with Section 2 1 . 2  or 

if any order or decision is rendered, after a 

hearing, by a court or agency having jurisdiction 

that materially impedes or prevents Seller or Buyer 

from closing this sale of the Electric System. 

2 3 .  INDEMNIFICATION: 

2 3 . 1  Seller will indemnify and hold Buyer harmless from 

and against any and all loss that may occur as a 

result of claims, demands, suits, actions, all taxes, 

legal or administrative proceedings, damages, 

liabilities, interest or attorney's fees, costs and 
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expenses, of whatsoever kind or nature, arising from 

or incurred in connection with or incidental to the 

operation of the Electric System prior to the Closing 

Date. Seller's indemnification shall extend to all 

liability, loss or damage, whether known or unknown, 

caused by, arising from, or incurred in connection 

with the operation of the Electric System and/or out 

of the negligence or other conduct of Seller's 

officers , employees , or agents , whether or not such 

negligence or conduct is incidentally or directly 

related to the operation of the Electric System prior 

to the Closing Date, except as specifically assumed 

by Buyer and set forth herein (including but not 

limited to any claim for past due taxes by the Office 

of Navajo Tax Commission). 

Buyer will indemnify and hold Seller, its trustees, 

officers, employees, and its agents, harmless from 

and or against any and all loss that may occur as a 

result of claims, demands, suits, actions, legal or 

administrative proceedings, damages, liabilities, 

interest or attorney's fees, costs and expenses, of 

whatsoever kind or nature, arising from or incurred 

in connection with or incidental to the operation of 

the Electric System on and after the Closing Date. 

Buyer's indemnification shall extend to all 

liability, l o s s  or damage, whether known or unknown, 

caused by, arising from, or incurred in connection 

22 



with any of the foregoing and/or out of the 

negligence or other conduct of Buyer's officers, 

employees, or agents, whether or not such negligence 

or conduct is incidentally or directly related to any 

of the foregoing, except as specifically assumed by 

Seller and set forth herein. Such indemnification 

shall apply even if Buyer can claim immunity from 

suit. 

23.3 In case any action shall be brought against an 

indemnified Party, such indemnified Party shall 

promptly notify the indemnifying Party in writing, 

and the indemnifying Party shall assume the defense 

thereof, including the employment of counsel and 

payment of all fees and expenses. The indemnified 

Party shall have the right to employ separate counsel 

in any such action and participate in the defense 

thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel 

shall be at the expense of such indemnified Party 

unless (i) the employment of such counsel has been 

specifically authorized in writing by the 

indemnifying Party, (ii) the indemnifying Party has 

failed to assume the defense and employ counsel or 

(iii) the named Parties to any such action (including 

any impleaded Parties) include both the indemnified 

Party and the indemnifying Party and the indemnified 

Party shall have been advised by such counsel that 

there may be one or more legal defenses available to 
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it which are different from or additional to those 

available to the indemnifying Party (in which case 

the indemnifying Party shall not have the right to 

assume the defense of such action on behalf of such 

indemnified Party). The indemnifying Party shall not 

be liable for any settlement of any such action 

effected without its written consent, but if settled 

with the written consent of the indemnifying Party or 

if there be a final judgment for the plaintiff in any 

such action, the indemnifying Party agrees to 

indemnify and hold harmless the indemnified Party 

from and against any loss or liability by reason of 

such settlement or judgment. 

2 3 . 4  Buyer and Seller each agree that, should any 

potentially indemnifiable event occur, they will 

first seek to recover from insurance proceeds to the 

extent possible and then, and only then, seek 

indemnification under the provisions of this Section. 

To this end, they each waive any right to 

indemnification hereunder to the extent that an 

otherwise indemnifiable loss is recovered from 

insurance proceeds. 

2 4 .  SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES: The 

representations and warranties of Seller and Buyer made in 

this Agreement and in the documents delivered pursuant 

hereto shall survive the execution and delivery of this 

Agreement and the consummation of the transaction 
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l -  contemplated hereby. 

2 5 .  MISCELLANEOUS: 

26.1 Expenses; Closing Costs. Buyer shall be responsible 

for all sales and transfer taxes and recording fees, 

if any, incurred in connection with the respective 

sales, assignments, transfers, deliveries and 

conveyances to it pursuant to this Agreement. Except 

as identified in Section 20.2 herein, all other 

expenses incurred by or on behalf of the Parties 

hereto in connection with the authorization, 

preparation, execution and consummation of this 

Agreement, including, without limitation, all fees 

and expense of agents, representatives, legal 

counsel, consultants, and accountants employed by the 

Parties hereto, shall be borne solely by the Party 

who shall have incurred the same. 

2 5 . 2  Cooperation. The Parties hereto agree to cooperate 

in making effective the transactions contemplated 

hereby, and each of them will, at the request of the 

other, join in taking any action which, though not 

specified herein, may be reasonably required to be 

taken in order to consummate the transactions 

contemplated hereby. 

2 5 . 3  Further Assurances. From time to time after the 

Closing Date, Seller will execute such additional 

instruments of assignment and conveyance and other 

documents and take such other actions, other than as 
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set forth in this Agreement, as may be necessary or 

appropriate to carry out the intent of this Agreement 

and to vest title to the Electric System. 

2 5 . 4  Notices. Any and all notices herein provided for or 

relating to the transactions herein provided for 

shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been 

sufficiently given to Seller if mailed, postage 

prepaid, certified or registered mail , addressed: 

Continental Divide Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
General Manager 
Post Office Box 1 0 8 7  
Grants, NM 87020 

and to Buyer if mailed, postage prepaid, by certified 

or registered mail, addressed: 

Navajo Tribal Utility Authority 
General Manager 
Post Office Box 1 7 0  
Ft. Defiance, AZ 86504 

2 5 . 5  Section Headings. Section and subsection headings in 

this Agreement are for convenience only and are not 

to be construed as a part hereof or in any way 

limiting or amplifying the provisions hereof. 

2 5 . 6  Confidentiality. Prior to the Closing Date, and in 

the event of termination of this Agreement, Seller 

and Buyer will each use its best efforts to have a l l  

confidential information obtained hereunder kept 

confidential, to the extent permitted by law. 

25.7 Entire Agreement; Modification. This Agreement 

constitutes and contains the entire agreement of the 
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Parties hereto and includes matters addressed in the 

Letter of Intent and existing Franchise Agreements 

and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, 

correspondence, understandings, and agreements 

between the Parties respecting the subject matter 

hereof and may not be modified, altered, or changed 

in any manner whatsoever except by written agreement 

between the Parties hereto. 

25.8 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in 

several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 

an original, but all of which together shall 

constitute one and the same instrument. 

25.9 Successors. This Agreement shall inure to the 

benefit of and be binding upon the successors of any 

Party hereto, but no right or liability or obligation 

arising hereunder may be assigned or transferred by 

any Party except by operation of law. 

25.10 Legal Action. Any legal action brought to enforce 

the provisions of this Agreement or for any breach 

thereof shall be instituted and maintained in a New 

Mexico State or Federal District Court. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement 

to be executed as of the day of 

, 2 0 0 0 .  

TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 

General Manager 
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CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

BY 
3 Pres’iaent :/ Board of Trustees 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 

) ss 
County of Apache ) 

)ck 
The fo going Agreement was ac,aowledged before me this& day 
of -q&J , 2000 by Randall N. Medicine Bear, General 
Manager of the Navajo Tribal Utility Authority, an Enterprise 
created by and acting upon the authority of the Navajo Nation 
Council. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 
k 6  - 2003 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO 1 
1 ss 

COUNTY OF ) 

The foregoing Agreement was ac,\nowledgec before me this /3&-  
\ 

day of a& , 2000 by I 

President, 1 Board of Trustees, o de Electric 
Cooperative, Inc., a New Mexico corporation, on behalf of the 
corporation. 

Notary Publice 

My Commission Expires: 

D 9-  // ’200 / 
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EXHIBIT A 

AGREEiMENT 
"H IS  AGREEMENT is entered into this a M d a y  of- 1992, by and 

("CDEC"), a New Mexico elecrric cooperative corporation, and the NAVAJO 

NATION (l'NATIONI'), an American Indian Tribe reco,&ed by the United States. 

Hereinafter CDEC and the NATION may be Jointly referred to as the ''Parties" and 

s i n d a r l y  - as a "Party". 

WITNFSSETH: 

WHEREAS, CDEC achowledges the power of the Navajo Narion Council 

and the delegates - to enact and promulgate Iaws, resolutions, ordhances and 

reguiations, inciuding the power to tax, within the Navajo Reservarion 

("Res e mar i on ") ; 

%EAXE.4S, the NATION g a m e d  CDEC a grant of righi-of-way " and 

franchise ("1964 Franchise") on May 7,  1964, for a term of 25 yeas  in the areas 

descr;,bed ihe:reinn? which also provided that the NATION had the option upon 

expimion io purchase CDEC's lines and facilities within the described u e a s  at such 

price and terns  as shall be negoriared - ar the rime of such sale, and thar thereupon 

the NATION will I grant CDEC an easement for a transmission line or trunk-feeder 

across ;he Reservation in the Lupton-Houch-Sanders area to seme that parr of 

CDEC's system i,ving wesf and south of the Reservation ('Transmission Easenent"); 

==4s, the NATION, through its nominee Navajo Tniial Utfity 

Authoriv ("iN'ITJA'') has exercised the option pUrSUant to the 1964 Franchise but the 

Panies have not completed negotiations for the purchase price of CDEC's lines and 

facilities, creating a gap between the expirarion of the 1964 Franchise and NTUA's 

senice to the areas included within the 1964 Francme;  

WHEREAS, CDEC has been providing service to other areas which are or 

may be claimed by the NATION to be part of the Reservation, which lands, together 



with those described in the 1964 Franchise, are described in Exhibit"A" hereto, 

which Exhl"Dit "A" is incorporated herein by reference (sometimes, the "Described 

v Lands"); 

WHEREAS, the NATION, through N"UA or other nominee of the 

NATION (whether " U A  or another nominee, still "N?ZTA"), desires the option to 

purchase CDEC's lines and facilities upon Described Lands in addition to those incs 

and facilities already opted to be purchased pursuant to the 1964 Franchise 

("Additional Lines and Facilities") but " U A  is not currently ready to act. and the 

Panies desire that the purchase of ail of the lines and facrlities be coordinated as to 

timing and method of determining the purchase prices: and 

WHERE.=, CDEC is willing Y to continue to provide electric senice. incluahg 

new sen ic s !  during the period p i o r  to NWA's purchase of C3EC.s h e s  and 

facdities. thus providing a bridge for the SATION. t h o u @  h l Z A  a s s u d g  the 

role as the provider of electric senice, and the XATIOX is v d i i i g  10 prmice a 

temporary g a n t  of rieht-of-way Y and franchise for CDEC's currenf and h t u x  lines 

and facilities upon the.Desmied Lands (the "System"), all upon the t e r n s  and 

conditions hereinbelow set forth. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of [he 

Parries hereto and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

adequacy of whrch is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. The NATION hereby (a) grants to CDEC, its successors and assigns, 

the temporary n@t, privilege and franchise to erect, constmc4 extend, locate, 

relocate, repair, maintain and operate the System, including any improvements, 

replacements, betterments and additions thereto, which System consists of, by way of 

example and not limitation, poles, lines, cables, wires, insulators, transformers, arms, 

braces, anchors, and other associated structures and appurtenances installed thereon 

or therewith, in, under or upon the areas of the Reservation descnied in Exhibit "A', 



as reasonably necessary or convenient for CDEC to provide electric service to such 

areas, and @) consents to the grant of the permanent right, privilege and franchise to 

erect, Comtmct, extend, locate, re loate ,  repair, maintain and operate electric 

transmission or trunk-feeder lines and related facilities, including any imnrovements, 

replacements, betterments and additions thereto, upon and within the Transmission 

Easement, subject in the case of new facilities to paragraph 12 below and in the case 

of existing facilities to paragraph 10 below. Provided, however, that the giantkg of 

the Transmission Easement shall be-a- condirion precedenr to the consummation of 

any sale of the System to the Nation, pursuant to either paragraph 2 or pursuant to 

the 1964 Franchise and paragraph 3. 

2. This Agreement shall be deemed efiecuve as of :he dare of execrrrion 
or the approvaI by both CDEC and the NATION, whchever occurs la.&&. 7 -  and shall 

be for a term or' five (5) years. At the end of the franchise, all rights I and privileges - 
granted hereby (other than with respec: to the Transmission Easement: shall cease 

unless t h s  Agxement is renewed or re-issued upon such terms and conditions as are 

then mutually agreeable to the Parties. The NATION may, at its e!ec:ion exercisable 

by written notice to CDEC &livered no later than six (6) months prior to the 

expiration, purchase the Additional Lines and Facilities. Lf the NATION elects to 

purchase, the purchase price therefor WilI be that doliar amount equal to the oriW@nal 

cost of the Additional Lines and Facilities to be purchased, less the applicable 

depreciation reserve, exclusive of capital costs contributed by the NATION for the 

Additional Lines and Facilities to be purchased, as set forth in the books and records 

of CDEC maintained in accordance with the requirements of the Rural 

Electrification Administration (the "REA"). If the Parties are unable to resolve the 

purchase price and/or reach any implementing or operating agreements necessary to 

consummate the sale, these matters will be determined pursuant to arbitration. The 

purchase shall be subject to the approval of the Administrator of the REA and may 



I -  be subject to authorization by the Regulatory Authority (defined below) as may be 

required by law applicabk to CDEC and other then applicable requirements of law. 

Obtaining of CDEC’s lenders’ approvais WilI be necessary for the reiease of liens With 

respect to the Additional Lines and Facilities to be purchased. If the NATION 

a p e s  to pay interest at a rate approved by CDEC and payment of the purchase 

price plus interest is secured in a manner acceptable to CDEC. the Parries may 

arrange for possession prior to consummation of the purchase by pa>nent  of the 

purchase price. If the NATION does not elect to purchase the Aaciticnal b e s  and 

Faciliries. CDEC shall have an option period of one (1) year folioutig ex?iration to 

remove rhz same. The Parries shall reasonably cooperate SO that a q ?  pcrchase under 

paiagraFn? will be coordinated with the consummarion of t k  purchse under 

paragapb 1. 

3. CDEC shall, at the written request of the N X T I O S  enter into 

negotiaricns uith a blew, if mutually acceptabie terms and conaitims are reached. to 

fui?lishing :he NATION or its nominee with wholesale power i i ld  e n c i s .  Any 

resultkg zgecment shall be subject to any then required lenders‘ aild!cr reguiatory 

approvds 2nd any then applicable requirements of law. 

4. Tne purchase price for the lines and facilities to be acquired by the 

NXTIOS ;crsuant to its exercise of the option provided in the 19& Franchise will 

be the doUar amount equal to the ori,@al cost of such lines and facZities, less the 

apDlicabie .A depreciation reserve, exclusive of capital costs contibuted by the 

NATION for such lines and facilities, as set forth in the books and records of CDEC 

maintained in accordance with REA requirements. If the purchase price and/or 

necessary implementing or operating agreements cannot be agreed to by the time 

that this I992 franchise should expire, these matters d be determined pursuant to 

arbitration. The purchase will be subject to the same requirements for and the same 
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opportunity to have possession prior to consummation as provided for the purchase 

of Additional Lines and Facilities if the option is exercised under paragraph 2 above. 

5. While this 1992 franchise is in force, CDEC shall furnish and extend 

electric sewice to the extent that it has such power, energy and facilities, or can 

construct or obtain the same, to consumers on the Described Lands, in accordance 

with established policies (and CDEC’s Rules and Regulations not inconsistent with 

applicable federal or Navajo Nation law) and pursuant to the applicable scheduie(s) 

on file with the New Mexlco Public Service and M z o n a  Corporation Commissions 

or their respective successors (the “Regulatory Authonr)’”) or if none, as approved by 

the RE.4 to the jurisdiction of whch Regulalov -4uthony the NATION does not 

hereby consent, if such jurisdiction does not already exist by law, it being the 

NATION‘S intent IO conrracr merely to have applicable t a n E  apuiy * A  to the eiectric 

service. 

6. CDEC shall comply with all appiicable tribal laws and regulations, 

both current and hereinaftcr enacted, which are consistent with paragiaph 5 above; 

provided, however, that nothing herek contained is intended to constitute. nor shaLI 

be construed as constituting, a waiver of any right of CDEC to question or contest 

any such law, resolution, ordinance or regulation in any forum having jurisdiction 

over the Pmies and subject matter. Provided, funher, that nonvirhstanding any 

other pro\<sion of this Agreement and in consideration of the unique circumstance of 

the coordination between ”IJA and CDEC to benefit the NATION and consumers 

within the Descn-led Lands. CDEC shaU be entitled to recover (without Regulatory 

Authoriry filing, hearing or approval) from consumers receiving eiecrric senice upon 

the Described Lands the sum of taxes payable under the Possessory Interest Tax and 

all other taxes, fees or charges (together, the “tnid taxes”) heretofore paid or which 

may during the term of the Agreement be payable by CDEC and levied or assessed 

by the NATION on the electric service rendered or property owned or used by 
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CDEC h connection therewith, or on the right or pndege  of rendering the senice, 

or on my object or event incidental to the rendition of the senice, to the extent that 

the NATION has not abated the tribal taxes or provided for their use as a credit 

against rr;bai taxes othenvise due from CDEC. Tn3d taxes already paid and not 

abated or permitted to be credited during the term of this Agreement shall be 

amortized and recovered (without obtaining Regulatov filing, hearilg or approval) 

so that appro,ximateh equal m o u n t s  will be recovered in each of the biliing periods 

during the t e r m  of this Agreement. Y Tribal taxes payable during the t e n  of this 

AgTeement shall, after any credit provided for past tribal taxes, be recovered 

(withour o b t a ~ g  Regulatory filing, hearing or approval) approxz;=la:eiy equal in 

amounts for each of the billing periods during each of the tax periods invoived. In no 

event shaii CDEC be left w e d b u r s e d  for any such tribal taxes upon the eviration 

of thls X r m x n t ,  and if any tribal taxes have been paid by CDEC bul have not been 

recovercd from its consumers on the Described Lands thromh rhe above 

a m o n h f i o n  schedule, then the purchase price under paragraphs 3 and/or 3 shalI be 

increased to recover the tribal taxes plus interest at the average rate which CDEC 

pays, during any period to its 

SupplemPcriial lender with respect to concurrent loans. 

- 

which reimbursement has not occuned, 

7 .  Subject to the terms of any applicable ri@t-of-way and to other 

applicable Iawfui requirements with respecr to rights-of-way and easements, (except 

that no compensation be required to be paid to or for the benefit of the 

NATION for (a) any rights-of-way primarily for sewice to consumers within the 

Described h n d s  or (b) the Transmission Easement), CDEC, its agents and 

employees, may enter in and upon lands within the NATION at any time for the 

purpose of making excavations, constructing, extending, removing, repairing and 

maintaining such System 3 necessary and convenient for Supplying such electric 

service. A n y  and all excavations shall be repaired, and obstructions necessarily 



associated with the co~truction, maintenance and operation of the System wiIl be 

removed as quickly as is reasonably possible under the circumstances. 

8. The facilities associated with the System shall, when originally placed 

and erected, be established in such a manner so as not to interfere with other u e s  of 

Tribal lands or its inhabitants except as may be reasonably necessary, and shall be 

maintained in compliance with (a) the standards and speczcations as estabhned, 

and as amended, by the REA, and (b) other applicable electrical and safety codes. 

9. To the extent that the NATION is not at fault, CDEC. its successors 
and assi,oTls, shall (a) hold the NATION harmless from my and all dania, Des or c l a i m  

made against the NATION by any third person or other entity on account, or 

claimed to be on account of the construction, maintenance and operation of the 

system on the Descnied Lands by CDEC, and (b) defend the NATION against any 

such damages or claims and pav all costs reasonably incurred by the NATION in 

defense of the same. 

10. In order that the NATION and its nominee may be better apprised of 

the location of the System as installed prior to the effectiveness of the .Agreement 

and pursuant to the 1964 Franchise, CDEC shall supply to NATION or its nominee 

two (2) copies of maps depicting the location of its system on the D e s m k d  Lands. 

At the written request of the Bureau of Indian A f f a i r s  ("BW'), CDEC shall supply 

the BIA with an additional copy. 

11. On or before each October 15th during the term hereof, CDEC shall 

furnish the NATION with a statistical report on electric senice furnished on 

Reservation lands within the previous calendar year. The report shall include 

receipts from reservation services and any other data reasonably requested by the 

NATION. 

12. Except for secondary and individual service facilities, CDEC shall, 

before installing new facilities forming part of the System upon the Described Lands, 
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supply the NATION and the B U  for approval such documents and instruments as 

may be necessary to acquire right-of-way easements for any new construction. 

Nothing herein shall prevent CDEC from making necessary repairs to the system 

without such approval and, under exigent conditions, other immediate construction 

for which Tribal approval would o t h e h e  be required, but the result of such action 

shall be reponed to the NATION, if Tri%aI approval or consent would have 

othentise been required. CDEC shall have no liability whatsoever for any delay or 

failure of the NATION 10 p i n t  consent for the right-of-way easement. 

13. CDEC shall not use or cause to be used any part of Tn'bal lands for 

any unlav&l conduct or purpose and will take reasonable measures to prevent 

unlawful conduct by its agents or conrractors. 

14. Neither of the Parties shall be deemed to be in default in respect to 

any ob1iga;ion hereunder, other than (a) the obligation of CDEC to make payments 

of tribai :a.cs and (b) the obligations of the NATION to provide the Transmission 

Easement and other rights-of-way Y and to allow CDEC to recover tribal taxes 

pursuant to paragraph 6, if failure of performance should be due to uncontrollable 

forces, beiring any cause bevond the control of the Parry affected, including, but not 

limited to. failure of facfiries, flood, earthquake, stom, fire, lightning, epidemic, war, 

not, civil disturbance, labor dispute, sabotage, inabiliry to obtain capital funding, 

inability to obtain rid=-of-way I or permits, failure to obtain necessary governmental 

approvals or revocation or suspension of the same and resnaint by court or, 

governmental authority, which by the exercise of due foresight such Parry could not 

reasonably have been expected to avoid and which by the exercise of due diligence it 

may not be able to overcome. 

(a) 15. Lf either of the Parties considers the other in default of this 

Agreemenq it shall give the other written notice thereof, including a description of 

the alleged default. The Party receiving the notice shall have thrrry (30) days to 
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remedy the alleged default or within which to commence, and thereafter diligently 

pursue, actions to remedy the alleged default if the alleged default cannot reasonably 

be remedied within such time period. If the Party alleged to be in default fails to 

remedy within the prescribed period or, as the case may be, to complete remedial 

action within a reasonable time, the other Party, if not then in default, may, upon 

s ix ty  (60) days written notice, elect to cancel this Ageement, subject, however to the 

payment of any tribal taxes accrued, CDEC's recovery of all tnhal taxes as provided 

in paragaph 6 and the Y aanting of the Transmission Easement; provided. however, 

that this &reemem may be cancelled only for a material, continuing breach I going to 

the essence and subject to the dispute resolution provisions of this paragraph 15. 

(b) Disputes concerning the purchase price under either 

paragraph 2 or paragraph - 4, recovery of tribal fayes pursuant to paragraph 6, 

cancellation pursuant to subparamauh I .  (a) of this p a r a p p h  15 and, at the option of 

the NATION or CDEC, any other dispute shall be subdiect to and be resoived by 

arbitration in accordance with this subparagraph (b). 

(i) Whenever a dispute is to be resolved by arbitration. the 

initiating Pany shall serve a notice of arbitration on the other Parry. Such notice 

shall set forth on behalf of the initiating Party: the nature of the dispute; the relief 

requested; a statement of its position with respect to the dispute; and the designation 

of an arbirrator. Within fifty (50) days of the date of receipt of such notice, the other 

Party shall serve a written answer setting forth on behalf of such Party: its position 

with respect to the dispute; my relief such other Party requests; and the desigation 

of an arbitrator. Within fifty (50) days of receipt of such answer, the designated 

arbitrators shall, by jointly signed written notice to the PaRies, appoint a neutral and 

disinterested arbitrator qualified by knowledge and experience in the subject matter 

which is in dispute. The panel of arbitrators thus appointed shall prescribe by written 

notice within f3ty (50) days of the appointment of the third arbitrator the rules of 



procedure by which &e arbitration shall be conducted. Such rules shall include the 

designation of times, places and other details for the submission of requests for 

discovery, additional written material, evidence, affidavits, the presentation of oral 

argument and any other procedural matters which the arbitrators determine need to 

be prescnoed; provided, however, that any such prescription shall be only by 

unanimous agreement of the panel of arbitrators and, provided further, that if the 

arbitrarors fail to agree with respect to any such matters, the Commercial kbitration 

Rules of the American Arbitration Association shall apply to matters not agreed 

upon. Whenever the last day of any period herein contemplated shall occur on a 

Saturday, Sunday or national holiday or legal holiday for the NATION or the State of 

Xew b k d c o ,  the last dav shall be the regular working day next following such 

Saturday, Sunday or holidav. Any communication which must be rezcered within a 

prescn’oed number of davs shall be timely if deposited in the United States mail, 

certified. Kith postage urepaid, on or before the last day of the period in question. as 

evidenced by the posunark, or if personally delivered on or before such last day. Any 

period of time set forth herein may be extended by mutual consent of the Panies or 

by unanhous agreement of the panel of arbitrators. 

(ii) In the event that the Party  served with a notice of 

arbitrarion does not render its answer, designatkg an arbitrator, within fifry (50) days 

of the date of receipt of the arbitration notice, the singe arbitrator chosen by the 

initiating Parry shall constitute the panel of arbitrators. In the event that the 

arbitrarors designated by the Parties do not appoint a neutral arbitrator within fifty 

(50) days of the date of the other Party’s answer, either Party may appiy to the 

American Arbitration Association, or if such Association is no longer in existence or 

refuses to act, an association performing similar functions, for the appointment of an 

arbitrator who is neutral and disinterested and qualified by knowledge and 

experience in the subject matter which is in dispute, who shall be the third arbitrator. 

i n  



All arbitration proceedings shall be conducted according to the Commercial 

Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association except insofar as the 

same may vary from any provision of this subparagaph @) and except insofar as the 

arbitrators may prescribe rules of procedure pursuant to clause (i) above. 

(iii) Copies of all notices and answers shall be furnished to all 

arbitrators. All arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in the State of New 

Medco. 

(iv) The award disposing of the dispute shall be rendered 

within (50) days of the oral hearing or, if subsequent witten material is presented. 

within thrriy (30) days of the final submission of written materia1 or e\icmcE on 

b e n d  of either Party, unless the arbitration pane! unanimousiy ageed to the 

contrary in the d e s  of procedure or otherwise. Tne award shall be renccred by a 

majority of the arbitration panel, and it shall be in iv i~ ing .  In the event a aajorky of 

the arbitration panel is unable to agree upon an award by the date se: forth i? rhis 

clause (iv), the panel may certify such inability to the Parties which shall then 

discharge the arbitration panel and recommence the procedures of ths  

subparagTaph (b). 

(v) In no event shall any arbitrator or arbitration pane! have 

any jurisdiction or authorirv to amend, modrfy, cancel or rescind any term or 

condition of this Agreement. The arbitrators shall be limited to arbitrating the 

factual disputes presented for arbitration and shall have no authority to rule on any 

legal issues or to make any findings involving the interpretation, legality or 

enforceability of any provision of this Agreement. 

(vi) Each Party shall bear its own expenses, including 

expenses of its counsel and arbitrator; all expenses and compensation of the neutral 

arbitrator shall be shared equally by each Party unless the arbitration panel 

unanimously directs another division. 
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(vii) At the request of either Party, the award shall be 

reviewable by the REA, which shall confirm, vacate or modify or correct the award 

upon substantidy the same procedure and bases as would a court pursuant to the 

Federal Arbitration Act. 

16. Any notice or request required to be given hereunder in writing may 

be hand delivered to the Office of the Manager, CDEC, or the Office of the 

President of the Navajo Nation and if not so hand delivered, shalI be mailed, postage 

prepaid, cenified mad, to the President, Navajo Nation, Post Office Box308, 

Window Rock Arizona 86515, or to the Manager, Continental Divide Electric 

Cooperative, Inc., Post Office Box 1087, Grants, New lMexico 87020, or such other 

addresses that may from rime to time be supplied in writing by one of the Parries to 

the other. A copy of all such documents shall be m d e d  to the General il/ianager, 

NTL’A Post Office Box 170, Fort Defiance, Arizona 86504. 

17. The Parries will diligently seek approval of this Agreement and during 

such efforts, CDEC shall continue, for a reasonable period necessary for approval? to 

provide elecrric service, including new electric senice, to consumers Iocated within 

the Desm’bed Lands in accordance with established policies. This Agreement is 

subject to the condition subsequent that it must be approved by the Secretary of the 

Interior or thar Secretary’s authorized representative, and, required, by the REA; if 

such approval(s) has(ve) not been obtained within six (6) months after it becomes 

effective, this Agreement, except for the granting of the Transmission Easement and 

paragraph 4 (and subparagraph 15(b) and the provisions of paragraph 6 with respect 

to paragraph 4) shall be of no further force and effect. 

18. The covenants and agreements hereinabove set forth shall extend to 

and be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, 

but are not intended to benefit or be enforceable by any third persons. 
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I -  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the 

date first written above. 

4 1992 

CONTINENTALDIVIDE ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVE, INC. 

NAVAJO NATION >ss 
The foregoing k e e m e n t  was acknowledged before me thx  24 t'h dav of 

& t ~ 6 o r  1992, b? Fkfecso? , President of the Nairajo 
hation, a reco-mized " American haian 1 ribe, on benaif of the Navajo Nation. 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO 

C 0 U " O F  &Lw& I.' 
corporarioa 

My Commission Expires: 

// / ? 9 3  



EXHIBIT "A" 

Franch i se  Area d e s i g n a t e d  on a t tached CDEC Key Map 
updated September 1992. 

Legal d e s c r i p t i o n  of F r a n c h i s e  Lands a s  fo l lows :  

J J l I D t  on-Ho Area: 
Beginning a t  a p o i n t  on t h e  Arizona-New Mexico S t a t e  

L ine ,  t h e  s o u t h e a s t  c o r n e r  of S e c t i o n . 1 6 ,  Township 23 N o r t h ,  
Range 31 East ,  Apache Coufity, Ar izona;  t h e n c e  r u n n i n g  west on 
s e c t i o n  l i n e  common t o  S e c t i o n  16 and 2 1 ,  17  and 20 ana 13 
and 19 of  s a i d  townchip and r ange  t o  t h e  southwest c o r n e r  of 
S e c t i o n  18; thence south  a long  t h e  range l i n e  common t o  
Ranges 30 and 31 Eas t  t o  t h e  township l i n e  common t o  
Townships 22 and 23 North:  
l i n e  common t o  T o u n s h i p s  22 and 2 3  North,  
c o r n e r  of Sec t ion  35, Township 23 N o r t h ,  Range 29 Eas t ;  
thence n o r t h  a long  s e c t i o n  l i n e  common t o  Sec t ions  34-35, 
2 6 ,  2 2 - 2 3 ,  15-14,  10-11, and 3-2  of s a i d  township and range  
t o  the n o r t h  township l i n e ;  t h e n c e  west a long  s a i d  township 
l i n e  t o  t h e  northwest  c o r n e r  of t h e  township; thence s o u t h  
along t h e  range l i n e  common t o  Ranges 28 and 29 Eas t  t o  t h e  
township l i n e  common t o  Townships 22 and 23 North. Thence 
west a long  s a i d  township l i n e  t o  t h e  northwest  c o r n e r  of  
S e c t i o n  1, Township 22 North ,  Range 28 East; thence s o u t h  
a long  t h e  s e c t i o n  l i n e  common t o  S e c t i o n s  2-1, 11-12 and 1 4 -  
13 t o  t h e  c o r n e r  common t o  S e c t i o n s  13-14-23 and 2 4  of s a i d  
township;  thence  west a long  t h e  s e c t i o n  l i n e  common t o  
S e c t i o n s  1 4 - 2 3  and 15-22 t o  the c o r n e r  common t o  S e c t i o n s  1 5 ,  
1 6 ,  2 1  and 2 2 ;  thence s o u t h  a l o n g  t h e  s ec t ion  l i n e  common t o  
S e c t i o n s  21-22,  28-27 and 33-34 t o  t h e  sou th  l i n e  of said 
township; thence  west along the township l i n e  common t o  
Townships 21  and 22 North,  Range 25 East, %e t h e  Navajo 
Reserva t ion  l i n e ;  thence  s o u t h  and east along t h e  e x i s t i n g  
Reserva t ion  boundary to t h e  Arizona-New Mexico S t a t e  L i n e ;  
t h e n c e  n o r t h  along t h e  State l i n e  t o  t he  point of b e g i n n i n g .  

t h e n c e  west a long  t h e  t o u n s h i p  
t o  t h e  southwes t  

27- 

This  area encompasses approximate ly  213 square miles. 

NorthWestpfSandera: 
S t a r t i n g  a t  the NW c o r n e r  of S e c t i o n  I, Township 22  

North,  Range 28 E a s t ;  t h e n c e  e x t e n d i n g  in a westerly 
direction a long  t h e  township line common t o  Townships 22 
North and 23 North t o  t h e  range l i n e  of Range 27 E a s t  and 28  
E a s t ;  thence s o u t h  along said range line to t h e  SW corner of 
Sec t ion  31, Township 22 North, Range 28 East. 

T h i s  area encompasses Twenty- four  ( 2 4 )  sect ions .  
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s i z d i x x R o ” k m :  
Beginning a t  a p o i n t  on t h e  east boundarY of t h e  Navajo 

Rese rva t ion  approximate ly  1 5 . 5  miles n o r t h  of the s o u t h e a s t  
c o r n e r  of s a i d  Navajo Rese rva t ion  and b e i n g  the p r o t r a c t e d  
closing corne r  of t h e  s o u t h e a s t  corner of Section 1 2 ,  
Township 19 North,  Range 1 4  West, McKinley County ,  New 
Mexico; thence running  west a long  t h e  pro t rac ted  s e c t i o n  
l i n e s  common t o  Sections 12-13 ,  11-14, 10-15,  9-16, 8-17 and 
7-18 t o  t h e  range l i n e  common t o  Ranges 14  and 15 West. 
Thence sou th  a long  s a i d  range l i n e  t o  t h e  s o u t h  boundary of  
t h e  Navajo Rese rva t ion ;  t hence  east  a long  said boundary t o  
t h e  s o u t h e a s t  c o r n e r  of t h e  Rese rva t ion ;  t hence  n o r t h  a long  
t h e  east  boundary of said Reserva t ion  t o  the point of 

( s e e  a t t a c h e d  lega l  d e s c r i p t i o n s  provided by t h e  
O f f i c e  of Navajo and Hopi Re1ocat;ion) 
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PETERSON ZAH 
PRESIDENT DEC 2 8 1994 

MARSHALL PUIMMER 
VICE PRESIDENT 

Dear Mr. Lackey: 

* Pursuant to Paragraph 2, Page 3, of the present Franchise Agreement between the Navajo Nation and 
Continental Divide Electric Cooperative, Inc. (CDEC), the Navajo Nation gives notice that it is 
exercising the option to purchase "Additional Lines and Facilities" as described in the Agreement. 

"Additional Lines and Facilities" are defined in the Agreement as CDEC's lines and facilities upon 
"Described Lands". The legal description for the Described Lands are set forth in Exhibit A attached 
to the Agreement and includes lands within the Navajo Reservation Boundary, at Lupton and Houck, 
northwest of Sanders, in the Standing Rock area, and the New Lands which were added to the 

. Navajo Reservation for the benefit ofrelocatees from the Hopi Partitioned Lands. A copy of Exhibit 
A is enclosed hereto. 

It has been conternplated.at all times during the negotiations on the Franchise Agreement and when 
the Agreement was being considered by the Navajo Nation Council that the Navajo Tribal Utility 
Authority would purchase the Additional Lines and Facilities to be added to their system. 
Accordingly, I am designating the Navajo Tribal Utility Authority, its Management Board, and its 
General Manager, Malcolm P. Dalton, to act on behalf of the Navajo Nation in completing the 
purchase of the lines and facilities. 

It is understood between the Navajo Nation and the Navajo Tribal UtiIity -4uthority that the Authority 
will have the sole responsibility on behalf of the Nation for negotiation and purchase of the facilities. 
It is fbrther understood that Mr. Dalton wilI make contact with CDEC in the near fbture to initiate 
the negotiations. 

If there are any questions concerning this matter, please contact Mr. Dalton at (602) 729-620 1. 

Very truly yours, 

Peterson Zah, President 
Navajo Nation 
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EXHIBIT C 

DESCRIPTION OF FACILITIES TO BE PURCHASED 

Arizona Facilities - 

All electric transmission and distribution facilities, 
including but not limited to, all poles, towers, conductors, wires, 
and other electrical equipment utilized to provide electric service 
to customers in the state of Arizona and as shown on the map as 
Exhibit D, and both inside and outside of CDEC's Certificate of 
Convenience and Necessity on file with the Arizona Corporation 
Commission and approximately 2,400 feet of 69 kV line beginning at 
the point where CDEC's 69 kV line crosses the Arizona - New Mexico 
state line, Range 2 1  West, Township 1 4  North, Section 35,  thence 
running in a Northeasterly direction terminating at the point where 
CDEC's 69 kV Tap is located, commonly referred to as the Lupton 
Switch. The area is described as beginning at a point on the 
Arizona - New Mexico state line, one mile South of the township 
line common to Township 1 8  North and Township 1 9  North, thence West 
Range 2 8  East and Range 29 East, thence North, following the range 
line to a point on the township line common to Township 1 9  North 
and Township 20  North, thence West following the township line to 
a point three ( 3 )  miles West of the range line common to Range 26 
East, and Range 27 East, thence North following section lines to a 
22 North, thence East following the township line to a point one 
m i l e  West of the range line common to Range 28 East and Range 29 
East; thence North following section lines and section lines 
extended to a point of the township line common to Township 23 
North and Township 24  North, thence East along the township line to 
a point on the range line common to Range 29 East and Range 3 0  
East, thence North following the range line extended to a point on 
the Navajo Base line, thence East along the Navajo Base line a 
distance of two ( 2 )  miles to a point on the range line common to 
Range 6 West, Navajo Base line, thence north following the range 
line to a point on the township line common to Township 1 North and 
Township 2 North, thence East following the township line to a 
point on the Arizona - New Mexico state line, thence South 
following the Arizona - New Mexico state line to the point of 
beginning. Also, includes all of Township 17 North, Range 2 9  East, 
Township 1 7  North, Range 3 0  East, Township 1 7  North, Range 3 1  East, 
and Sections 7, 8, 9, 10, 15, 16, 17, 18 ,  19, 20, 21, 22 ,  27, 2 8 ,  
29, 30, 3 1 ,  32, 33, and 34 and Township 1 8  North, Range 3 1  East all 
of Apache County, Arizona. 



Standing Rock Facilities - 

All electric distribution facilities, including but not 
limited to, all poles, towers, conductors, wires, and other 
electrical equipment utilized to provide electric service to 
customers in the Standing Rock Area and the three phase line, 
operated as single phase, beginning in the Southeast quadrant of 
Section 31, Township 18 North, Range 13 West and thence North 
approximately 9.5 miles to Section 8, Township 19 North, Range 13 
West, as shown on the map as Exhibit E. 

The Acquisition Area, which includes the three phase line 
mentioned herein, is described as beginning at a point on the 
Southeast corner of the Navajo Reservation Boundary (Section 36, 
Township 17 North, Range 14 West), thence East approximately two 
miles to the section line common to Sections 32 and 33 of Township 
17 North, Range 1 West; thence North approximately 4.5 miles to the 
Southeast corner of Section 5, Township 17 North, Range 13 West; 
thence West approximately 1 mile the southeast Corner of Section 6, 
Township 17 North, Range 13 West; thence North approximately 3 
miles to the Southeast Corner of Section 1, Township 18 North, 
Range 13 West; thence East approximately 2 miles to the Southeast 
corner of Section 21, Township 18 North, Range 13 West; thence 
North approximately 6 miles to the Southeast Corner of Section 21, 
Township 19 North, Range 13 West; thence West approximately 2 miles 
to the Southeast corner of Section 19, Township 19 North, Range 13 
West; thence North approximately 4 miles to the Township line 
common to Township 19 North and Township 20 North; thence West 
approximately 13 miles to the Range line common to Range 15 West 
and Range 16 West; thence South approximately 18 miles to the 
Navajo Reservation Boundary; thence East approximately 12 miles to 
the point of beginning. 







Exhibit D 
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Exhibit 2 

PURCHASE POWER AGREEMENT 

- 
1.0 This Purchase Power Agreement, dated 1 L? I 2000 ,  

/ 
( "Agreement" ) by and between Continental Divide Electric 

Cooperative, Inc. (IICDECII) , a corporation organized and 

existing under the laws of the state of New Mexico and a 

rural electric cooperative and the Navajo Tribal Utility 

Authority (lINTUAll) , an organization created by and acting 

under the authority of the Navajo Nation, herein 

collectively referred to as flPartiesll and individually as 

Party. 

2.0 RECITALS: This Agreement is made with reference to the 

following facts, among others. 

2.1 CDEC is engaged in the transmission and distribution 

of electric power and energy in the states of New 

Mexico and Arizona. 

2.2 NTUA is engaged in the transmission and distribution 

of electric power and energy on the Navajo 

Reservation which includes the states of New Mexico, 

Arizona and Utah. 

2.3 The Parties have entered into a Definitive Agreement 

of Purchase and Sale dated L 2 A A - J  13 , 2000 ,  

which includes, among other matters, NTUA purchasing 

power and energy from CDEC for those CDEC customers 

that reside in the state of Arizona. 

2.4 Electric system interconnections will exist which 

allow CDEC to sell and deliver, and NTUA to purchase 



I - -  
and receive power and energy. 

2 . 5  CDEC desires to minimize the financial impact of 

selling its electric facilities in Arizona to NTUA 

and NTUA is willing to support CDEC's desires by 

purchasing power and energy for a period of time as 

set forth in this Agreement. 

3.0 AGREEMENT: The Parties agree as follows: 

4.0 EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM: This Agreement shall become 

effective upon the execution by both Parties and subject 

to: 

4.1 

4.2 

4.3 

4.4 

Execution of the Definitive Agreement of Purchase and 

Sale, and 

Acceptance by the New Mexico Public Regulation 

Commission, if applicable, and 

Written approval by the Rural Utilities Services. 

Subject to Sections 4.1, 4.2, and 4.3 herein, this 

Agreement shall commence on the Closing Date of the 

Definitive Agreement of Purchase and Sale and shall 

continue for a period of three ( 3 )  years. This 

Agreement can be terminated by NTUA by giving CDEC 

written notice no earlier than 180 days prior to the 

end of the three (3) year period. The Parties may 

mutually agree to extend this Agreement. 

5 . 0  POINTS OF DELIVERY AND RECEIPTS OF POWER: CDEC shall 

deliver capacity and energy to NTUA at the following points 

of delivery: 

2 



5.1 At the point called the Lupton Switch, located in New 

Mexico approximately 2,400 feet northeast of the 

Arizona - New Mexico state line on CDECIs 69 kV 

transmission line. This point is referred to herein 

as the Lupton point of delivery, and 

5.2 At the point where CDEC's 24.9 kV line crosses the 

Arizona, New Mexico state line, herein referred to as 

the Barth Lake point of delivery. 

6.0 METERING POINTS, BILLING POINTS, AND LOSSES: 

6.1 For the purposes of metering and billing CDEC shall 

install metering at the points identified herein. For 

the Lupton point of delivery the metering point will 

be the Houck Substation, and for the Barth Lake point 

of delivery the metering point will be at the pole 

structure nearest to the Arizona, New Mexico state 

line. For the Lupton point of delivery, the capacity 

(kW) and energy (kWh) readings will be adjusted by two 

percent (2%) for line losses back to the Lupton point 

of delivery. There will be no loss correction for the 

Barth Lake point of delivery. Such meters will be of 

acceptable type and quality as mutually agreed to by 

the Parties and shall be installed by CDEC at NTUA's 

expense. Upon the termination of this Agreement, 

title to and possession of meters shall revert to 

NTUA . 

3 
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7 . 0  COST OF POWER CHARGES: CDEC will obtain power for delivery 

to NTUA at the lowest possible cost available to CDEC from 

its contract supplier plus two ( 2 )  mills. CDEC shall 

provide NTUA with written description of the rate showing a 

breakdown of all costs for delivering power to NTUA. 

8.0 BILLING AND PAYMENT: 

8.1 CDEC shall bill NTUA monthly on or before the tenth 

(10th) day of the month following each month service 

is rendered and at the rates and in accordance with 

the provisions of Paragraph 7.0. Invoices shall be 

mailed to NTUA at the following address: 

Navajo Tribal Utility Authority 
c/o General Manager 
Post Office Box 170 
Fort Defiance, AZ 86504 

NTUA shall pay CDEC by the fifteenth (15th) day after 

receipt of an invoice. If the due date falls on a 

weekend day or bank holiday, then such payment will 

be due on the following banking day. Payment shall 

be mailed to: 

Continental Divide Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
Post Office Box 1087 
Grants, NM 87020 

Amounts not paid by the due date shall be payable 

with interest accrued on each calendar day from the 

due date of payment. The interest rate shall be one 

percent (1%) per month. In the event any portion of 

any invoice is disputed, the amount disputed shall be 
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paid "under protest" when due. If the disputed 

amount is found to be incorrect, CDEC shall promptly 

refund to NTUA such amount due plus interest accrued 

at one percent (1%) per month from the date such 

disputed amount was paid under protest until refunded 

by CDEC.  

8.2 No payment made pursuant to this Section shall 

constitute a waiver of any right of NTUA to contest 

the correctness of any charge or credit by CDEC. 

8 . 3  NTUA shall have the right to audit, at its own 

expense, all books and records regarding any costs, 

payments, and other supporting documents pertaining 

to this Agreement. In the event such an audit 

discloses errors, omissions, or adjustments, payment 

will be made as soon as possible after the Party has 

been notified in writing of such finding and payment 

shall include interest at the rate specified in 

Section 8.1. 

9.0 UNCONTROLLABLE FORCES: Neither Party shall be considered 

to be in default in the performance of any of its 

obligations hereunder, other than the obligations to make 

payments of amounts due pursuant to this Agreement, when 

failure of performance shall be due to Uncontrollable 

Forces. The Party claiming Uncontrollable Forces shall 

promptly contact the other Party and provide written notice 

that an Uncontrollable Force has occurred. The term 

"Uncontrollable Forces" shall mean any event beyond the 

5 



control of the Party unable to perform any of its 

obligations hereunder including, but not limited to, 

failure of or threat of immediate failure of facilities; 

flood, earthquake, storm, fire, lightning, and other 

riot, civil natural catastrophes; epidemic, war , 

disturbance or disobedience; labor dispute, labor or 

material shortage; sabotage; restraint by court order or 

public authority; and action or nonaction by, or failure to 

obtain the necessary authorizations or approvals from any 

governmental agency or authority, which by exercise of due 

diligence, such Party could not reasonably have been 

expected to avoid and which, by exercise of due diligence 

is unable to overcome. Nothing contained herein shall be 

construed as to require either Party to settle any strike 

or labor dispute in which it may be involved. 

10.0 ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement shall inure to the 

benefit of and be binding upon the Parties hereto and their 

respective successors and assigns; provided, however, that 

this Agreement, except as hereinafter provided, may not be 

assigned by either Party except with the prior written 

consent of the other Party, which consent shall not be 

unreasonably withheld. 

11.0 NOTICES: Any notice, demand, or request provided for in 

this Agreement, or served, given, or made in connection with 

it, shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly served, 

given, or made if delivered in person, sent by facsimile 

transmission (Fax) or sent by United States mail, postage 
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prepaid, to the persons specified below: 

Navajo Tribal Utility Authority 
General Manager 
Post Office Box 170 
Fort Defiance, AZ 86504 
Fax #602-729-2135 

Continental Divide Electric Cooperative, 
General Manager 
Post Office Box 1087 
Grants, NM 87020 
Fax #505-287-2234 

A Party may at any time, by written notice, change the 

designation or the address of the person so specified. 

12.0 NO THIRD PARTY RIGHTS: Unless otherwise specifically 

provided in this Agreement, the Parties do not intend to 

create any duty, covenant, obligation or undertaking to or 

to create any rights in or to grant any remedies to any 

third party as a beneficiary of this Agreement or of any of 

the rights and obligations established hereunder. 

13.0 WAIVERS: The waiver by either Party of any breach of any 

term, covenant or condition contained herein shall not be 

deemed a waiver of any other term, covenant or condition or 

of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, 

covenant or condition contained herein. 

14.0 LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY: 

14.1 Each Party shall indemnify and hold harmless each 

other Party and the directors, officers, and 
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employees of each such other Party from liability, 

loss, damage, claim, costs, and expenses (including 

attorney fees) on account of injury to persons 

(including death) or damage or destruction of 

property arising out of or related to the negligent 

or other acts of the indemnifying Party or its 

officers, directors, employees, or contractors in the 

performance of this Agreement; provided, however, 

that: 

14.1.1 Each Party shall be solely responsible to its 

own employees for all claims or benefits due 

for injuries occurring in the course of their 

employment or arising out of any worker's 

compensation law. No Party shall seek 

reimbursement or subrogation from any other 

Party for any benefits paid to the employees 

of that Party pursuant to any worker's 

compensation law except as necessary to 

prevent double recovery by the employee. 

14.1.2 No Party and its directors, officers, and 

employees shall be liable for any loss of 

earnings, revenues, indirect or consequential 

damages, or injury which may be incurred by 

any other Party as a result of curtailments, 

interruptions or outages in delivery of 

electric services under this Agreement by 

reason of any cause whatsoever, other than 
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I :  gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

14.2 Each Party shall indemnify and hold harmless each 

other Party and its directors, officers, and 

employees from any liability, loss, claim, cost 

(including attorney fees) incurred by the indemnified 

Party in connection with or arising out of claims 

made by the indemnifying Party's electric service 

customers as a result of any failure of a Party to 

provide electric power or energy contemplated by this 

Agreement for any reason or any cause whatsoever, 

other than gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

15.0 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES: 

15.1 CDEC hereby represents, warrants and covenants to 

NTUA as follows: 

15.1.1 

15.1.2 

CDEC is a New Mexico corporation duly 

organized, validly existing and in good 

standing under the laws of the State of New 

Mexico and has corporate power and authority 

to execute and deliver this Agreement and 

perform its obligations hereunder, and to 

carry on its business as it is now being 

conducted and as it is contemplated hereunder 

to be conducted during the term hereof. 

The execution, delivery and performance of 

this Agreement by CDEC has been duly and 

effectively authorized by all requisite 

corporate action. 
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15.2 NTUA hereby represents, warrants and covenants to 

CDEC as follows: 

15.2.1 NTUA is an authority of the Navajo Tribal 

Council and is duly organized, validly 

existing and in good standing under the laws 

of the Navajo Nation, and has the requisite 

power and authority to execute this Agreement 

and to perform its obligations hereunder, and 

to carry on its business as it is now being 

conducted and as it is contemplated hereunder 

to be conducted during the term hereof. 

15.2.2 Subject to the provisions of Section 2.2, 

2.3, and 2.4 herein, the execution, delivery, 

and performance of this Agreement by the NTUA 

have been duly and effectively authorized by 

all requisite action. 

15.2.3 NTUA has full power and authority to execute 

this Agreement and this Agreement has been 

duly executed and delivered by the NTUA and 

is the legal, valid and binding obligation of 

the NTUA, enforceable against it in 

accordance with its terms. 

16.0 ENTIRE AGREEMENT: The complete agreement of the Parties is 

set forth in this Agreement and supersedes all prior and 

contemporaneous communications, whether written or oral. 
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Gallons sold in the TY 

49ER WATER COMPANY 
PURCHASED WATER 

12 mos 7 mos 
270,503,489 157,793,702 

Permanent Rate Decision expected 08/12/2001 

Interim rates effective 0210 1 /2001 
7 months to recover 

Purchased water per app 

Additional purch water 
Tucson Water Tie-in 

Total Costs to Date 

Recovery gallons 

Recovery per gallon 

Recovery per 1,000 gallons 

Proposed Interim 
Surcharge per 1,000 gallons 

Check figure: 
Est. gallons to be sold Feb-Aug 2001 
Divisor 
Surcharge Amount 

Proposed Recovery 

$ 52,888 
Water Costs 

Jul $16,655.56 
Aug 20,270.53 

$ 3,610 Sept 151 08.34 
$ 8,702 Oct 434.12 

$ 65,200 
Nov 3,176.11 
Dec 44.65 
Jan 45.84 

55,735.15 
157,793,702 Tie-in to C O W  Costs 

COTW meter $ 853.79 
$ 0.0004132 Crane Machine 1,232.71 

SW Tapping 425.50 
$ 0.4131977 Starlings Drill 138.57 

Sunstate Equip 1,148.94 
ISS 326.24 

$ 0.41 Kepner 4,571.57 

Accurate Backflow 40.00 
157,793,702 Granite Constr 247.53 

1,000 Canyon Pipe 301.37 
$ 0.41 Star Aluminum 21.78 

Traff icade I 37.98 

$ 64,695.42 

a 

Permits 11 0.00 
$ 9,555.98 

A 

$65,291 .I3 &a: _,-- 

Expenses.xls 



Exhibit 3 

I \ *  I 



DESCRIPTION OF FACILITIES TO BE PURCHASED 

Exhibit. 4 

Arizona Facilities - 
All electric transmission and distribution facilities, 

including but not limited to, all poles, towers, conductors, wires, 
and other electrical equipment utilized to provide electric service 
to customers in the state of Arizona and as shown on the map as 
Exhibit D, and both inside and outside of CDEC's Certificate of 
Convenience and Necessity on file with the Arizona Corporation 
Commission and approximately 2,400 feet of 69 kV line beginning at 
the point where CDEC's 69 kV line crosses the Arizona - New Mexico 
state line, Range 21 West, Township 14 North, Section 35, thence 
running in a Northeasterly direction terminating at the point where 
CDEC's 69 kV Tap is located, commonly referred to as the Lupton 
Switch. The area is described as beginning at a point on the 
Arizona - New Mexico state line, one mile South of the township 
line common to Township 18 North and Township 19 North, thence West 
Range 28 East and Range 29 East, thence North, following the range 
line to a point on the township line common to Township 19 North 
and Township 20 North, thence West following the township line to 
a point three (3) miles West of the range line common to Range 26 
East, and Range 27 East, thence North following section lines to a 
22 North, thence East following the township line to a point one 
mile West of the range line common to Range 28 East and Range 29 
East; thence North following section lines and section lines 
extended to a point of the township line common to Township 23 
North and Township 24 North, thence East along the township line to 
a point on the range line common to Range 29 East and Range 30 
East, thence North following the range line extended to a point on 
the Navajo Base line, thence East along the Navajo Base line a 
distance of two (2) miles to a point on the range line common to 
Range 6 West, Navajo Base line, thence north following the range 
line to a point on the township line common to Township 1 North and 
Township 2 North, thence East following the township line to a 
point on the Arizona - New Mexico state line, thence South 
following the Arizona - New Mexico state line to the point of 
beginning. Also, includes all of Township 17 North, Range 29 East, 
Township 17 North, Range 30 East, Township 17 North, Range 31 East, 
and Sections 7, 8, 9, 10, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 27, 28, . 
29, 30, 31, 32, 33, and 34 and Township 18 North, Range 31 East all 
of Apache County, Arizona. 
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NM Rate Schedules 



I , 

CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 1 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 1 

PESIDENTIAL SERVICE 
(Schedu 1 e " RS" ) 

Page 1 'of 5 

AVAILABILITY: 
.* . .  

- . e  -A?ailable only for  normal domestic power use to individual residence;, 
individual dwelling units, and individual apartments within the Utility's service 
area. Service under this schedule i s  not available for master-metered multiple 
housing units, business establJshments or  public buildings. 

CHARACTER OF SERVICE: 

Alternating current, 60 Hertz, at available sacondary voltages. 

NET RATE PER BILLING PERIOD: (or part thereof/service) 

$7.50 per billing period (System Charge) 
i 

-PLUS- 

All kWh per billing period @ 8.146$/k'rlh 

The system charge shall cover costs o f  providing electric service, including 
operation and maintenance o f  facilities and other administrative costs. 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 22 

EFFECTIVE 



CONTINENTAL D I V I D E  ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 1 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 1 

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE 
(Schedule “RS”) 

Page 2 o f  5 

MINIMUM CHARGES: 

f o l  iowing: 
The.-minim.um charges per bi1.l.ing ‘period shal7’ be the highest o f  t b  

(1) $7.50 per b i l l i n g  period wf th  no allowance f o r  kWh. X 

(2) Minimum charges i n  accordance with Line Extension Pol icy or  contract 
(no power allowed f o r  the f i r s t  $7.50). X 

( 3 )  Minimum charges established by special contract between the consumer 
and the U t i l f t y .  

Any energy allowances sha l l  be made only during the b i l l i n g  per iod- ln  whi’ch 
they occurred. 

FUEL L PURCHASED POWER COST ADJUSTMENT: 

The U t i l i t y  shal l ,  i f  the purchased power expense i s  increased or decreased 
above or below the base purchased power cost o f  $0.0705664/kWh sold, f low through X 
t o  the users such increases or decreases, i n  accordance with N.H.P.S.C. Rule No. X 
550. X 

. NO4 MEXICO PUBLIC SERVICE COMPIIISS!C:I 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 22 

Fred A. Lack 



CONTINENTAL D I V I D E  ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 1 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 1 

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE 
(Schedule “RS”) 

Page 3’-of--5 

TAX ADJUSTMENT: 
.* - - -  

a B i l l i n g  under t h i s  schkdule may’ be increased by ‘an amount equal t o  .the sum 
of the taxes payable under the gross receipts and compensating tax act  and o f  a l l  
other taxes, fees, or charges (exclusive of Ad Valorem, State and Federal Income 
Taxes) payable by the U t i l i t y  and lev ied or assessed by any governmental 
author i ty on the publ ic  u t i l i t y  service rendered, or on the r i g h t  or pr iv i lege  
o f  rendering the service, or on any object or event incidental  t o  the rendi t ion 
o f  the service. 

. -  
e. * . 

TERMS OF PAYMENT: 

A l l  b i l l s  are net and payable wi th in  20 days f romthe  date o f  b i l l .  i 
BILLING PERIOD: 

The b i l l i n g  period sha l l  be approximately 1/12 of a year but not necessarily 
a calendar month. 

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE: X 

A l a t e  payment charge o f  one and one-half percent (1 1/2X) per b i l l i n g  X 
period or f r ac t i on  thereof w i l l  be charged on a l l  u t i l i t y  service b i l l s  and X 

X invoices which are delinquent per the provisions o f  the t a r i f f .  

~ EFFECTIVE 
I ’  FOR SERVICE ON 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 22 

Fred A. Lackey, Hanag’er f -  



CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 1 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 1 

BUDGET BILLING: 

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE 
(Schedule “RS“) 

Page 4 of 5 

- 
-Upin the request of fhe consm’r and.for’his convenience, the Utility shal’l 

provide budget billing in accordance with the rules and regulations filed by the 
Utility and approved by the New Mexico Public Service Commission. 

.. 

TEMPORARY OR UNUSUAL SERVICE: 

Temporary or unusual service wili be covered by the Utility’s Rules and 
Regulations. In such cases, the minimum charges, conditions of furnishings 
substation equipment, connection and disconnection of service and special 
conditions will be covered by special agreement with the customer. The customer 
shall pay for all expenses in.volved in furnishing the temporary service. 

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE: 

(1) The Utility’s rules and regulations, filed with the regulatory body 
shall apply. 

(2) All wiring, pole lines and other electrical equipment electrically on 
the load side of the metering point shall be considered the 
distribution system of the consumer and shall be furnished and 
maintained by the consumer. 

(3) The consumer’s installation shall conform to City, State and National 
Electrical Codes and Electrical Safety Codes. 

(4) The consumer shall not resell or share electric service with others. 

(5) Special conditions o f  service shall be covered by contract. 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 22 

FOR SERVICE ON 

OCT ‘7 1990 c*fy&J,- 
Fred A. Lackey, Ha‘nage 



CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 1 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 1 

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE 
(Schedule "RS" ) 

Page. 5-  Of--5 

TEHPORARY SURCHARGE: 
. .  - *-  

. Upon' ai>proval of this'tarlff by the N.M. Public Servise Conmission, the 
Utility shall add to the consumer's net bill as computed above, a surcharge of X 
$.003 per kWh sold to amortlze the one month unrecovered fuel and purchased power X 
adjustment costs which the Utility will realize upon the Cmission's acceptance 
of the Utility's new base cost of purchased power. 

...e -. 

(Sentence omitted) 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 22 

EFFECT 6V E 
Fred A. Lackeg, Harfage 



CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 2 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 2 

AVAILABILITY: 
. .  . .  . .  

:.Available to 'a17 'commerc 

COMMERCIAL SERVICE 
. (Schedule "CS") 

Page 1 o f  5 

a 
.. 
, business, professional, pub 

. .  

. .  . .  
ic- building aid  

industrial loads requiring less than 50 kVA-of transformer capacity at a single x 
service location within the Utility's service area. 

CHARACTER OF SERVICE: 

Alternating current, single or three phase, 60 Hertz, at available secondary 
voltages. 

NET RATE PER BILLING PERIOD: (or part thereof/service) 

$10.00 per billing period (System Charge) X 

-PLUS- 

All kWh per billing period 8.275$/kWh . x 

The system charge shall cover costs of providing electric service, including 
operation and maintenance o f  facilities and other administrative costs. 

i E FFECTI \!E 
ON FO!? SERVICE 

OCT 7 1930 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 22 

- 
Fred A. Lackey, H a 6 a g e  



;. 

EFFECTIVE 

CONTINENTAL D I V I D E  ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 2 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 2 

COMMERCIAL SERVICE 
(Schedule "CS") 

Page' 2 o f  5 

. .  
* -  MINIMUM CHARGES: 

The minimum charges per b i l l h r g  per& sha l l  be the highest o f  -;he- 
following: 

(1) $10.00 per b i l l i n g  period with no allowance f o r  kWh. X 

(2) Minimum charges i n  accordance with Line Extension Policy or contract 
(no power allowed for  the f i r s t  $10.00). 

(3) Minimum charges established by special contract between the consumer 

x 

and the U t i l i t y .  

Any energy allowances sha l l  be made only dur ing the b i l l i n g  period i n  which 
they occurred. 

FUEL & PURCHASED POWER COST ADJUSTMENT: 

The U t i l i t y  shal l ,  I f  the purchased power expense i s  increased or decreased 
above or below the base purchased power cost o f  $0.0705664/kWh sold, f low through x 
t o  the users such Increases or decreases, I n  accordance wi th  N.M.P.S.C. Rule No. x 
550. X 

0 ?I FOR SERVICE 

- ADVICE NOTICE NO. 22 



CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 2 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 2 

TAX ADJUSTMENT: 

COMMERCIAL SERVICE 
(Schedule "CS") 

z . -  ' Billing unL&r this*schedL,a may be-hlcreased by an amount equal to the sum 
of the taxes payable under the gross receipts and compensating tax act and o f  all 
other taxes, fees, or charges (exclusive of Ad Valorem, State and federal Income 
Taxes) payable by the Utility and levied or assessed by any governmental 
authority on the public utility service rendered, or on the right or privilege 
of rendering the service, or on any objector event incidental to the rendition 
o f  the service. 

TERMS OF PAYMENT: 

All btlls are net and payable within 20 days from date of bill. . .  

BILLING PERIOD: 

The bllllng period shall be approximately 1/12 of a year but not necessarily 
a calendar month. 

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE: x 
A late payment charge of one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) per billing X 

period or fraction thereof wlll be charged on all utility service bills and X 
X invoices which are delinquent per the provisions of the tariff. 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 22 

SERVICE O?\i 

Fred A. Lackei, H a h a g e e  



CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 2 

. CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 2 

COMMERCIAL SERVICE 
(Schedule “CS“) 

Page 4 of 5 

. #  
TEMWRARY OR UNUSUAL SERVICE: 

. - .  . -  L 
- .  

. . e  

Temporary a i  unusual s’ekice will be coveret 
* - 9  

by the Itility’s Rules and 
Regulations. In such cases, the minimum charges, conditions o f  furnishing 
substation equipment, connection and disconnectlon of service and special 
conditlons will be covered by special agreement with the customer. The customer 
shall pay for  all expenses involved in furnishing the temporary service. 

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE: 

. .  

(3) 

The Utility’s rules and regulations, filed with the regulatory body 
shall apply. 

All wiring, pole lines and other electrical equipment electrically on 
the load side o f  the metering point shall be considered the 
distrlbution system of the consumer and shall be furnished and 
maintained by the consumer. 

.: 

The consumer’s installation shall conform to City, State and National 
Electrical Codes and Electrical Safety Codes. 

The consumer shall not resell or share electric service with others. 

Special conditions of service shall be covered by contract. 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 22 



CONTINENTAL D I V I D E  ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.  
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 2 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 2 

COMMERCIAL SERVICE 
(Schedule "CS") 

-. .. - 
Page 5 of 5 

. .  
- .. TEMPORARY SURCHARGE: . .  

4 . .  -. . .." -.Upon' approvai if ' t h i s  t a r i ' f f  "by- the  'N.H. Public Service Cmiss idn ,  t h e .  - 
U t i l i t y  sha l l  add t o  the consumer's net b i l l  as computed above, a surcharge of X 
$.003 per kWh sold t o  amortize the one month unrecovered fue l  and purchased power X 
adjustment costs which the U t i l i t y  w i l l  rea l i ze  upon the Comnission's acceptance 
of the U t i l i t y ' s  new base cost of purchased power. (Sentence omitted) 

EFFECT !I WE 
fOFi SERViCE ON 

. .. 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 22 

Fred A. Lackey, M A a g e F  



CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
THIRD REVISED FATE NO. 3 

CANCELING SECOND REVISED RATE NO. 3 

LARGE POWER SERVICE 
(Schedule "LPS" ) 

Page 1 of 6 

AVAILABILITY: 

Available to all consumers within the Utility's service 
area requiring 50 and up to 5,000 kVA of .transformer capacity 
for all types of usage. 

: . 
CHARACTER OF SERVICE: 

. .  
* :  . 

-... -. 

a 

X 

Alternating current, single or three phase, 60 Hertz, at 
available primary or secondary voltages. 

NET RATE PER BILLING PERIOD: (or part thereof/service) 

OPTION I: 

$20.00 per billing period (System Charge) 

-PLUS- . ..- 

Demand charge.per billing period (All kVA): 
Utility-owned Substation: $9.25/kVA 
Consumer-owned Substation: $9.OO/kVA 

-PLUS- 

Energy charge per billing period (All kVAH) : .053/kVAH 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 27 

EF FECflVE 

n l  f l , & f l #  *y7 
Fred A. Lackey, Man6 er % 



I- 

... 

CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC 
THIRD REVISED RATE NO. 3 

CANCELING SECOND REVISED RATE N0.3 

LARGE POWER SERVICE 
(Schedule “LPS) 

Page 2 of 6 

NET RATE PER BILLING PERIOD: (or part thereof/service) (continued) 

OPTION 11: (TIME OF USE OPTION) 

$20.00 per billing period (System Charge) 
. -  

-PLUS- . . .  
- .  . ... 

On - Peak Demand charge per billing period (All kVA): 

Off - 

Energy 

Utility-owned Substation: $10.75/kVA 
Consumer-owned Substation: $10.50/kVA 

-PLUS- 

Peak Demand charge per billing period (All kVA): 
Utility-owned Substation: $2.50/kVA 
Consumer-owned Substation: $2.25/kVA 

-PLUS- 

charge per billing period (All kVAH): .053/kVAH 

i 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 27 

Fred A. Lac 



CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
THIRD REVISED'RATE NO. 3 

CANCELING SECOND REVISED RATE NO. 3 

LARGE POWER SERVICE 
(Schedule "LPS) 

Page 3 of 6 

MINIMUM CHARGES: 

The minimum charges per billing period shall be the highest of 
the following: 

(1) Minim& charges in accordance with Line Extension Policy. ,.. 

Or, $2.00 per kVA of installed transformer capacity. 
. 1 .  ._ ..-- 

(3 Or, minimum charges established by special contract 
between the consumer and the Utility. 

Payment of the minimum charges shall entitle the consumer to 
system, demand and energy charge allowances only during the billing 
period applicable, unless otherwise specified by contract. 

@ METERING: 

The Utility shall install, own and operate suitable demand 
and power factor measuring devices for billing under this schedule. 

BILLING DE=: 

The monthly kVA Billing Demand shall be normally determined by 
measurement by taking the highest 15 minute integrated or 
equivalent thermal kW demand and dividing same by the power factor 
occurring at time of maximum demand or by the average monthly power 
factor as determined by ratcheted rkVAH meter. The monthly kVA 
Billing Demand may also be determined by means of suitable kVA or 
equivalent demand meters. All demands shall be determined to the 
nearest kVA. 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 27 

I EFFECTIVE 
FORSERVICE ON 
l----7 I 

I J 3UL14m 
3 0 9  c.c;JcLc 

Fred A. Lackey, Man'ag . P 



CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
THIRD REVISED RATE NO. 3 

CANCELING SECOND REVISED FLATE NO. 3 

LARGE POWER SERVICE 
(Schedule "LPS" ) 

Page 4 of 6 

BILLING DEMAND: (continued) 

The on-peak billing demand will be the highest kVA demand 
during the period between 6:OO A.M. and 9: .00  P.M. Mountain Standard 
Time. The off-peak excess billing demand will be the highest kVA 
demand during the period between 9:00 P.M. and 6:OO A.M. Mountain . 

' .Standard Time minus the on-peak billing demand, but in no cas9 * -  

shall the 'off-peak excess billing demand be less than .zero. The - 
consumer shall be responsible for any additional meter equipment 
costs when choosing the time of use option. 

FUEL & PURCHASED POWER COST ADJUSTMENT: 

The Utility shall, if the purchased power expense is increased 
or decreased above or below the base purchased power cost of 
$O.O705664/kWh sold, flow through to the users such increases or 
decreases, in accordance with N.M.P.U.C. Rule No. 550. a 
TAX ADJUSTMENT: 

Billing under this schedule may be increased by an amount 
equal to the sum of the taxes payable under the gross receipts and 
compensating tax act and of all other taxes, fees, or charges 
(exclusive of Ad Valorem, State and Federal Income Taxes) payable 
by the Utility and levied or assessed by any governmental authority 
on the public utility service rendered, or on the right or 
privilege of rendering the service, or on any object or event 
incidental to the rendition of the service. 

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 27 

.. 

e 
Fred A. ' Lackey, Maha& 

KEXICO PUBLIC UTILITY CO?I?h!ISSION I 
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.. 

CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
THIRD REVISED RATE NO. 3 

CANCELING SECOND REVISED RATE NO. 3 

LARGE POWER SERVICE 
(Schedule "LPS" ) 

TERMS OF PAYMENT: 

Page 5 of 6 

-1 

The charges for electric service under this schedule are due 
and payable within twenty (20) days from billing date. 

BILLING PERIOD: . .  

The billing period shall be approximately 1/12 of a year but 
not necessarily a calendar month. 

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE: 

A late payment charge of one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) per 
billing period or fraction thereof will be charged on all utility 
service bills and invoices which are delinquent per the provisions 0 of the tariff. 

TEMPORARY OR UNUSUAL SERVICE: 

Temporary or unusual service will be covered by the Utility's 
Rules and Regulations. In such cases, the minimum charges, 
conditions of furnishing substation equipment, connection and 
disconnection of service and special conditions will be covered by 
special agreement with the customer. The customer shall pay for 
all expenses involved in furnishing the temporary service. 

EFFECTIVE 
ADVICE NOTICE NO. 27 

- .  Feed A. Lackey, Mana v e 



CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
THIRD REVISED RATE NO. 3 

CANCELING SECOND REVISED RATE N0.3 

LARGE POWER SERVICE 
(Schedule "LPS" ) 

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE: 

Page 6 of 6 

. .  - . -  
. .  

(1) The Utility's rules and regulations, filed with the 
regulatory-body shall apply. 

.A$l,wi.ring, pole lines and other electrical equipment . -  
electrica-lly on- the load side of the metering point shall 
be considered the distribution system of the consumer and 
Z'hall be furnished and maintained by the consumer. . 

. .  

... . ( 2 )  . .  
. 
. 

(3) The consumer's installation shall conform to City, State 
and National Electrical Codes and Electrical Safety 
Codes. 

(4) The consumer shall not resell or share electrical service 
with others. . .  
Service will be rendered under this schedule for an 
initial contract period of not less than 12 months. 

Special conditions of service shall be covered by 
contract. 

When demand reaches or exceeds 5,000 kW, consumer X 
will be required to enter into contract to meet X 
Plains Electric Generation and Transmission X 
Cooperative Inc.'s Policies. X 

EFFECTIVE I FOR SERVICEON 

I 
I .  

ADVICE NOTICE NO. 27 
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JUN-30-2000 FRI 03:57 PM CDEC FAX NO, 15058632175 

@ CON”ENTAL DNJDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC, 
PURCHASED P O W K  COST ADJUSTMENT FACTORS 

1998 , -  ’ ARlZONA - 1997 

JANUARY 
FEBRUARY 
MMCH 
APRZI, 
MAY 
JUNE 
JULY 
AUGUST 
SEPTEMBER 
OCTOBER 
NOVEMBER 
DECEMBER 

(0.00 127325) 
(0.00127325) 
(0,00127325) 
(0.00052783) 
(0.00052783) 
(0.00052783) 
(0.00052783) 
(0.00323 899) 
(0.00323 899) 
(0.00323899) ’ 
(0.00323899) 
(0.0023 899) 

(0.00323899) 
(0.00323899) 
(0.00069419) 
(0.0006941 9) 
(0.0006941 9) 
(0.0006941 9) 
(0.0006941 9) 
(0.0006941 9) 
(0.00530898) 
(0,00530898) 
(0.00530898) 
(0.00530898) 

P, 02 

- 1999 

(0.001 17940) 
(0.001 17940) 
(0.00 1 17940) 
(0.001 17940) 
(0.00117940) 
(0.001 17940) 
(0.001 17940) 
(0.00017504) 
(0.00017504) 
(0.00017504) 
(0.0001 7504) 
(0.00017504) 



JUN-30-2000 FRI 03:58 PM CDEC FAX NO. 15058632175 

CONTINENTAL DIVfDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, I N C .  
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 1 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 1 O R I G I N A L  
RESIDENTIAL SERVICE 

(Schedule "RS" ) 

Page 1 of 4 

AVAILABILITY: 

Available only for n o r m a l  domestic power u s e  to 
i n d i v i d u a l  r e s i d e n c e s ,  individual d w e l l i n g  units, and 
individual. apartments  w i t h i n  the Utility's service area. 
S e r v i c e  under  this s c h e d u l e  i s  n o t  available for master- 
m e t e r e d  multiple housing  units, business establishments or 
p u b l i c  b u i l d i n g s .  

CHARACTER OF SERVICE: 

A l t e r n a t i n g  c u r r e n t ,  60 Hertz, a t  a v a i l a b l e  secondary 
vol tages .  

NET RATE PER BILLING PERIOD: (of part thereof/service) 

5 . 0 0  p e r  billing p e r i o d  (System C h a r g e )  

-PLUS- 

A l l  kWH per b i l l i n g  period @ S0.0768/kWh 

The system c h a r g e  shall cdver costs of p r o v i d i n g  
electric  s e r v i c e ,  i n c l u d i n g  operation and maintenance of 
f a c i l i t i e s  and o t h e r  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  cos ts ,  

APPROVED FOR FILING 
IN COMPLIANCE W I T H  

---3z;r 
Fred A .  Lackey' ,  N a ' n a g e  

P. 03 

EFFECTIYE A P R I L  1, 1 9 9 2  
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CONTINENTAL D r v I m  ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 1 - 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL HATE NO. 1 

O R l G  INAL 
RESIDENTIAL 5,ERVTCE 

Schedule "RS ) 

Page 2 of 4 

MINIMUM CHARGESL 

The minimum charges per b i l l i n g  p e r i o d  shall be the 
h i g h e s t  of  t h e  following: 

(1) $5.00 per billing p e r i o d  with n o  al lowance  f o r ' l t W h .  

( 2 )  M i n i m u m  charges in accordance w i t h  L ine  Extension 
Policy or contract (no power allowed for the first 
. S 5 . 0 0 ) .  ' 

( 3 )  Minimum charges  e s t a b l i s h e d  by special c o n t r a c t  
between the conaumer and the U t i l i t y .  

Any energy al lowances  shall be made o n l y  during the 
billing period in which  they occurred. 

FUEL & PURCHASED POWER COST ADJUSTMENT: 

The Utility 3hal.l.. i f  the purchased p041er e x p e n s e  is 
i n c r e a s e d  or d e c r e a s e d  above or below the base purchased 
power cost of 90.0656732/kWh sold, flow through to the users 
yuch increasce or decreases, i n  accordance with Arizona 
Corporation Commission R u l e s .  

I APPROVED FOR FILING 
IN C O N P L Z A N C E  WITH I DECISION 8: ~7745 

I 1 

E F F E C T I V E  A P R I L  1, 1992 
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CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC CCiOPERATIVE, INC. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 1 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL, BATE NO. 1, ORIGINAL 
RES IDENTI A I .  SERVf CE 

[ S c h e d u l e  "RS" 1 

Page 3 o f  4 

T A X  ADJUSTMENT: 

Billing u n d e r  t h i s  schedule may be increased by an 
amount equal to t h e  sum o f  the t a x e s  payable u n d e r  the  gross 
r ece ip t s  and compensating t a x  act  and of a l l .  o t h e r  t a x e s ,  
feeds, or charges ( e x c l u s i v e  of Ad Valorem, S t a t e  and F e d e r a l  
Income Taxes) payab1.c by the U t i l i t y  and levied or assessed 
by any governmental authority on t h e  p u b l i c  utility service 
r e n d e r e d ,  or on the right or privilege or r e n d e r i n g  che 
service,  or on a n y  object. or event i n c i d e n t a l  to the 
r e n d i t i o n  of the service, 

TERMS OF PAYMENT: 

All bills are net and p a y a b l e  w i t h i n  20 d a y s  from t h e  
date of b i l l .  

- BILLING PERIOD: 

The b i l l i n g  p e r i o d  shall he approximate ly  1/12 o f  a y e a r  
but: not n e c e s s a r i l y  a c a l e n d a r  monr.1). 

LATE PAYMENT C t l A P ? t - i  

A l u t e  payment charge of one and o n e - h a l f  percent 
(1 1/2%) per b i l l i n g  pe r iod  or f r a c t i o n  thereof will ha 
charged on all u t i l i t y  service b i l l s  and  invoices w h i c : h  a r e  
d e l i n q u e n t  p e r  t h e  prov i . s ionn  of t h e  t a r i f f .  

I APPROVED FOR Fl l lNG 

DECWON #: 5- 
IN COMPLIANCE WITH 

E F F E C T I V E  APRIL 1, 1992 "e 
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CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, I N C .  
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 1 () /j/ G I NAL CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 1 

RESlDENTTAL SERVICE 
(Schedule “RS“) 

Page 4 of 4 

, BUDGET BILLING: 

Upon the r e q u e s t  of the consumer and for h i s  
convenience, the U t i l i t y  s h a l l  provide budget billing i n  
a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  t h e  rules a n d  regulations f i l e d  by the 
U t i l i t y  and approved by t h e  Arizona Corporation Commission. 

TEMPORARY OR UNUSIJAL SERVICE: 

P, 06 

Temporary o r  unusual service w i l l  be  covered by the 
Utility‘s Rules and Regulations. I m u c h  cases t h e  m i n i m u m  
charges, conditions of f u r n i s h i n g s  substation equipment, 
connection and d i s c o n n e c t i o n  of service and special 
c o n d i t i o n s  will be covered by special a g r e e m e n t  w i t h  the 
c u s t o m e r .  The customer s h a l l  pay for a11 expenses i n v o l v e d  
i n  furnishing t h e  temporary service. 

CONDITIONS OF S E R V I C E :  

The Utility’s rules and r e g u l a t i o n s ,  filed with the 
r e g u l a t o r y  body s h a l l  apply. 

All w i r i n g ,  pole  lines and o t h e r  e lec t r ica l  
equiparent electrically O A  t h e  load side of the 
metering p o i n t  s h a l l  be considered t h e  d i s t r i b u t i o n  
s y s t e m  of t h e  consumer and s h a l l  be furnished and 
m a i n t a i n e d  b y  the consumer. 

The consumer’s installation s h a l l .  conform to C i t y ,  
S t a t e  and N a t i o n a l  Electrical Codes a n d  Electrical  
S a f e t y  Codes. 

The c m n s u m e r  s h a l l  not reue1. l  or s h a r e  cZactric 
s e r v i c e  w i t h  o t h e r s .  

S p e c i a l  c o n d i t i o n s  of aorv ice  s h a l l  Le covered by 
con tract + 

APPROVED FUR FlLtNG 

I IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
DECISJON #: 5 7 7 ~  

I 

E F F E C T I V E  A P R I L  1 ,  1992 
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CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 2 

ANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 2 ORIGINAL 
COMMERCIAL SERVICE 
(Schodula "CS") 

Page 1 of 4 

AVAILABILITY: 

A v a i l a b l e  to all commercial, b u s i n e s s ,  p r o f e s s i o n a l ,  
p u b l i c  building and i n d u s t r i a l  loads requiring less than 50 
k V A  of transformer c a p a c i t y  at a single  service l o c a t i o n  
w i t h i n  t h e  Otillry's service area. 

CHARACTER OF SERVICE: 

Alternating c u r r e n t ,  single or three p h a s e ,  G O  H e r t z ,  a t  
a v a i l a b l e  secondary voltages, 

NET RATE PER B I L L I N G  PERIOD: (or p a r t  thereof/service) 

57.50 per b i l l i n g  period (System Charye) 

-PLUS- 

All irWh per b i l l i n g  period @ $0.0791/kWh 

The system c h a r g e  s h a l l  cover coats of providing 
electr ic  service, i n c l u d i n g  operation and m a i n t e n a n c e  of 
facilities and other  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e  costs, 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
DEClSlON #: 5 7 7 4 6  

EFFECTIVE A P R l L  1, 1992 ackey,' d+ Manacj 
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CONTINENTAL DfVXDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, I N C .  
FIRST REVISED RATE NO, 2 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 2 

COMMERCIAL SERVICE 
( S c h e d u l e  "CS") 

ORIGINAL 
Page 2 of 4 

MINIMUM C H A R G E S :  

The minimum charges p e r  billing period shall be t h e  
h i g h e s t  of the following: 

(1) S 7 . 5 0  per billing p e r i o d  w i t h  no allowance for IcWh. 

(2) Minimum charges in accordance with L i n e  E x t e n s i o n  
Policy or contract (no power allowed f o r  the  i i r s t  
37.50) 

(3) Minimum charges  established by special contract 
bsCFtesn the consumer and t h e  U t i l i t y .  

Any e n e r g y  allowances shall be made only during the  
b i l l i n g  p e r i o d  i n  which they o c c u r r e d .  c 
FUEL & PURCHASED POWER COST ADJUSTMENT: 

The U t i l i t y  shall, i f  t h e  purchased power expense is 
increased or d e c r e a s e d  above o r  below the base purchased 
power cost of $0.0656732/kWh s o l d ,  f l o w  through to the user 
s u c h  increases or decreases, in accordance with Arizona 
Corporation Commission Rules. 

APPROVED FOR FILING 1 
I IN COMPLIANCE WITH 

DECISION f: 5 7 f b  h I Fred A."Lack 
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CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, f N C .  
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 2 0 I MAL CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 2 

P, 09 

COMMERCIAL SERVICE - 
(Schedule "CS" 1 

Page 3 of 4 

T A X  ADJUSTMENT: 

Billing under this schedule may be i n c r e a s e d  by an 
a m a u n t  e q u a l  to the sum of the t a x e s  payable under t h e  grass 
receipts  and compensating t a x  act and of all other taxes, 
foes, or charges (exclusive o f  Ad Valorem, State and F e d e r a l  
Income Taxes) payable by the Utility and l e v i e d  or a s s e s s e d  
by  any governmental a u t h o r i t y  o n  t h e  p u b l i c  u t i l i t y  service 
rendered, or on the right or privilege of r e n d e r i n g  t h e  
service,  or on any object or e v e n t  i n c i d e n t a l  to the 
rendition o f  t h e  s e r v i c e .  

TERM OF PAYMENT: 

All b i l l s  are net and payable within 20 days from Late 0: 
bill. 

BILLING PERIOD: 

The b i l l i n g  p e r i o d  s h a l l  be approximately 1/12 of a year 
but n o t  necessarily a calendar month .  

LATE PAYMENT CHARGE: 

A late payment charge of one and o n e - h a l f  p e r c ' e n t  
(1 1/2%) per billing period or fraction thereof will be 
charged on a l l  u t i z i t y  service b a l l s  and i n v o i c e s  w h i c h  a r e  
dalj .nqut!nt  p e r  t h e  prov i s j .mis  of the t i 3 r i f . E .  

IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
DECISION d: 5 7 7 4 6  

EFFECTIYE A P R I L  1, 1992 
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CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 2 

CANCELLING ORIGINAL RATE NO. 2 ORIGINAL 
COMMERCIAL SERVICE 

( S c h e d u l e  ‘@CSn 1 

Page  4 of 4 

TEMPORARY OR U N U S U A L  SERVICE: 

Temporary or unusual service will be c o v e r e d  by t h e  
Utility’s Rules and R e g u l a t i o n s .  In such cases, t h e  minimum 
charges,  c o n d i t i o n s  or f u r n i s h i n g  s u b s t a t i o n  equ ipment ,  
c o n n e c t i o n  and d i s c o n n e c t i o n  of service and special 
c o n d i t i o n s  will be covered by s p e c i a l  agreement w i t h  the 
customer. T h e  customer s h a l l  pay for a11 expenses involved 
i n  f urnishiny the temporary service. 

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE: 

(1) The Utility‘s ru les  and r e g u l a t i o n s ,  filed w i t h  the 
r egu la to ry  body shall a p p l y .  

( 2 )  A l l  w i r i n g ,  pole  l i n e s  and o t h e r  e l ec t r i ca l  
e q u i p m e n t  electrically on the load side of the 
metering point s h a l l  b e  considered . the  distribution 
system of t h e  consumer a n d  s h a l l  h e  f u r n i g l h e d  and 
m a i n t a i n e d  by the consumer. 

(3) The consumer‘s i n s t a l l a t i o n  s h a l l  conform to City, 
S t a t e  and National Electrical Codes and E l e c t r i c a l  
S a f e t y  Codes. 

(4) Tho consumer shall not rese l l  ~r s h a r e  e l e c t r i c  
s e r v i c e  with others. 

(51  S p e c i a l ,  conditions of s e r v i c e  shall be c o v a r e d  by 
contract. 

APPROVED FOR FILING 

DECiSiON #: 57746 
IN COMPLIANCE WITH 

a EFFECTIVE A P R I L  1, 1 3 9 2  
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---. .' CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, TNC. 
S E C O N D  REVISED RATE NO. 3 CANCELLING FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 3 

LARGE POWER SERVICE 
(Schedule ''LPS'' 1 

Page 1 of 6 

Available to a l l  consumers within the Utility's service 
area r e q u i r i n g  50 kVA or more of transformer c a p a c i t y  for a31 
types  of usage. If consumer requires 3,000 KW or more of 
c a p a c i t y  and r e q u i r e s  a transmission delivery voltage of 
115,000 volts or higher, this schedule s h a l l  not be 
applicable. 

CHARACTER OF SERVICE: 

Alternating currant, single or t h r e e  phase, 60 Hertz,  at 
available primary or secondary v o l t a g e s .  

NET RATE PER BILLING PERSOD: (or part thereof/service) 

OPTION I: 

415.00 per billing p e r i o d  ( S y s t e m  C h a r g e )  

-PLUS- 

Demand charge p e r  b i l l i n g  p e r i o d  ( A l l  ] E V A > :  
Utility-owned Substation: SB.2S/kVA 
Consumer-owned Substation: SU.OO/kVA 

-PLUS- 

Energy charge per b i l l i n g  period (All KVAH): 50.04623 IrVAIf 

APPROVED FOR FILING 

DECISION #: .5 774 4 
IN C O M P L I A N C E  WITH I 

E F F E C T I Y E  A P R I L  . 1 ,  1 9 9 2  
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CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, I N C .  
SECOND REVISED RATE NO. 3 *- 

CANCELLING FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 3 

ORIGINAL LARGE POWER SERVICE, 

I 

(Schedule “LPS” 1 

Page 2 of 6 

NET RATE PER BILLING PERIOD: (or part thsrelof service) - 
( c o n t i n u e d )  

OPTION I T :  TIME OF USE OPTION: 

515.00 per  b i l l i n g  period (System Charge) 

-PLUS- 

On - Peak Demand charge per b i l l i n g  p e r i o d  (All LVA): 
Utility-OWn8d Substation: 89.75IkVA 
Consumer-owned S u b s t a t i o n :  09. S O / k V A  

-PLUS- 

O f f  - Peak Demand charge per billing period (All k V A 1 :  
Utility -owned Substation: S2.50IkVA 
Consumer-owned S u b s t a t i o n :  $2.2S/kVA 

-PLUS- 

Energy charge per b i l l i n g  per-idcl ( A l l  kVAH): $OS4623/kVAH 

APPROVED FOR FIUNG 
IN C O M P L I A N C E  WITH 

Fred A .  Lackey 

E F F E C T I V E  A P R I L  1, 1 9 9 2  



.- ..' 

JUN-39-2000 FRI 04:Ol PM CDEC FAX NO, 15058632175 

O R l G  
CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, I N C .  

SECOND' REVISED RATE NO,  3 
CANCELLING FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 3 I 

LARGE POWER SERVICE- 
( S c h e d u l e  "LPS" I 

Page 3 

MINIMUM CHARGES:. 

P, 13 

of 6 

T h e  m i n i m u m  c h a r g e s  per billing period' shall be the 
h i g h e s t  of t h e  following: 

( 3 )  Minimum charges in accordance w i t h  Line Extension 
Policy, 

( 2 )  Or, 92.00 per kVA of installed transformer 
capacity. 

(3) Or, minimum charges established by special contract 
between the consumer and t h e  U t i l i t y .  

Payment of the minimum charges s h a l l  entitle the 
consumer to system, demand and energy charge allowances only 
d u r i n g  t h e  b i l l i n g  p e r i o d  a p p l i c a b l e ,  u n l e s s  otherwise 
specified by contract. 

METERING: 

The Utility shall i n s t a l l ,  own and operate s u i t a b l e  
demand and power factor measuring devices for b i l l l n y  under  
this a c h e d u l e .  

BILLING DEMAND:. 

The monthly kVA B i l l i n g  Demand ohall be normally 
determined by measurement by taking the highest 15 mintire 
integrated or equivalent thermal  kW demand and d i v i d i n g  same 
by t h o  power factor occurring at time o f  m a x i m u m  demand or by 
the tiverage monthl.y power f a c t o r  a s  det .c t ra insd  b y  ;i ra t rchered 
rkVAH mater.  The m o n t h l y  K V A  B i l l i n g  Domancl may a l so  be 
d e t e r m i n e d  b y  means of s u i t a b l e  k V A  or equivalent denland 
mecars. A l l .  demands sfial1. be determined to the n e a r e s t  k V A ,  

APPROVED FOR FILING 
IN COMPLIANCE WITH 

4 I 

E F F E C T I V E  A P R I L  1, 1 9 9 2  
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CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. L..' 

LARGE POWER SERVICE 
( S c h e d u l e  nLPS" ) 

Page 4 of: 6 

EIILLING DEMAND: (continued) 

The on-peak b i l l i n g  demand will be  the highest LVA 
demand during the p e r i o d  between 6:OO A . M .  and 9:OO P.M. 
Mountain S t a n d a r d  Time. The off-peak excess billing demand 
w i l l  be t h e  h i g h o a t  kVR demand d u r i n g  the period between 9:OO 
P.M. and 6:OO A.h. Mountain Standard Time mlnus r h e  on-peak 
billing demand, but i n  no case s h a l l  the off-peak excess 
billing demand be 188s than zero. The  consumer s h a l l  be 
responsible for any additional meter equipment cost when 
c h o o s i n g  the time of use o p t i o n .  

FUEL & P U R C H A S E D  POWER COST ADJUSTMENT: 

The Utility shall, if t h e  purchased power e x p e n s e  ,P 

i n c r e a s e d  or decreased above or below t h e  base purchased  
power c o s t  of 30.0656732/kWh sold, f low t h r o u g h  the users 
s u c h  increases or decreases, i n  a c c o r d a n c e  with t h e  Arizona 
Corporation ConrmSssion'a Rules. 

TAX ADJUSTMENT: 

B i l l i n g  under this s c h e d u l e  may be i n c r e a s e d  by an 
amount equal to the s u m  o f  t a x e s  payable under  the gross 
receipts and compensat ing  t a x  act  and of a 1 1  other taxes ,  
fees, or charges ( e x c l u s i v e  of A d  Valorem, State and Federal  
Inconte Taxes) Payable by t h e  U t i l i t y  and l e v i e d  or asssssed 
by any governmenta l  a u t h o r i t y  o n  t h e  public utility sarvica 
r e n d e r e d ,  or on the r i g h t  or p r i v i l e g e  o f  rendering the 
s e r v i c e ,  os on any o b j e c t  or event incidental to the 
rendition of the serv ice .  

IN COMPLIANCE WITH 
DECISION #: 5 7 7 4 6  

EFFECTIVE APRXL 1 ,  1992 

J Z  
Fred A .  Lackey,' Madage# 

/ 
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CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, YNC. 
I SECOND REVISED RATE NO. 3 

CANCELLING FIRST REVISED RATE NO. 3 
I ' ORIGINAL 

LARGE POWER SERVICE 
(Schedule *LPSn) 

Page 5 of 6 

TERMS OF PAYMENT: 

The charges for electric service under t h i s  schedule are 
d u e  and payable w i t h i n  t w e n t y  (20) d a y s  from billing d a t e .  

BILLING PERIOD: 

The billing p e r i o d  s h a l l  be approximately 1/12 of a year 
but n o t  necessarily a calendar month. 

LATE PAYMENT C H A R G E :  

A late payment charge o f  one and one-half percent 
(1 1/2%) per b i l l i n g  period or fraction thereof w i l l  be 
charged on all u t i l i t y  service bills and i n v o i c e s  w h i c h  are 
d e l i n q u e n t  par t h e  provisions of t h e  tariff. 

TEMPORARY OR U N U S U A L  SERVICE: 

Temporary or u n u s u a l  service will be covered by the 
Utility's Rules and Regulations. In such cases, the minimum 
charges, conditions of f urnlshlng subszaxian e q u i p m e n t ,  
c o n n e c t i o n  and d i s c o n n e c t i o n  of service and s p a c i a l  
conditlans will be covered by special agreement wich t h e  
c u s t o m e r .  The customer shall pay €or a l l  expenses i n v o l v e d  
in f u r n i s h i n g  the temporary service.  

APPROVED FOR f lLlNG 
IN COMPLIANCE WITR 

E F F E C T I V E  APRIL 1 ,  1 9 9 2  

A& 
F r e d  A .  L a o k e  
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CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
SECOND REVISED RATE NO. 3 

CANCELLING FIRST REVISED KATE NO, 3 

ORIGINAI L LARGE POWER SERVICE 
( S c h e d u l e  trLPS" 1 
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CONDITIONE OF SERVICE: 

The Utility's r u l e s  and r e g u l a t i o n s ,  filed with the 
regulatory body shall apply. 

All w i r i n g ,  pole l i n e s  and other electrical 
equipment electrically on the load s i d e  o€ the 
m e t e r i n g  point shall be considered the d i s t r i b u t i o n  
s y s t e m  of the consumer and s h a l l  be f u r n i s h e d  and 
m a i n t a i n e d  by the consumer, 

The consumer's installation shall conform t o  City, 
S t a t e ,  and N a t i o n a l  Electrical Codes and Electrical 
S a f e t y  Codes. 

The consumer shall n o t  resell or share elecrric 
service w i t h  others. 

S e r v i c e  will be r e n d e r e d  u n d e r  t h i s  s c h e d u l e  f o r  
an i n i t i a l  c o n t r a c t  p e r i o d  of n o t  lass t h a n  1 2  
m o n t h s .  

Special conditions of s e r v i c e  shall b e  c o v e r e d  by 
cantract. 

APPROVED FOR FILING 

Fred A .  Lackey, 
EFFECTIVE A P R I L  1, 1992 



NTUA Rate Schedule 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
P.O. BOX 170 FT. DEf IANCE, AZ. 86504 

LFCTR1c TARIFF 

1 on S H E E T  NO, _ _  
I 

V O L U M E  R E V I S I O N  NO. 

V O L U M E  I 

‘ E L E C T R I C  

S E R V I C E  

R A T E  
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S H E E T N O .  - 

- 
R E V I S I O N  NO. 9 

RATE SCHEDULE ER-01 R A T E  CODE i 

- R e s i d e n t i a l  S e r v i c e  

A v a i l a b i l i t y  

A v a i l a b l e  t o  a l l  c u s t o m e r s  l o c a t e d  Sn N a v a j o  C o u n t r y  along e x i s t i n g  lines o f  t h e  
A u t h o r i t y ,  where  f a c i l i t i e s  o f  a d e q u a t e  c a p a c i t y  and s u i t a b l e  v o l t a g e  are  
a d j a c e n t  t o  t h e  p r e m i s e s  t o  b e  s e r v e d .  

A p p l i c a b i l i t y  

A p p l i c a b l e  t o  e l e c t r i c  s e r v i c e  r e q u i r e d  f o r  r e s i d e n t i a l  p u r p o s e s  i n  i n d i v i d u a l  
p r i v a t e  homes o r  i n  i n d i v i d u a l  m e t e r e d  a p a r t m e n t s  w h e r e  s e r v i c e  i s  p r o v i d e d  st 
o n e  p o i n t  o f  d e l i v e r y  t h r o u g h  one m e t e r .  

C h a r a c t e r  o f  S e r v i c e  

S i n g l e  p h a s e ,  60 h e r t z ,  a t  o n e  s t a n d a r d  v o l t a g e  (120/240 or  120!208 as  maybe 
s e l e c t e d ,  s u b j e c t  t o  a v a i l a b i l i t y  a t  t h e  p r e m i s e s ) .  A p p r o v a l  o f  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  
m u s t  b e  o b t a i n e d  p r i o r  t o  t h e  i n s t a l l a t i o n  of a n y  motor h a v i n g  a r a t e d  c a p a c i t y  
o f  f i v e  (5 )  h o r s e p o w e r  o r  more. 

Net H o n t h l y  Rate 

The m o n t h l y  b i l l i n g  s h a l l  be t h e  sum o f  t h e  s e r v i c e  c h a r g e  a n d  t h e  e n e r g y  charge 
s e t  f o r t h  be low:  

S e r v i c e  C h a r q e  ............................... $3.00 

E n e r g y  C h a r g e  

A l l  KWH .................................... $0.0660 per KWH .. 
Monthly  Minimum C h a r g e  

The  m o n t h l y  minimum c h a r g e  shall n o t  be l e s s  t h a n  t h e  m o n t h l y  s e r v i c e  c h a r g e .  

A d j u s t m e n t  f o r  P u r c h a s e  Power Cost Chancles 

The a b o v e  rates are s u b j e c t  t o  i n c r e a s e  or  decrease by t h e  a m o u n t s  b y  w h i c h  t h e  
Cost o f  P u r c h a s e d  Power e x c e e d s  o r  is l e s s  t h a n  $0 .03574 p e r  KWH s o l d .  T h e  Cost 
o f  P u r c h a s e d  Power includes a l l  costs  o f  p u r c h a s e d  c a p a c i t y  and e n e r g y ,  and t h e  
costs  p a i d  ‘to o t h e r s  f o r  t h e  t r a n s m i s s i o n  o f  s u c h  power a n d  e n e r g y .  

Terms and C o n d i t i o n s  

S u b j e c t  t o  t h e  A u t h o r i t y ’ s  r u l e s  a n d  r e g u l a t i o n s  f o r  e l e c t r i c  s e r v i c e .  



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
P.O. BOX 170 FT. D E F I A N C E ,  AZ. 86594 

I 
VOLUME 

112 

9 
SHEET NO. 
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APPROVE@ BY: * DATE OF APPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1992 

RATE SCHEDULE ER-02 RATE CODE 2 

Res ident ia l  Serv ice-E lec t r i c  Heat 

Avai l a b i  1 i t y  

Ava i lab le  t o  approved i n d i v i d u a l  r e s i d e n t i a l  consumers located i n  Navajo Country 
along e x i s t i n g  l i n e s  o f  t he  Au tho r i t y ,  when f a c i l i t i e s  of adequate capaci ty  and 
s u i t a b l e  vo l tage are adjacent t o  t h e  premises t o  be served. 

Appl i cabi 1 i t y  

Appl icable t o  e l e c t r i c  serv ice  requ i red  f o r  permanently i n s t a l  l ed  space heat ing 
and o ther  r e s i d e n t i a l  purposes i n  i n d i v i d u a l  p r i v a t e  homes o r  apartments where 
serv ice  i s  provided and measured a t  one p o i n t  o f  d e l i v e r y  through one meter. 

Character o f  Service 

Sing le phase, 60 he r t z ,  a t  one standard voltage, 120/240 o r  120/208 as may be 
selected, sub jec t  t o  a v a i l a b i l i t y  a t  t he  premises. Approval o f  t h e  Au thc r i t y  
must be obtained p r i o r  t o  t h e  i n s t a l l a t i o n  of any motor having a ra ted  capaci ty  
o f  f i ve ( 5 )  horsepower-. 

Net Monthly Rate 

The monthly b i l l i n g  s h a l l  be t h e  sum of t h e  serv ice  charge and t h e  energy charge 
s e t  f o r t h  be l  ow : 

Service Charge ............................... $7.00 

Enersv Charqe 

A l l  KWH .................................. $0.0580 per  KWH 

Monthly Hinirnurn Charse 

The monthly minimum charge s h a l l  no t  be less than t h e  monthly serv ice  charge. 

Special Condit ions 

A .  The i n s t a l l a t i o n  o f  e l e c t r i c  space heat ing according t o  plans and spec i f i ca -  
t i o n s  f o r  cons t ruc t ion  o f  t h e  residence which have been approved i n  advance 
by t he  Au tho r i t y  i s  a p r e r e q u i s i t e  t o  t h e  a v a i l a b i l i t y  of t h i s  r a t e  
schedule. t h e  Au tho r i t y  does no t  assume any r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  i n s t a l  l a t i o n  
o r  operat ions o f  t h e  customer’s space heat ing  equipment, nor does the  
Au tho r i t y  assume any r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  w i t h  respect t o  t h e  customer’s premises, 
s u c h  as t h e  i n s u l a t i o n  o f  t h e  area t o  be heated. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: October 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
P.O. BOX 170 FT. D E F I A N C E ,  AZ. 86504 

I 
VOLUME 

KATE SCHEDULE ER-02 (continued) RATE CODE 2 

Special Conditions (continued) 

€3. The use of electrical energy as fuel for not less than 90% o f  the space 
hqting requirements of a residence is necessary to qualify f o r  this fate. 

C .  The entire cost of the entrance to service installations under this schedule 
(except the meter) shall be paid for by the customer. 

D. This rate is not available on a seasonal basis, and the Authority reserves 
the right to inspect the premises and make such investigations as may be 
desirable in its sole discretion to determine whether or  not the require- 
ments of this rate schedule are being met. 

E. All heaters larger than 1650 watts shall be designated to operate at 208 
volts o r  240 volts, whichever is available. 

Ad.justment f o r  Purchase Power Cost Chanses 

The above rates are subject to increase o r  decrease by the amounts by which the 
Cost of Purchased Power exceeds or  is less than $0.03574 per KWH sold. The Cost 
of Purchased Power Includes all costs of purchased capacity and energy, and the 
costs paid to others for the transmitting of such power and energy. 

Terms and Conditions 

Subject to the Authority’s rules and regulations for electric service. 

APPROVED BY: -* DATE OF APPROVAL:  S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992 

EFFECTIVE DATE: October 9 1993 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
P.O. BOX 170 FT. DEFIANCE,  AZ. 86504 

I 
VOLUME 

114 
S H E E T  NO. 

10 R E V t S [ O N  NO. 

RATE SCHEDULE EG-03 RATE CODE 3 

General Service 

Availability 

Available to all consumers located in Navajo Country along existing lines of the 
Authority, where facilities o f  adequate capacity and suitable voltage are 
adjacent to the premises to be served. 

Aoplicability 

Applicable for c m r c l a l ,  industrial, institutional, three-phase f a n  and home 
service, and a l l  other uses not ordinarily considered as normal residential, 
home, or farm use. 

Character of Service 

Normally 120/240 volts, single phase, 240 or 480 volts three-phase o r  120/208 
volts four-wire, combination single and three-phase, 60 hertz, through a single 
set o f  service wires. A demand meter is required f o r  service under this rate 
schedu’le when minimum demand is 25 KW o r  more. 

Net Monthly Rate 

The monthly billing shall be the s u m  of the service charge and the demand and 
energy charges set forth below: 

Service Charqe ................................... $6.00 

Demand Charge: 

First 25 KW ................................ None 
Next 175 KW ................................ $4.00 per KW 
Additional KW ................................ $3.00 per KW 

- 
Energy Charqe: 

F i r s t  200 KWH .............................. $0.0900 per KWH 
Next 800 KWH .............................. $0.0600 per KWH 
Next 6,000 KWH .............................. $0.0700 per KWH 

$0.0850 per KWH Additional KWH ............................... 

APPROVED BY:  DATE OF APPROVAL: September 24 9 1992 I 

E F F E C T I V E  DATE: October 9 1993 I 
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P.O. BOX 170 FT. DEFIANCE, AZ. 86504 
S H E E T N O .  __ 

REVISION NO. 
I 

- VO L U M E 

RATE CODE 3 RATE SCHEDULE EG-03 ( c o n t i n u e d )  

D e t e r m i n a t i o n  of B i l l i n g  Demand 

The b i  11 i n g  demand s h a l l  be t h e  maximum 15-minute  i n t e g r a t e d  o r  i h e r n i a l  k i  lowat t  
demand e s t a b l i s h e d  by t h e  c u s t o m e r  d u r i n g  t h e  month  f o r  w h i c h  t h e  bill i s  
r e n d e r e d ,  as  r e c o r d e d  o r  i n d i c a t e d  by t h e  demand meter a n d  a d j u s t e d  f o r  power.  

If t h e  c u s t o m e r ’ s  power f a c t o r  I s  l e s s  t h a n  e i g h t y - f i v e  p e r c e n t  ( 8 5 % ) ’  t h e  
customer s h a l l  b e  r e q u i r e d  t o  p a y  for  e i g h t y - f i v e  (85%) of t h e  KVA a n d  KVAH u s e d .  

Month ly  Minimum Charqe 

The m o n t h l y  minimum c h a r g e  shall b e  t h e  h i g h e s t  o f  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  c h a r g e s :  

1 .  A c h a r g e  o f  $16.20 o r  

2 .  The minimum m o n t h l y  c h a r g e  s p e c i f i e d  i n  t h e  customer’s s e r v i c e  
a p p l i c a t i o n  o r  c o n t r a c t .  

A d j u s t m e n t  f o r  P u r c h a s e  Power Cost Chancres 

The a b o v e  rates a re  s u b j e c t  t o  i n c r e a s e  or  d e c r e a s e  b y  t h e  a m o u n t s  by w h i c h  t h e  
Cost of  P u r c h a s e d  Power e x c e e d s  o r  is  l e s s  t h a n  $0.03574 p e r  KWH s o l d .  The Cost 
of P u r c h a s e d  Power i n c l u d e s  a l l  costs  of p u r c h a s e d  c a p a c i t y  a n d  e n e r g y ,  a n d  t h e  
cos t s  p a i d  t o  o t h e r s  f o r  t h e  t r a n s m i s s i o n  of s u c h  power  and  e n e r g y .  

Terms a n d  C o n d i t i o n s  

S u b j e c t  t o  t h e  A u t h o r i t y ’ s  r u l e s  a n d  r e g u l a t i o n s  f o r  e l e c t r i c  s e r v i c e .  

APPROVED B Y :  DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992 

EFFECTIVE DATE: October 9 1993 
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REVISION NO. 

RATE SCHEDULE EL-04 RATE CODE 4 

Oil and Gas Field Service 

Availability 

Available to all consumers located in Navajo Country along existing lines of the 
Authority, where facilities of adequate capacity and suitable voltage are 
adjacent to the premises to be served. A service application or contract shall 
be entered into between the customer and the Authority for a t e n  of not less 
than 12 months. 

Applicability 

Applicable to electric service for installations o f  oil and gas industry as 
required at one point of deliver through a single meter at primary voltage 
available at the location from the Authority’s lines. 

Character o f  Service 

Normally three-phase, 60 hertz, at the Authority’s primary system voltage, with 
demand metering requi red. 

Net Monthly Rate 

The monthly billing shall be the sum of the service charge and the demand and 
energy charges set forth below: 

Service Charge ................................... $12.00 

Demand Charqe: 

All KW ....................................... $4.25 per KW 

Energy Charge: 

All KUH ...................................... $0.0605 per KWH 

Determination o f  Billing Demand 

The billing demand shall be the maximum 15-minute integrated o r  thermal kilowatt 
demand established by the customer during the month f o r  which the bill Is 
rendered, as recorded o r  indicated by the demand meter and adjusted for power 
factor as provided in the next paragraph. 

’- If the customer’s power factor is less than eighty-five percent (85%)’ the 
qcustomer shall be required to pay for eighty-five (85%) of the KVA and KVAH used. < s 

CL 
.J 

APPROVED BY:  &* 
EFFECTIVE DATE: October 1 7  1993 

DATE OF APPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1992 
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RATE SCHEDULE EL-04 (continued) RATE CODE 4 

Honthly Minimum Charge 

The monthly minimum charge s h a l l  be t h e  h ighest  o f  t h e  f o l l o w i n g  charges: 

1. A charge o f  $90.00 o r  

2. The minimum monthly charge s p e c i f i e d  i n  t h e  customer’s serv ice  
app l i ca t i on  or  cont rac t .  

Adjustment f o r  Purchase Power Cost Changes 

The above ra tes  3re sub jec t  t o  increase or  decrease by t h e  amounts by which the  
Cost of Purchased Power exceeds or  i s  l ess  than $0.03574 cents per KWH sold.  The  
Cost o f  Purchased Power inc ludes a1 1 costs  o f  purchased capaci ty  and energy, and 
the  costs  pa id  t o  o thers  f o r  t h e  transmission of such power and energy. 

T e n s  and Condit ions 

Subject t o  the Au tho r i t y ’ s  r u l e s  and regu la t ions  fo r  e l e c t r i c  serv ice.  
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RATE SCHEDULE EL-05 RATE CODE 5 

L a r g e  Power S e r v i c e  ( P r i m a r y )  

A v a i l a b i l i t y  

Avai l a b l e  t o  a 1  1 c u s t o m e r s  l o c a t e d  i n  N a v a j o  C o u n t r y  w h e r e  faci  1 i t i es  o f  a d e q u a t e  
c a p a c i t y  a n d  s u i t a b l e  v o l t a g e  are a d j a c e n t  t o  t h e  p r e m i s e s  t o  be s e r v e d .  A 
w r i t t e n  c o n t r a c t  s h a l l  b e  entered i n t o  b e t w e e n  t h e  c u s t o m e r  and  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  f o r  
a term o f  n o t  l e s s  t h a n  36 m o n t h s .  

A m l i c a b i l i t y  

A p p l i c a b l e  t o  e lec t r ic  s e r v i c e  a t  p r i m a r y  v o l t a g e ,  as r e q u i r e d  b y  c u s t o m e r s ,  and  
as a v a i l a b l e  f r o m  t h e  A u t h o r i t y .  

C h a r a c t e r  of S e r v i c e  

N o r m a l l y ,  s e r v i c e  a t  p r i m a r y  v o l t a g e ,  2 ,400 v o l t s  o r  h i g h e r ,  t h r e e - p h a s e ,  60 
h e r t z ,  w i t h  demand m e t e r i n g  r e q u i r e d .  

Net H o n t h l y  Rate 

The  n e t  m o n t h l y  b i l l i n g  s h a l l  b e  t h e  sum o f  t h e  demand a n d  e n e r g y . c h a r g e s  se t  
f o r t h  b e l o w ,  s u b j e c t  t o  a d j u s t m e n t s  a s  p r o v i d e d  i n  t h i s  rate s c h e d u l e :  

Demand C h a r q e :  

A l l  KW ( o f  B i l l i n g  Demand) ................... $16.50 p e r  K W  

E n e m y  C h a r q e :  

A l l  KWH ...................................... $0.0200 p e r  KWH 

D e t e r m i n a t i o n  of B i l l i n q  Demand 

T h e  b i l l i n g  demand s h a l l  b e  t h e  h i g h e r  o f  (I) t h e  Contract  Demand as  set f o r t h  
i n  a contract  b e t w e e n  NTUA and t h e  c u s t o m e r ,  o r  (11) t h e  maximum f i f t e e n  (15 )  
m i n u t e s  i n t e g r a t e d  demand e s t a b l i s h e d  b y  t h e  customer d u r i n g  t h e  c u r r e n t  month 
o r  t h e  p r e v i o u s  e l e v e n  (11) m o n t h s ,  as  measured by standard m e t e r i n g  e q u i p m e n t ,  
b u t  i n  no event less t h a n  1000 KW.  

H o n t h l y  Minimum C h a r g e  

T h e  m o n t h l y  m i n i m u m  c h a r g e  s h a l l  be t h e  demand c h a r g e  a p p l i e d  t o  t h e  B i l l i n g  
Demand, as d e t e r m i n e d  a b o v e ,  o r  as p r o v i d e d  i n  t h e  Contract w i t h  t h e  c u s t o m e r .  

APPROVED BY:  4- 
EFFECTIVE DATE: O c t o b e r  1 , 1993 

D A T E  OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992 
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RATE SCHEDULE EL-05 (cont inued) RATE CODE 5 

Adjustment f o r  Purchase Power Cost Changes 

The above ra tes  are  sub jec t  t o  increase o r  decrease by t h e  amounts by which t h e  
Cost o f  Purchased Power exceeds o r  i s  l ess  than $0.03574 per  KWH so ld.  The Cost 
o f  Purchased Power inc ludes  a l l  costs  o f  purchased capac i ty  and energy, and t h e  
costs  pa id  t o  others f o r  t h e  t ransmiss ion o f  such power and energy. 

Power Factor Ad.justment 

The measured demand may be adjusted i f ,  du r ing  t h e  pe r iod  o f  customer’s maximum 
demand, the  power f a c t o r  i s  found t o  be l ess  than n i n e t y  percent (90%). The 
adjustment s h a l l  be made by inc reas ing  the  measured demand one k i l o w a t t  f o r  each 
KVA o r  f r a c t i o n  thereo f  by which t h e  ac tua l  KVA demand exceeds t h e  KVA demand a t  
n ine ty  percent (90%) power f a c t o r .  

Peak Demand Adjustment 

I n  the  event t he  momentary peak demands of customer r e s u l t  i n  an increase i n  
k i l o w a t t  B i l l i n g  Demand t o  NTUA by a supp l i e r  o f  power t o  NTUA, B l i k e  increase 
i n  the  b i l l i n g  Demand w i l l  be made t o  t h e  customer. 

Excess Del i very 

The d e l i v e r y  o f  power i n  excess o f  t h e  con t rac t  demand shall no t  o b l i g a t e  NTUA 
t o  continue the  d e l i v e r y  o f  such excess; and i n  t h e  event t h a t  NTUA i s  unable t o  
cont inue such d e l i v e r i e s ,  t h e  b i l l i n g  demand s h a l l  reduce accord ing ly .  

Terms and Condit ions 

Subject  t o  the  A u t h o r i t y ’ s  r u l e s  and regu la t ions  f o r  e l e c t r i c  serv ice .  

APPROVED B Y :  DATE OF A P P R O V A L :  September  2 4 ,  1992 

E F F E C T I V E  DATE:  October 1993 
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RATE CODE 6 

Pub l i c  S t ree t ,  Hiqhway and P r i v a t e  Area L i q h t i n q  

A v a i l a b i l i t y  

Ava i l ab le  t o  i n d i v i d u a l  customers, p u b l i c  agencies and government ins t rumenta l i -  
t i e s ,  or other  customers o f  t h e  Au tho r i t y  I n  Navajo Country located along 
e x i s t i n g  l i n e s  o f  t h e  Au tho r i t y .  

A p p l i c a b i l i t y  

App l icab le  t o  dusk t o  dawn overhead l i g h t i n g  o f  s t r e e t s ,  thoroughfares, p r i v a t e  
areas, a l l e y s ,  grounds, and o ther  areas. 

Character o f  Serv ice 

The A u t h o r i t y  w i l l  i n s t a l l  a dusk t o  dawn lumina i re  on e x i s t i n g  serv ice  poles and 
main ta in  the  necessary f a c i l i t i e s ,  i n c l u d i n g  lamps, f i x t u r e s ,  con t ro l s ,  and so 
f o r t h  i n  accordance w i t h  i t s  s p e c i f i c a t i o n s ;  and supply e l e c t r i c  energy f o r  dusk 
t o  dawn operat ion o f  t h e  lamps. Lamp replacements w i l l  be made by the  A u t h o r i t y  
w i t h i n  a reasonable t ime o f  a repor ted outage. 

Net Monthly Rate 

The ne t  monthly b i l l i n g  s h a l l  be as fo l l ows :  

Monthly Charge ..................................... $7.75 per  Lamp 

Special Condit ions - Dusk t o  Dawn L i s h t s  

A .  General. A l l  c u r r e n t l y  a v a i l a b l e  dusk t o  dawn l i g h t s  are equipped w i t h  120 
v o l t ,  2 w i r e  b a l l a s t s .  Other than t h e  lamp, f i x t u r e  and connection t o  tile 
unmetered supply on an e x i s t i n g  po le  and a l l  f a c i l i t i e s  i n c l u d i n g  new poles 
and se rv i ce  cable s h a l l  be considered as extens ion f a c i l i t i e s  and s h a l l  be 
p a i d  f o r  by t h e  customer. 

B .  Establishment Fee. A non-refundable establ ishment fee  o f  $10.00 per  lamp 
s h a l l  b e  p a l d  i n  advance by t h e  customer f o r t h e  establ ishment o f  a dusk t o  
dawn l i g h t .  

C.  Extensions. The maximum span on unguyed #4 duplex i s  150 fee t .  If an 
extens ion exceeds 150 f e e t ,  an add i t i ona l  po le  w i l l  be requ i red  f o r  each 
150-foot span o r  p o r t i o n  thereo f .  Customer s h a l l  pay a l l  costs a t t r i b u t a b l e  
t o  new f a c i l i t i e s  and extensions. 

D.  Ownership o f  F a c i l i t i e s .  A l l  lamps, po les,  and f i x t u r e s  s h a l l  be and remain 
t h e  proper ty  o f  t h e  Au tho r i t y .  

November 1 ,  1992 EFFECTIVE DATE: 
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E. Vandalism. Excessive vandalism, as determined in the discretion o f  the 
Authority, shall result in removal of the light and any extension facili- 
ties. The Authority may give reasonable notice of its intention to 
terminate service f o r  vandalism. 

F. Maintenance. The customer shall be responsible for any damage to facilities 
caused by him o r  instrumentalities under his control. Maintenance of all 
facilities shall be provided by the Authority. 

G. Outaqes. It shall be the duty o f  the customer to report to the Authority 
the failure o f  any lamp to burn  o r  to burn  adequately. The Authority will, 
during regular working hours, perform the necessary maintenance to restore 
proper service within a reasonable time. 

Tens and Conditions 

Subject to the Authority's rules and regulations f o r  electric service. 

A P P R O V E D  BY: & A% D A T E O F A P P R O V A L :  September 24, 1992 
November 1 ,  1992 L' 

E F F E C T I V E  D A T E :  
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Special Area L i g h t i n g  Serv ice 

A v a i l a b i l i t y  

Ava i l ab le  t o  p u b l i c  agencies and government i n s t r u m e n t a l i t i e s ,  o r  o ther  customers 
o f  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  i n  Navajo Country located along e x i s t i n g  l i n e s  o f  t h e  Au tho r i t y .  

A p p l i c a b i l i t y  

App l icab le  t o  l i g h t i n g  o f  stadiums, a t h l e t i c  grounds, rodeo arenas and o ther  
spec ia l  areas f o r  pub1 i c  agencies, government i n s t r u m e n t a l i t i e s ,  and o thers  under 
a con t rac t  f o r  a s p e c i f i e d  term, where t h e  Au tho r i t y  fu rn ishes  e l e c t r i c  se rv i ce  
t o  f a c i l i t i e s  owned by t h e  customer. 

Character of Serv ice 

Normally, s i n g l e  phase, 60 he r t z ,  a t  one standard vo l tage,  as may be se lec ted  
(no t  over 480 v o l t s ) ,  sub jec t  t o  a v a i l a b i l i t y  a t  t h e  premises. 

Net Monthly Rate 

The monthly b i l l i n g  s h a l l  be i n  accordance w i t h  con t rac t  terms. 

Special Condi t ions 

A .  Serv ice under t h i s  r a t e  i s  l i m i t e d  t o  those s i t u a t i o n s  where h igh  l eve l  
l i g h t i n g  i s  requi red f o r  a spec i f i ed  area, such as an a t h l e t i c  f i e l d ,  rodeo 
arena and so f o r t h .  

B.  I n d i v i d u a l  con t rac ts  must be negot ia ted w i t h  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  f o r  such appl ica-  
t i o n s .  

C.  The A u t h o r i t y  reserves t h e  r i g h t  t o  requ i re  a deposi t  guaranteeing 
performance by t h e  customer o f  t he  cont rac t  payments. 

Terms and Condit ions 

Subject t o  t h e  A u t h o r i t y ’ s  r u l e s  and regu la t ions  f o r  e l e c t r i c  se rv i ce  

APPROVED BY:  DATEOFAPPROVAL:  September 2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
EFFECTIVE DATE: November 1, 1 9 9 2  
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I r r i  qat i on 

A v a i l a b i l i t y  

A v a i l a b l e  t o  a l l  c o n s u m e r s  l o c a t e d  i n  N a v a j o  C o u n t r y  a l o n g  e x i s t i n g  l i n e s  o f  t h e  
A u t h o r i t y ,  w h e r e  f a c i l i t i e s  of a d e q u a t e  c a p a c i t y  a n d  s u i t a b l e  v o l t a g e  a re  
a d j a c e n t  t o  t h e  p r e m i s e s  t o  b e  s e r v e d .  

1 A n p l i c a b i l i t y  

1 A p p l i c a b l e  f o r  i r r i g a t i n g  pumping s e r v i c e  u s e d  f o r  b u s i n e s s  p u r p o s e s .  
I 

C h a r a c t e r  of S e r v i c e  

N o r m a l l y  120/240 v o l t s ,  s i n g l e  p h a s e ,  240 o r  480 v o l t s  t h r e e - p h a s e  o r  120/208 o r  
277/480 v o l t s  f o u r - w i r e ,  c o m b i n a t i o n  s i n g l e  and t h r e e - p h a s e ,  60 h e r t z ,  t h r o u g h  
a s i n g l e  set o f  service wires. A demand meter is r e q u i r e d  f o r  service u n d e r  t h i s  
ra te  s c h e d u l e .  

Net Month1 y Rate 

The m o n t h l y  b i l l i n g  s h a l l  be t h e  sum o f  t h e  s e r v i c e  c h a r g e  a n d  t h e  demand a n d  
e n e r g y  c h a r g e s  set f o r t h  be low:  ! 

1 
................................... S e r v i c e  C h a r s e  $ 6 . 0 0  I I 

Demand Charqe :  

A l l  K W  ....................................... $3.50 p e r  K W  

Energy  C h a r q e :  

A l l  KWH ...................................... $0.0570 p e r  KWH 

O e t e r m i n a t i o n  of B i l l i n s  Demand 

The b i l l i n g  demand s h a l l  b e  t h e  maximum 15-minute  i n t e g r a t e d  o r  t h e r m a l  k i l o w a t t  
demand e s t a b l i s h e d  b y  t h e  c u s t o m e r  d u r i n g  t h e  month  f o r  which  t h e  b i l l  is  
r e n d e r e d ,  as  r e c o r d e d  o r  i n d i c a t e d  by t h e  demand meter a n d  a d j u s t e d  fo r  power 
f a c t o r  2s p r o v i d e d  i n  t h e  n e x t  p a r a g r a p h ,  

If t h e  customer’s power f a c t o r  is l e s s  t h a n  n i n e t y  p e r c e n t  (go%), t h e  c u s t o m e r  
s h a l l  b e  r e q u i r e d  t o  p a y  f o r  n i n e t y  (90%) of t h e  KVA and KVAH u s e d  a t  t h e  K W  
Demand C h a r g e  f o r  KVA a n d  a t  t h e  KWH E n e r g y  C h a r g e  f o r  KVAH. 

APPROVED BY:  w’ DATE OF APPROVAL:  September 24, 1992 
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Monthly Minimum Charqe 

T h e  monthly minimum charge s h a l l  be t h e  h i g h e s t  of t h e  fol lowing charges:  

1 .  A charge of $17 .55  o r  

2 .  T h e  minimum monthly charge spec i f i ed  i n  t h e  customer’s  s e r v i c e  
app l i ca t ion  o r  c o n t r a c t .  

Adjustment f o r  Purchase Power Cost Chanqes 

T h e  above r a t e s  a r e  s u b j e c t  t o  increase  o r  decrease  by t h e  amounts by which t h e  
Cost of Purchased Power exceeds o r  i s  less than $0.03574 per KWH s o l d .  T h e  Cost 
of Purchased Power inc ludes  a l l  c o s t s  o f  purchased capac i ty  and e n e r g y ,  and t h e  
c o s t s  paid t o  o t h e r s  f o r  t h e  t ransmission o f  such power and energy. 

Terms and Conditions 

Subjec t  t o  the Au thor i ty ’ s  r u l e s  and r egu la t ions  f o r  e l e c t r i c  s e r v i c e .  

APPROVED B Y :  /$L DATE O F  APPROVAL:  September  24 1992 
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Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Service 
(Experimental Pi lot Program) 

Availability 

Available to customers who do not reside along existing e,xtric lines of the 
Authority, who resides in areas reasonably accessible by standard utility 
vehicles, and who enter into a Sola r  Photovoltaic Service Agreement with the 
Authority. 

El i si bi 1 i ty 

The Authority has the sole right to determine eligibility f o r  services under this 
schedule. 

Character of Service 

Three types o f  PV systems are available: ( 1 )  Two-module (120 Wp) DC system; (2) 
four-module (240Wp) DC system; and (3) four-module (240 Wp) A C  system. A system 
will be specified by the Authority based on t h e  service requirements requested 
by the customer. 

A l l  repair and maintenance of the PV system will be provided by the Authority. 
Prudent utility practices will be followed for all necessary repair or 
maintenance. The Authority will use i t s  best effort to provide the customer ?. 

minimum of 24 hours notice prior to performing preventative maintenance. 

The customer is responsible for providing the customer site and the connections 
from the point of service to the custmr’s facilities, and for permitting the 
appropriate access to the PV system. The customer site and customer connections 
must be approved by the Authority and must meet all safety codes. 

Net Monthly Rate 

The monthiy charge for service under this schedule is as follows: 

Type of PV System *Rate Code Rate 

120 Wp System 
240 Wp System 

i a  
19 

$35.00 p e r  month 
$40.00 per month 

Special Conditions 

A .  In the event the customer cancels the Sola r  PV Service Agreement, the 
customer shall pay to the Authority the “non-salvable cost“ of the PV 
system. 

APPROVED BY: i DATE OF APPROVAL:  A p r i l  1, 1994 

E f  F E C T l V E  DATE:  )larch 10, 1994 
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B. Any use by the  customer of t h e  PV system not  i n  compliance wi th  the  design 
s p e c i f i c a t i o n s  f o r  such system o r  not  i n  compliance w i t h  t h e  p rov i s ions  of 
t h i s  schedule may r e s u l t  i n  the  removal by t h e  A u t h o r i t y  o f  t h e  PV system, 

C .  The A u t h o r i t y  reserves the  r i g h t  t o  remove t h e  PV system if t h e  A u t h o r i t y  
determines t h a t  t h e  cont inued use o f  t h e  f a c i l i t i e s  by the  customer poses a 
t h r e a t  o f  i n j u r y  o r  damage t o  persons o r  proper ty .  

D. In t h e  event t h e  A u t h o r i t y  removes t h e  PV system under the  p rov i s ions  o f  
Sect ions B and C above, t h e  customer w i l l  be ob l i ga ted  t o  pay t o  the  
A u t h o r i t y  t h e  “non-salvable c o s t ”  of t h e  PV system. 

E. E l e c t r i c  se rv i ce  under t h i s  schedule i s  l i m i t e d  t o  t h a t  prov ided by t h e  PV 
system. The A u t h o r i t y  i s  under no o b l i g a t i o n  t o  p rov ide  e l e c t r i c  se rv i ce  t o  
t h e  customer a t  any t ime by means o f  t h e  A u t h o r i t y ’ s  t ransmiss ion o r  
d i s t r i b u t i o n  system. 

F. The PV f a c i l i t i e s  t o  be i n s t a l l e d  pursuant t o  t h e  agreement w i l l  remain the  
proper ty  o f  t h e  Navajo Tr ibaJ U t i l i t y  Au tho r i t y .  Th is  program i s  develop- 
mental and w h i l e  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  in tends t o  promote and expand i t s  PV 
c a p a b i l i t y ,  it must be recognized t h a t  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  i s  no t  p resen t l y  ab le 
t o  assure long term a v a i l a b i l i t y  o f  se rv i ce  o r  r a t e  l e v e l s .  The A u t h o r i t y  
thus  reserves t h e  r i g h t  t o  make changes i n  r a t e s  o r ,  i f  necessary, t o  
te rmina te  t h e  PV se rv i ce  a v a i l a b i l i t y .  

G. The A u t h o r i t y  s h a l l  have s o l e  ownership of t h e  PV system. 

Terms and Condi t ions 

A .  Subject  t o  the  A u t h o r i t y ’ s  r u l e s  and regu la t i ons  f o r  e l e c t r i c  serv ice .  

8 .  New se rv i ce  under t h i s  schedule w i l l  no t  be a v a i l a b l e  a f t e r  A p r i l  1, 1996.  



REVISION HO. 2 NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
P.O.  Box 170 

Ft. Defiance, AZ 86504 

Life SupDort/Senior Citizens Discount Program 
(Residential Electric Service) 

Avai labi 1 ity 

Available to all qualified customers located in Navajo Country along existing 
lines of the Authority, where facilities o f  adequate capacity and suitable 
voltage are adjacent to t h e  premises to be served. 

Appl icabi 1 ity 

Applicable to electric service billed under Rate Schedule ER-01 where the 
custmr has qualified f o r  the discounted rate as specified in the Authority’s 
plan f o r  administration. A l l  provisions of the Residential Rate Schedule ER-01 
will a p p l y  except as modified herein, 

Net Monthly Rate 

The monthly billing shall be in the accordance with Rate Schedule ER-01 except 
as follows: 

Service Charge ................................... $2.79 

P l u s :  

A l l  KW ....................................... $0.0614 per KWH 

Month1 y M i  nimum Charqe 

The monthly minimum charge shall not be less than the monthly service charge. 

DATE O f  APPROVAL: September 24,1993 

EFFECTIVE DATE: October 1 ,  1993 a 



e 
NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY RNISION No. 2 

P.O. Box 170 
Ft. Defiance, AZ 86504 

RATE SCHEDULE ER-02 
RIDER A 

RATE CODE 22 

Life Support/Senior Citizens Discount Proqram 
(Residential Service Electric Heat) 

Availability 

Available to all qualified customers located in Navajo Country along existing 
lines of the Authority, where facilities of adequate capacity and suitable 
voltage are adjacent to the premises to be served. 

Applicability 

Applicable to electric service billed under Rate Schedule ER-02 where the 
customer has qualified for the discounted rate as specified in the Authority’s 
plan f o r  administration. All provtsions of the Residential Rate Schedule ER-02 
will apply except as modified herein. 

Net Monthly Rate 

The monthly billing shall be in the accordance with Rate Schedule ER-02 except 
as follows: 

Service Charge $6.51 
0 ................................... 

Plus: 

All KW ....................................... $0.0539 per KWH 

Monthly Minimum Charge 

The monthly minimum charge shall not be less than the monthly service charge. 

DATE OF APPROVAL: September 24,1993 

EFFECTIVE DATE: October 1 ,  1993 
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VOLUME V 
/,- 

TARIFF 

SHEETNO. 565 

REVISION NO. 

RULES A N D  REGULATIONS 

Rule 25 
Resale o f  Utility 

A .  Resale of utility se rv ice(s1  o r  the  furn ish ing  of utility s e rv i ce ( s )  t o  
o the r s  by a n y  customer will not be permit ted,  except  where such  resale 
o r  furnishing of se rv ice  is provided for  in t h e  applicable r a t e  schedule 
and by writ ten agreement  between t h e  customer and  t h e  Authori ty .  
Penalties a s  provided u n d e r  the  Table of  Fees and  Charges  may be 
charged  for  misuse of uti l i ty s e r v i c e ( s ) .  
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RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Ru le  26 
Senior Ci t izen o r  L i fe  SuDDort 

Customer Discount 

A. Residential customers o f  t he  A u t h o r i t y  who meet the  fol lowing c r i te r ia ,  
shal l  b e  g ran ted  a d iscount  of seven percent  (7%)  o f  t h e  regu la r  charges 
for  t h e  pa r t i cu la r  serv ice prov ided.  

B. Each customer must  p rov ide  reasonable p roo f  t ha t  t h e  customer meets the  
c r i t e r i a  r e q u i r e d  and each customer shall execute an application, under  
oath, f o r  such  d iscount  as requested by the  A u t h o r i t y .  

C. Quali f icat ion c r i t e r i a  a r e  as follows: 

1. T h e  customer o r  h i s / h e r  spouse must be  60 years o f  age o r  older; o r  
t h e  customer must  be  ce r t i f i ed  by h i s / h e r  a t tend ing  l icensed phys ic ian 
as r e q u i r i n g  cont inuous utility service due t o  heal th  condit ions which 
cou ld  be  l i f e  th rea ten ing  if utility service is  discontinued. 

2 .  Household income (customer, spouse - and a n y  res ident  ch i l d ren )  is  
less than  $16,000 p e r  year  except  t h a t  t h i s  household income c r i t e r i a  
shal l  n o t  apply t o  a customer on  a l i fe  suppor t  system. 

3 .  Serv ice is  p rov ided  to  a n  ind iv idua l l y  metered s ing le family dwel l ing 
unit. 

D. The  d iscount  p rov ided  by th i s  r u l e  is  temporary and  shall be rev iewed by 
t h e  A u t h o r i t y  a t  regu la r  in te rva ls .  The A u t h o r i t y  reserves t h e  right t o  
terminate the  d iscount ,  o r  t o  make such rev is ions o r  modifications as the  
A u t h o r i t y ,  in i t s  sole d iscret ion,  deems desirable a t  any time. 

APPROVED BY: D A T E O F  APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

C 

B 

D 

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992 
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R U L E  A N D  REGULATIONS 

R u l e  27 
Heater Lighting Charge  

A .  N A T U R A L  G A S  

1. T h e  Author i ty  will honor  without c h a r g e  r e q u e s t s  of cus tomers  fo r  t h e  
l ight ing of t h e i r  heat ing equipment  a t  t h e  beginning of t h e  heat ing 
season ,  provided t h a t  t h e  r e q u e s t  f o r  s u c h  l ight ing se rv ice  is 
received pr ior  to  t h e  da t e  specified for  s u c h  heat ing season .  Such  
d a t e  shall  be  fixed b y  t h e  Author i ty  annual ly  a n d  may v a r y  from a rea  
to a r e a ,  b u t  in no e v e n t  shall  be ear l ie r  t han  A u g u s t  1 4  in a n y  y e a r .  

2 .  T h e  Author i ty  shall g ive  a t  least  t h i r t y  ( 3 0 )  d a y s  advance  notice of 
s u c h  d a t e  of appropr i a t e  local publ ic i ty .  All r e q u e s t s  received for  
hea te r  l ighting se rv ice  a f t e r  t h e  d a t e  specified b y  t h e  Authori ty  shall 
be billed a t  actual  cos t  a n d  s u c h  r e q u e s t s  received a f t e r  t h e  d a t e  
specified f o r  t h e  a rea  shall  be honored only a f t e r  all requests 
received before  t h e  d a t e  specified have  been fulfilled. 

APPROVED BY: DATEOFAPPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992  

EFFECTIVE DATE: 9 1992 
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Rule 28 
Rates and Unit of Measurement 

A .  ELECTRIC 

1 .  The  r a t e  and  fees  to be charged  by  and  paid to  the  Authority for 
electric serv ice  shall be the  ra tes  and fees of  t he  Authori ty  legally in 
effect  and  on file a t  t he  office of t he  Authori ty .  

2 .  All billing uni t s  to  which ra tes  set for th  in t h e  Authori ty 's  ra te  
schedules  a r e  applied a r e  s ta ted  in Kilowatt Hour ( K W H )  a n d ,  for 
cer ta in  ra te  schedules ,  in Kilowatt (KW) demand. Unless otherwise 
provided by  special cont rac t ,  t h e  number of K W H  delivered to any  
customer shall be determined by  measuring t h e  ene rgy  flowing 
th rough  t h a t  customer's  meter; a n d ,  t h e  number of K W  demand 
delivered to a n y  customer shall be determined by  measuring the  rate  
a t  which e n e r g y  is delivered through t h a t  customer 's  demand meter. 

3 .  Certain r a t e  schedules  requi re  t h e  customer to  maintain a given power 
factor .  Where s u c h  is the  case ,  billing uni ts  may change  from K W H  
and  KW to KVAH (Kilovolt Ampere Hours) and KVA (Kilovolt Ampere) .  

B .  NATURAL GAS 

1 .  T h e  r a t e  and  fees to be charged  by and  paid t o  t h e  Authority for 
natural  g a s  serv ice  shall be  the  r a t e s  of t h e  Authority legally in 
effect  and on file a t  t h e  office of t he  Authori ty .  

2 .  All billing uni t s  to  which ra tes  set for th  in t h e  Authori ty 's  ra te  
schedules  a r e  applied a r e  s ta ted  in Therms.  T h e  term "Therm" means 
1 0 0 , 0 0 0  Bri t ish Thermal Units ( B T U ' s )  . Unless otherwise provided by 
special con t r ac t ,  t h e  number of therms delivered to a n y  customer 
shall be determined by measuring t h e  volume of g a s  passing through 
tha t  customer 's  meter du r ing  a n y  month to t h e  nearest  1 ,000  cubic 
feet  (MCF); and  multiplying tha t  volume by  an  appropr ia te  Therm 
Conversion Factor a s  provided in Subsection B.  4 .  below and  mul t i -  
plying t h a t  resu l t  by .01 .  

3 .  For t h e  pu rpose  of determining volumes del ivered,  a cubic foot shall 
be  defined a s  t h a t  quant i ty  of gas  which occupies one cubic  foot of 
space .  Factors  may be applied to compensate for  differences in 
temperature  and  p res su re  above and  below s t anda rd  conditions. A 
s t anda rd  cubic  foot of gas shall be  tha t  quant i ty  of g a s  sa tura ted  
with water vapor ,  which a t  a temperature  of 60 degrees  Fahrenheit  
and  a p r e s s u r e  of 14 .73  pounds p e r  s q u a r e  inch absolute  (ps ia )  
occupies one cubic foot. 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4  9 1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November  7 1992 
p' I 
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2 u l e  38 ( c o n t i n u e d )  

4 .  T h e  T h e r m  Convers ion  F a c t o r  shall  be d e t e r n i n e d  on a q u a r t e r l y  
b a s i s  a n d  s h a l l  be t h e  p r o d u c t  o f  ( 1  ) t h e  weighted a v e r a g e  o f  t h e  
h e a t i n g  v a l u e  ( B T U  per c u b i c  f o o t )  of t h e  g a s  d e l i v e r e d  to  t h e  
A u t h o r i t y  ( s t a t e d  a t  14.73 p s i a )  a n d  ( 2 )  t h e  f a c t o r  u s e d  to  c o n v e r t  
t h e  m e t e r i n g  p r e s s u r e  a p p r o p r i a t e  t o  t h e  s t a n d a r d  p r e s s u r e  of 14.73 
p s i a .  T h e  following t a b l e  ind ica tes  t h e  v a l u e s  t o  be u s e d  in p r e s s u r e  
convers ion  : 

Pressure 
Zone 

A u t h o r i t y  
Del iverv  Area 

I 

2 

3 

fi 

- 
3 

5 

5 .  T h e  A u t h o r i t y  

Navajo 

F o r t  D e i  ia nce  
Window Rock 
C a n a d o  
Kin I ichee 
T o h a t c h i  
Twin Lakes  
Coyote Canyon 

Dilkon 
Greasewood 
Toyei 

S hi p r o c  k 
f r u i t l a n d  
NAP1 
Chinle  
Many Farms 
Nazlini 

L e u p p  
' A  o n t ez u ma C r ee k 
A n e t h  

F o u r  C o r n e r s  Plant  ( 1  4 .73 ) 

Factor  t o  C o n v e r t  
;Meter P r e s s u r e  t o  

1 4 . 7 3  PSlA 

0.794 

0. a 0 9  

o .  a 2 9  

0 . 3 4 5  

0 . 5 5 5  

1 . o o  

hall h a v e  t h e  r i g h t  b u t  shal l  no t  be obl igated to 
install  t emper .a ture  r e c o r d i n g  o r  compensa t ing  e q u i p m e n t  a s  p a r t  o f  
t h e  faci l i t ies  u s e d  in m e a s u r i n g  t h e  g a s  d e l i v e r e d  t o  a n y  non-  
res ident ia l  c u s t o m e r .  

A??ROVED BY:  DATEOFAPPROVAL:  S e p t e m b e r  2 & ,  1 9 9 2  
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R u l e  28 ( c o n t i n u e d )  

c .  WATER 

1 .  T h e  rate a n d  fees t o  be c h a r g e d  b y  a n d  p a i d  t o  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  f o r  water 
service s h a l l  be t h e  rates a n d  fees of t h e  A u t h o r i t y  l e g a l l y  i n  effect 
and OR f i l e  a t  t h e  o - f f i c e  of t h e  A u t h o r i t y .  

2 .  A l l  b i l l i n g  u n i t s  t o  w h i c h  rates set f o r t h  i n  t h e  A u t h o r i t y ’ s  ra te  
s c h e d u l e s  are a p p l i e d  are i n  1 , 0 0 0  g a l l o n  u n i t s .  U n l e s s  o t h e r w i s e  
p r o v i d e d  by special c o n t r a c t ,  t h e  number of g a l l o n s  d e l i v e r e d  t o  a n y  
c u s t o m e r  s h a l l  be d e t e r m i n e d  by m e a s u r i n g  t h e  volume of water p a s s i n g  
t h r o u g h  t h a t  c u s t o m e r ’ s  meter d u r i n g  a n y  m o n t h  t o  t h e  nearest 1,000 
g a l  l o n s .  

D. TF 

1 .  T h e  r a t e  a n d  fees t o  be c h a r g e d  b y  a n d  p a i d  t o  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  f o r  
wastewater s e r v i c e  s h a l l  be t h e  rates o f  tte A u t b r i t y  l e g a l  1 y i n  effect 
a n d  on f i l e  a t  t h e  o f f i ce  o f  t h e  A u t h o r i t y .  

2 .  A l l  b i l l i n g  u n i t s  t o  w n i c h  rates set f o r t h  i n  t h e  A u t h o r i t y ’ s  r a t e  
s c h e d u l e s  are  a p p l i e d  a r e  i n  1 , 0 0 0  g a l l o n s ,  a s  d e t e r m i n e d  by water 
d e l i v e r s .  U n l e s s  o t h e r w i s e  p r o v i d e d  b y  s p e c i a l  c o n t r a c t ,  t h e  number 
g a l l o n s  b i l l e d  s h a l l  b e  d e t e r m i n e d  b y  t h e  m o n t h l y  a v e r a g e  number of 
q a l l o n s  of water d e l i v e r e d  t o  m y  c u s t o m e r  d u r i n g  t h e  M n t h s  of O c t o b e r ,  
November,  a n d  k c e m b e r ,  t o  t h e  n e a r e s t  1 , 0 0 0  g a l l o n s .  

a .  If m e t e r e d  u s a g e  d a t a  f o r  O c t o b e r ,  November,  a n d  December is n o t  
a v a i l a b l e  f o r  a n y  c u s t o m e r  f o r  a n y  r e a s o n ,  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  w i l l  use 
t h e  b e s t  a v a i l a b l e  e v i d e n c e  f o r  b i l l i n g  c a l c u l a t i o n  p u r p o s e s ,  
i n c l u d i n g  a v e r a g e  da t a  f o r  a p a r t i c u l a r  c u s t o m e r  c lass .  

3 .  Al l  water meters w i l l  be b i l l e d  f o r  wastewater s e r v i c e  u n l e s s  c u s t o m e r s  
a re  on a wastewater s e p t i c  t a n k  s y s t e m  o r  are r e c e i v i n g  s p e c i a l  use 
s e r v i c e  u n d e r  R u l e  29 .  

APPROVED B Y :  DATE OF APPROVAL:  J a n u a r y  1 7 ,  1997 
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A .  Because of cont inua l  f l u c t u a t i o n  i n  water supply and demand, t h e  Author i ty  
does not  provide water s e r v i c e  f o r  f i re  p r o t e c t i o n ;  however, with p r i o r  
approval of the Authority,  a customer may i n s t a l l  f i r e  hydrants  o r  bu i ld ing  
s p r i n k l e r  s y s t e m s .  P r i o r  approval s h a l l  be obtained by written c o n t r a c t  
with t h e  Au thor i ty ,  which will inc lude  p r o v i s i o n s  on indemnif ica t ion  and 
l imi ta t ion  o f t h e  Authori ty’s  l i a b i l i t y .  All such systems s h a l l  be metered 
and b i l l e d  under a “ spec ia l  use s e r v i c e ”  des igna t ion ,  f o r  a l l  a p p l i c a b l e  
f e e s ,  s e r v i c e  charges ,  pena l ty  charges ,  and monthly charges.  

3. I n  o r d e r  t o  assure proper  opera t ion  of f i r e  hydran t s ,  no water s h a l l  be 
drawn through a n y  f i re  hydrant f o r  any o t h e r  purpose than  f i r e  p r o t e c t i o n  
except  as provided by c o n t r a c t  o r  by s p e c i a l  permit  from t h e  Authori ty .  

C .  Every  f i r e  protect ion s y s t e m  c c n n e c t d  t o  the  Authori ty’s  water s y s t e m  s h a l l  
be void and c l ean  o f  a n y  and a l l  contaminants ,  an t i - f r eeze ,  o r  o t h e r  
dwmical add i t ives .  Also t h e  system s h a l l  have  backflow prevent ion devices  
t h a t  meet NTUA, National Fire Code, and Indus t ry  s t anda rds  

APPROVED 9 Y :  DATE OF APPROVAL: J a n u a r y  1 7 ,  1997 
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A .  

7 
3 .  

R u l e  30  
General R u l e s  with Respeci  to Large  Users o f  Water 

3 e f o r e  proceeding  with t h e  pu rchase  of a n y  equipment  which w i l l  neces- 
s i t a t e  t h e  u s e  of large quant i t ies  of  water  within s h o r t  per iods o f  t i m e ,  
t h e  Author i ty  shal l  be consul ted f o r  advice  a s  to  t h e  best method of 
installation a n d  f o r  information concerning t h e  conditions unde r  :.:hic'n i h t  
water  will be suppl ied  t o  t h e  premises of t h e  cus tomer ,  

In g e n e r a l ,  t h e  Author i ty  r e s e r v e s  t h e  r i g h t  t o  limit t h e  s ize  of  serv ice  
connect ions 3r openings  t h r o u g h  which its se rv ice  is fu rn i shed  f o r  filling 
s t o r a g e  t a n k s ,  hydrau l i c  equipment ,  p r iva t e  f i r e  s e rv i ce ,  or  o t h i r  c lasses  
of s e r v i c e  capable  of  drawing relatively l a rge  quant i t ies  of water and  
t h e r e b y  caus ing  u n d u e  f luctuat ions of p r e s s u r e  in port ions o f  t h e  
Author i ty ' s  sys t em.  

APPROVED BY: DATEOFAPPROVAL:  S e D t e n b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November 1, 1992  
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?u le  31 
1 3dustr ia l  Commercial Liquid-jlJaste 

A .  Prohibited Liquid o r  'A'aste 3 i scha rges .  No pe r son  shall d i scha rge  o r  
cause  to be d i scha rged  a n y  of t h e  following descr ibed  l iquids or  wastes  t o  
a n y  public sewer: 

1 .  Any s u b s t a n c e s  which a r e  controlled b y  t h e  Environmental  Protection 
Agency ( E P A )  regula t ions ,  including b u t  no t  liinited t o  heavy  metals, 
radionucl ides ,  volatilz a n d  syn the t i c  o rgan ic s ,  petroleum p roduc t s ,  
flammable or explosive;  o r ,  i f  it a p p e a r s  l ikely,  in t h e  opinion of t he  
Author i ty ,  t h a t  s u c h  wastes  can  harm or  have  a de le te r ious  effect on 
a wastewater  facil i ty,  can  have  a n  a d v e r s e  effect on t h e  receiving 
s t ream,  or  can  o therwise  endange r  life, limb, public p r o p e r t y ,  a n d / o r  
may otherwise e n d a n g e r  t h e  local environment  or  cons t i tu te  a 
nuisance.  

2 .  Any waters  or  wastes  with a pH less than  f ive  point  f ive 
g r e a t e r  t han  nine point  f ive ( 9 . 5 ) .  

.Any pe r s i s t en t  pest ic ides  t h a t  have  a t endency  to concen t r a t e  
levels in non-target  organisms.  

3 .  

5 .5 )  o r  

to toxic 

4. Any solid o r  viscous s u b s t a n c e  in quant i t ies  o r  of s u c h  s ize  t h a t  t he  
subs t ances  a r e  capable  of causing obs t ruc t ion  t o  t h e  flow in sewers o r  
i n t e r f e re  with t h e  p rope r  operat ion of t he  wastewater  facilities. 

5 .  Any storm wa te r ,  s u r f a c e  water ,  g r o u n d  wa te r ,  roof runoff ,  sub -  
su r face  d ra inage ,  uncontaminated cooling water ,  o r  unpol luted process  
waters .  

3 .  Pre t rea tment  Requirements .  T h e  Author i ty  n a y  r e q u i r e  t h e  installation 
and  operation of p r e t r e a t n e n t  o r  separat ion devices  a n d  appur t enances  a t  
t h e  e x p e n s e  of t h e  cus tomer .  T h e s e  devices  shall t r e a t  or p r e t r e a t  t h e  
e f f luent  to comply with Section A aoove ,  a n d  in addi t ion,  shall  include 
b u t  not be limited to t h e  following: 

1 .  Any liquid or  vapor  having a t empera tu re  h ighe r  t han  one-hundred 
f i f ty  d e g r e e s  Fahrenhei t  ( 1503F). 

'1. 4,111 water o r  waste containing f a t s ,  g r e a s e ,  wax or oil, whether  
emulsified or  no t ,  in excess  of one h u n d r e d  ( 1 0 0 )  ,niIIigram Der l i ter  
o r  contairling subs t ances  which may solidify o r  become viscous a t  
t e n 3 e r a t u r e  betrJeen t%ir ty- two deqrees  Fahrenhei t  ( 3 C l O F )  and  one- 
hunclred-fiftx/  deq rees  -ahrenhei t  ( 1  J 3 3 F ! .  

APPROVED BY:  DATEOF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
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3 .  A i /  N d t E r  3,id was t?  x . i t a i a i n q  ni3n c o n c o n t r a t i 3 i s  of  i i e r t  5 ' ~ s -  
pendeci so l ids or  unusLial concent ra t ions  o f  d isso lved so l ids wh ich  
wotilc! cause t h e  wastewater  t rea tment  fac i l i t i es  t o  exceed Colorado 
R i v e r  S a l i n i t y  o r  a n y  nav igab le  r i v e r  d i s c h a r g e  s t a n d a r d s .  

4. A n y  w a t e r  o r  waste c o n t a i n i n g  u n u s u a l  o r  excess ive d isco lorat ion 
caused by mater ia ls  s u c h  as, but n o t  l im i ted  to,  d y e  wastes a n d  
vegetab le  t a n n i n g  solut ions.  

5 .  A n y  u n u s u a l  s l u g s  o r  shock  volumes of f low o r  concent ra t ion  of 
waste. 

C. 

D.  

E. 

F. 

Maintenance of Customer Owned Faci l i t ies .  Where p r e t r e a t m e n t  o r  f low- 
equa l iz ing  fac i l i t i es  a r e  p r o v i d e d  for  a n y  l iqu id-wastes,  t h e y  sha l l  b e  
c o n t i n u o u s l y  mainta ined in s a t i s f a c t o r y  a n d  e f f e c t i v e  o p e r a t i o n  by t h e  
o w n e r  a t  h i s  expense.  

C o n t r o l  Manholes. T h e  A u t h o r i t y  may r e q u i r e  t h e  owner  o f  a n y  p r o p e r t y  
t o  i n s t a l l  a su i tab le  c o n t r o l  manhole w i t h  m e t e r i n g  dev ices a n d  o t h e r  
appur tenances  in t h e  building sewer a5 a r e  needed t o  fac i l i ta te  obser-  
va t ion ,  sampl ing,  a n d  measurement of t h e  wastes. S u c h  manhole, when 
r e q u i r e d ,  sha l l  b e  access ib ly  a n d  safely located, c o n s t r u c t e d  in s u c h  a 
manner  as t o  p r e v e n t  i n f i l t r a t i o n  of g r o u n d  a n d  s u r f a c e  waters ,  a n d  
b e  c o n s t r u c t e d  in accordance w i t h  p lans  a p p r o v e d  by t h e  A u t h o r i t y .  T h e  
manhole a n d  a l l  appur tenances  sha l l  b e  ins ta l led  by t h e  owner  a t  h i s  ex- 
pense a n d  sha l l  b e  mainta ined by h im so as t o  b e  safe a n d  accessible a t  
a l l  t imes. 

Sampl ing a n d  Tes ts .  T h e  samples shal l  b e  t a k e n  a t  a c o n t r o l  manhole o r  
a t  s u c h  su i tab le  locat ion p r i o r  t o  d i s c h a r g e  i n t o  t h e  p u b l i c  sewer.  A l l  
measurements,  tests ,  a n d  analyses of t h e  c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s  o f  l iquid-wastes 
sha l l  b e  de termined in accordance w i t h  S t a n d a r d  Methods. T h e  t y p e  o f  
analyses i n v o l v e d  w i l l  de termine  w h e t h e r  a t w e n t y - f o u r  ( 2 4 )  h o u r  compo- 
site-sample o f  a l l  ou t fa l l s  of a premise i s  a p p r o p r i a t e  o r  w h e t h e r  a g r a b  
sample, o r  samples, s h o u l d  b e  taken.  T h e  ana lys is  t o  b e  p e r f o r m e d  a n d  
t h e  f r e q u e n c y  a n d  t y p e  w i l l  b e  speci f ied by t h e  A u t h o r i t y  f o r  each liquid- 
waste t o  b e  d i s c h a r g e d  t o  a public sewer.  All cos ts  r e l a t e d  t o  sampl ing 
a n d  a n a l y z i n g  w i l l  b e  t h e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  o f  t h e  customer.  

V io la t ion  of  D i s c h a r g e  Agreement .  A n y  v io la t ion  of t h e  D ischarge Agree-  
ment  by a customer shal l  r e s u l t  in t h e  assessment of a p e n a l t y  fee as 
p r o v i d e d  in t h e  T a b l e  of Fees a n d  Charges.  

D 

B 

APPROVED BY: - DATEOF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November 3 1992 
w 
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Rule 31 (Con t inued)  

G .  Indus t r ia l  Users Capital Improvement Policy. T h e  c h a r g e s  fo r  t r ea t ing  
new or increased  commercial a n d  indus t r ia l  l iquid-wastes d i scha rged  into 
t h e  wastewater  facil i t ies shall  be based  on t h e  following policy: 

1. T h e  appor t ionment  of capital  a s  well a s  operat ion a n d  maintenance 
c o s t s  to t h e  cus tomer  for  t h e  wastewater  sys tem will  t a k e  into consid- 
e ra t ion  each  individual u s e r ' s  cont r ibu t ion  a s  re la ted t o  t h e  total 
was te  load a n d  t a k e  into account  t h e  volume a n d  s t r e n g t h  of all 
d i scha rges .  

2 .  T h e  c o s t s  t o  be cons idered  will inc lude ,  b u t  not  be limited to:  

a .  Amortization of t h e  Au thor i ty ' s  capital  investment  in t h e  waste  
t r ea tmen t  works  a n d  in t e rcep to r  sewers. 

b. Operat ion a n d  maintenance of t h e s e  facilities. 

c. Any additional cos t s  which a r e  necessa ry  t o  a s s u r e  a d e q u a t e  
wastewater  t r ea tmen t  on a cont inuous  bas is .  

3 .  A subs tan t ia l  p r e p a y m e n t  of t h e  capital  inves tment  o r  o t h e r  financial 
commitments will be r equ i r ed  from each  commercial o r  i n d u s t r y  e s t ab -  
lishment t h a t  c o n t r i b u t e s  s ignif icant ly  t h e  total  volume o r  s t r e n g t h  of 
t h e  waste  load to  be conveyed  in a n y  par t icu lar  wastewater  t rea tment  
works.  
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A .  

B. 

C .  

D. 

E .  

F. 

G .  

H .  

Rule 32 
Building Sewer Construct  ion and  Connection Requirements 

No u s e r  shall uncover ,  make a n y  connection with o r  opening into, use ,  
a l t e r ,  o r  d i s t u r b  a n y  o f  t he  Authori ty 's  wastewater facilities without f i r s t  
obtaining writ ten permission from the  Authori ty .  

T h e  u s e r  shall submit a writ ten application for  se rv ice  to t h e  Authority.  
Refer to  R u l e  2 ,  "Application fo r  Service".  

T h e  use r  shall submit detailed plans and  specifications and  a n y  informa- 
tion r e q u e s t e d ' b y  the  Authori ty  relative to the  serv ice  and a n y  submittal 
a s  required by Ru le  1 7 ,  "Extension of Lines", Rule  2 0 ,  "Services",  
a n d / o r  Rule 2 3 ,  "Customer's  Installations", fo r  t h e  Authori ty 's  review and 
approval .  Upon completion of construction and prior to  initiation of 
se rv ice ,  as-built drawings will be  submitted a t  t h e  use r ' s  expense  to  the  
Authori ty .  

T h e  cha rge  for  connection shall be paid to  t h e  Authori ty  pr ior  to  con- 
nection to the  Authori ty 's  wastewater facilities. 

All cos t s  o r  expenses  incidental to  t h e  installation, connection, 
operat ions,  and  maintenance of any  building drain o r  building sewer shall 
b e  t h e  user's. T h e  user shall indemnify the  Authority from any  loss or  
damage tha t  may direct ly  o r  indirectly be occasioned by t h e  installation of 
t h e  building dra in  o r  building sewer.  

A separa te  and  independent  building sewer shall be provided for every  
user. Exceptions to t h i s  policy will be  handled on an  individual basis.  

Old  building sewers may be used in connection w i t h  new buildings only 
when the  old building sewer user's permission is obtained by  the  new 
building user and  when t h e  existing building sewers a r e  found upon 
examination and  test by t h e  Authority to  meet all requirements of these  
ru les .  The  cos t s  or  expenses  of t h e  examination and  test will be  paid for  
b y  t h e  new building use r .  

The  s ize ,  s lope,  alignment,  materials of construct ion o f  a building sewer, 
and  t h e  methods used in excavation, pipe laying, piping jointing, tes t ing ,  
a n d  backfilling shall all conform to t h e  requirements of a n y  building 
codes ,  plumbing codes o r  regulations adopted by t h e  Navajo Nation or  the  
Authori ty .  

APPROVED BY: DATEOF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November  1 9  1g92  
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Rule 32 (Con t inued)  

1 .  T h e  connection of t h e  building sewer into t h e  Author i ty ' s  wastewater 
facilities shall conform to  t h e  requi rements  of a n y  building a n d  plumbing 
code o r  o t h e r  appl icable  ru l e s  a n d  regulat ions of t h e  Author i ty .  Any 
deviation from t h e s e  ru l e s  must  be approved  b y  t h e  Author i ty  before  
installation. 

J .  Whenever possible ,  t h e  building sewer shall be b r o u g h t  to t h e  building a t  
a n  elevation below t h e  basement floor.  In all bui ldings in which a n y  
building d ra in  is too low to  permit  g rav i ty  flow to  t h e  publ ic  sewer, 
s an i t a ry  sewage ca r r i ed  by  s u c h  building d ra in  shall be lifted by means 
approved  by  t h e  Author i ty  a n d  d ischarged  to  t h e  building sewer, all a t  
t h e  expense  of t h e  u s e r .  

K. T h e  Author i ty  reserves t h e  r igh t  to specify t h e  point of connection t o  t h e  
Author i ty ' s  wastewater  facilities. 

1. Any s u b s e q u e n t  a l te ra t ions  o r  addi t ions t o  building d r a i n i n g s ,  building 
sewers, lifting means,  o r  connect ions to  t h e  Author i ty ' s  wastewater  facil- 
ities shall not  be made without wr i t ten  notice to a n d  p r io r  wr i t ten  
approval  of t h e  Author i ty .  

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4  1992  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November 1 1 9 9 2  
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Rule 3 3  
Const ruc t ion  S t a n d a r d s  

A.  All materials a n d  cons t ruc t ion  p rocedures  per ta in ing  to  t h e  Author i ty ' s  
facil i t ies,  connect ions the re to ,  a n d  facilities installed a s  r equ i r ed  by t h e s e  
ru l e s  shall conform to  t h e  Author i ty ' s  requi rements .  

APPROVED BY: DATEOF APPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1992 

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992 
P 
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Rule  34 
Penalties for  Violation of Rules and  Regulations 

A .  Any person who negligently violates a n y  provision of th i s  Tariff  o r  a n y  
condition o r  limitation of permit o r  plan approved and  issued pu r suan t  to  
this  Tariff  shall be  required to  immediately discontinue all such  service 
from the  Authori ty 's  facilities. 

B.  Any person who intentionally violates a n y  provision of th i s  Tar i f f ,  o r  who 
continues to allow a negligent violation following notice, shall be subject  
t o  the  penalties set for th  in Paragraph D. below. In addition to t h e  
penalty set for th  in Paragraph  D . ,  such person shall be required to pay ,  
pr ior  to resumption of se rv ice ,  all cos t s  and  expenses  reasonably 
determined by the  Authority to have been incur red  by  it a s  a resu l t  of 
t he  intentional or  continued negligent violation. 

C.  T h e  Authority r e se rves  the  r igh t  to discontinue serv ice  a t ' a n y  t i m e ,  
without advance notice to  the  customer for  a n y  of t h e  following reasons: 

1 .  Presence of a n y  unsafe  condition o r  prohibited and  f raudulent  u s e  of 
t he  Authori ty 's  facilities on t h e  customer's  premises. 

2 .  Refusal a t  a n y  reasonable time to g r a n t  t h e  Authori ty 's  representa-  
t ives o r  agen t s  access  to the  customer 's  premises for  a n y  lawful 
purpose.  

D .  Penalty charges  a s  provided unde r  t h e  Table of Fees and  Charges  will be 
assessed  for intentional violations o r  continued negligent violations, 
a n d / o r  for  f raudulent  use of t h e  Authori ty 's  services .  If serv ice  is 
discontinued because of violations set for th  in th i s  rule ,  reconnection will 
be made only a f t e r  customer has  re-established his c r ed i t ,  paid a n y  
penalty cha rge ,  if applicable,  and  in addition, has  paid a n y  applicable 
fees.  

APPROVED BY: DATEOFAPPROVAL:  S e D t e m b e r  2 4 .  1 9 9 7  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November  1 9  1 9 9 2  
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Definitions 

A .  T h e  following definit ions shall be  applicable wherever  t hese  terms a r e  
used  in these  rules  and  regulations.  

1 .  Authori ty  o r  N T U A  - T h e  Navajo Tribal Utility Authori ty  ( o r  its 
authorized employee) which (who) furn ishes  utility se rv ice  under  
these  rules  and  regulations.  

2 .  Customer o r  Consumer - Any person ,  f irm, pa r tne r sh ip ,  public o r  
pr iva te  corporat ion,  o r  governmental agency receiving utility service 
supplied b y  t h e  Authori ty ,  a t  each point of del ivery and  for  each 
class  o r  service.  

B .  ELECTRIC 

1 .  

2 .  

3 .  

4. 

5 .  

6 .  

7. 

Integrated o r  Thermal Demand - The  demand created by  t h e  cus- 
tomer's  power requirements  averaged over  a specified interval of time. 
Demand is expressed  in kilowatts, kilovolt amperes ,  o r  reactive kilo- 
volt  amperes and  is determined by measurement with a s tandard  
demand meter o r  by  calculations based upon measurements made by 
o the r  t ypes  of s t anda rd  metering equipment.  

KVA-Kilovolt Ampere - Unit of appa ren t  power equal to  product  of 
c u r r e n t  and  voltage a t  t he  point of measurement. 

KVAR-Kilovolt Ampere Reactive - Reactive component of apparent  
power determined by s t anda rd  metering equipment and  which may be 
used in determining t h e  power factor a t  t he  point of measurement. 

KW-Kilowatt - Unit of power del ivery o r  t h e  ra te  a t  which ene rgy  is 
delivered to t h e  customer.  

KWH-Kilowatt Hour - Unit of electric ene rgy  delivered to  t h e  cus- 
tomer. 

Primary Voltage - Authori ty 's  transmission o r  dis t r ibut ion voltage,  or  
2 ,400  volts o r  h igher ,  used to  transmit power to immediate area of 
customer 's  premises. 

Secondary Voltage - Authori ty 's  se rv ice  voltage,  normally considered 
t o  be  1201240 vofts single-phase,  240 volts three-phase.  208 Y/120  
volts three-phase,  480 Golts, three-phase o r  480 Y / 2 7 7  vol t s  three- 
phase.  

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

i 

B 

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992  
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D e f i n i t i o n s  ( c o n t i n u e d )  

8. Power Fac tor  - T h e  r a t i o  of  a c t i v e  o r  u s e f u l  power  (KW) t o  a p p a r e n t  
power  ( K V A )  as ind ica ted  by vol tage a n d  c u r r e n t  (ampere)  r e q u i r e -  
men t s  . 

9. S e r v i c e  D r o p  - T h e  w i res  o r  cables connect ing  customer 's  fac i l i t ies  t o  
A u t h o r i t y ' s  fac i l i t ies .  

C. N A T U R A L  GAS 

1 .  

2. 

3 .  

4. 

5 .  

6 .  

7.  

Gas o r  Natura l  Gas - Gas a n d / o r  v a p o r s  p r o d u c e d  f r o m  s u b t e r r a n e a n  
format ions,  w h e t h e r  p r o d u c e d  gas wel ls or o i l  wel ls,  as p r o d u c e d  in 
t h e  n a t u r a l  s ta te,  e x c e p t  f o r  t h e  removal  of substances r e q u i r e d  
a n d / o r  p e r m i t t e d  t o  b e  removed. 

Heat ing  Value o r  B T U  C o n t e n t  - T h e  n u m b e r  o f  B r i t i s h  Thermal  U n i t s  
p r o d u c e d  by combust ion a t  a cons tan t  p r e s s u r e  o f  one c u b i c  foot o f  
gas when t h e  p r o d u c t s  of combust ion a r e  cooled t o  t h e  i n i t i a l  tempera- 
t u r e  of t h e  gas a n d  a i r ,  w h e n  t h e  water  v a p o r  formed during com- 
b u s t i o n  is  condensed, a n d  when a l l  t h e  necessary c o r r e c t i o n s  h a v e  
been appl ied.  

C u b i c  Foot  o f  Gas - T h e  amount  o f  gas  w h i c h  wou ld  o c c u p y  one c u b i c  
foot  when a t  a tempera ture  o f  6OoF, s a t u r a t e d  w i t h  water  v a p o r  a n d  
u n d e r  a p r e s s u r e  e q u i v a l e n t  t o  t h a t  o f  30.0 inches  m e r c u r y  column. 

MCF - T h e  s t a n d a r d  a b b r e v i a t i o n  fo r  1,000 c u b i c  feet .  

S e r v i c e  L i n e  - T h e  e x t e n s i o n  f r o m  t h e  A u t h o r i t y ' s  e x i s t i n g  gas main 
t o  t h e  customer 's  meter .  T h e  ownersh ip ,  opera t ion  a n d  maintenance 
respons ib i l i t i es  remain w i t h  t h e  A u t h o r i t y .  

- 

T h e r m  - 100,000 B r i t i s h  T h e r m a l  U n i t s  ( B T U ' s ) .  

Y a r d  L i n e  - A l l  fac i l i t ies  b e y o n d  t h e  customers meter .  T h e  owner-  
sh ip ,  opera t ions  a n d  maintenance respons ib i l i t i es  r e s t  w i t h  t h e  cus-  
tomer. 

D. WATER 

1 .  Gal lon - A liquid measure c o n t a i n i n g  231 c u b i c  inches  o r  f o u r  q u a r t s  
U.S. measure. 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  I 1 9 9 2  
v 
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Definitions (cont inued)  

2 .  

3. 

4. 

5. 

Service  Line - T h e  extension from t h e  Authori ty 's  exis t ing water main 
to  t h e  customer's  meter. T h e  ownership,  operation and maintenance 
responsibil i t ies remain with t h e  Authori ty .  

Yard Line - All facilities beyond the  customers meter. The  owner- 
s h i p ,  operat ions and  maintenance responsibilities rest with the  cus- 
tomer. 

Dual Metering - Two separa te  meters, t h e  la rger  of which is th ree  
inches o r  above and t h e  smaller of which is two inches o r  below, 
plumbed in parallel complete with external  g a t e  valving and external  
p r e s s u r e  reducing/check  valve,  with t h e  appropr ia te  p re s su re  
regulat ing pilot control system installed with t h e  la rger  meter,  and 
with e i ther  a check valve o r  i f  needed because of del ivery p re s su re ,  
a n  additional appropriately sized and  regulated p res su re  
reducing/check  valve installed with t h e  smaller meter. 

Compound Metering - A single meter, sized t h r e e  inches o r  above,  
with e i ther  one o r  two reg is te rs  internally designed with two 
measuring chambers  and  t h e  necessary manifold system to  d ive r t  t he  
lower flows through t h e  smaller measuring chamber bu t  to 
hydraulically act ivate  a t  t h e  higher  flows to utilize both the  la rger  
and  smaller measuring chambers .  Depending on t h e  delivery 
p r e s s u r e ,  a s epa ra t e  and  appropriately sized p res su re  reducing valve 
(PRV) may b e  requi red  in conjunction with t h e  compound meter. 

E .  WASTEWATER 

1. BOD - A five d a y ,  2OoC biochemical oxygen demand a s  determined by 
methods descr ibed in t h e  la tes t  edition o f  t he  S tandard  Methods; this  
test being an  empirical test used to determine t h e  relative oxygen 
requirements  of wastewater,  eff luent ,  and polluted waters ,  t h e  results 
of t h i s  being expressed  in terms of milligrams p e r  liter ( m g / l ) .  

2 .  COD - T h e  chemical oxygen demand a s  determined b y  methods 
descr ibed in t h e  S tandard  Methods; th i s  test is used to determine the  
oxygen equivalent  of organic  matter in wastewaters,  eff luents ,  and 
polluted waters ,  t he  resu l t s  of th i s  being expressed  in terms o f  milli- 
grams per  liter ( m g / l ) .  

- 

3 .  Garbage - Solid wastes from the  preparat ion,  cooking and  dispensing 
of food, and from the  handling, s to r ing ,  and sale  of produce.  

APPROVED 6 Y :  DATEOF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992  
I 

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992 ~ 
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Definitions (cont inued)  

4.  Industrial  Liquid-Wastes - All waterborne solids,  l iquids,  and  gaseous 
wastes result ing from any  industrial  manufacturing food processing 
operat ion,  o r  o the r  similar commercial processes  o ther  than  tha t  from 
eating establ ishments ,  service s ta t ions ,  ga rages ,  hospitals,  schools, 
laundries ,  and  launderet tes  o r  uncontaminated water.  Wastewaters 
genera ted  in the  development of a n y  natural  resource o r  a n y  mixture 
of t hese  with water o r  domestic sewage dis t inct  from normal domestic 
sewage a r e  also considered industrial  liquid-wastes. Industrial  
manufacturing processes  shall include, b u t  not be limited to those  
tha t  a r e  defined in these  rules  and  accessories;  food and allied 
products ;  tobacco products ;  texti le mill  p roducts ;  apparel  and  o the r  
finished products  made from fabrics  and  similar materials; lumber and 
wood p roduc t s ,  except  fu rn i tu re ;  fu rn i tu re  f ix tures ;  p r in t ing ,  
publ ishing,  and  allied indus t r ies :  chemicals and  allied products ,  
petroleum refining and  related industr ies ;  rubbe r  and  miscellaneous 
plastic products ;  leather a n d  leather products ;  s tone ,  clay,  g lass ,  
and  concrete  products ;  primary metal industr ies ;  fabricated metal 
p roduc t s ,  machinery a n d  t ransportat ion equipment;  machinery,  except  
electrical;  electrical machinery,  equipment and  suppl ies ;  t rans-  
portation equipment;  professional, scientific and  controlling instru-  
ments;  photographic and  optical goods; watches and clocks; wool 
processing o r  cleaning, miscellaneous manufacturing indus t r ies .  

5 .  Interference with a n y  Wastewater facil i ty - Any condition o r  
combination of conditions which cause degradation of t h e  operational 
efficiency of t h e  municipal wastewater treatment facility of the  
wastewater t reatment  process  a t  t h e  facilities. 

6 .  Normal Domestic Wastewater - The normal domestic wastewaters in the  
san i ta ry  sewer system a n d  those waterborne wastes normally 
discharged from t h e  san i ta ry  conveniences of buildings,  apar tment  
houses ,  eat ing establ ishments ,  hotels,  launderet tes ,  l aundry ,  
hospitals,  schools,  ga rages ,  service s ta t ions ,  office buildings,  
factories,  and  insti tutions for which a san i ta ry  sewer service ra te  
cha rge  is assessed .  Normal domestic wastewaters do not include 
storm su r face  waters  and industrial  Iiquid-wastes. Normal untreated 
domestic wastewater is defined a s  having an average  biochemical 
oxygen demand not in excess  of 450 milligrams per  liter and  a s u s -  
pended solids concentration not in excess  of 200 milligrams pe r  liter. 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1 9 9 2  
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Defi ni t ions ( continued ) 

7 .  

a. 

9. 

. d10. 

11, 

1 2 .  

13.  

14. 

15 .  

_ -  

- pH - T h e  logarithm (base  1 0 )  of t he  reciprocal of t h e  hydrogen ion 
co txent ra t ion  of wastewater,  effluent o r  polluted water a s  determined 
b y  methods described in t h e  S tanda rd  Methods. 

Public Sewer - A sewer t h a t  is p a r t  of the  san i ta ry  sewer system of  
t he  Authori ty .  

Sani ta ry  Sewer - The public sewer portion of t h e  Authori ty 's  
wastewater facility t h a t  receives and  1 t r a n s p o r t s  normal domestic 
wastewaters ,  b u t  to  which s torm,  sur face ,  and  ground waters  a r e  not 
intentionally admitted.  

Serv ice  Line - T h e  extension from t h e  Authori ty 's  exis t ing wastewater 
main to t h e  customer 's  house or facilities. T h e  installation of a 
se rv ice  line is a t  t h e  customer 's  expense  and  t h e  ownership,  operation 
a n d  maintenance responsibilities rest with t h e  customer.  

S t anda rd  Methods - T h e  laboratory procedures  set for th  in the  latest  
edition ( a t  t h e  time of analysis)  of "Standard Methods for t h e  
Examination of Water and  Wastewater," a s  p repa red ,  approved ,  and 
published jointly by t h e  American Water Works Association and the  
Water Pollution Control Federation. 

Storm Sewer - A sewer tha t  car r ies  storm and  sur face  waters  and 
dra inage ,  b u t  t h a t  excludes normal domestic wastewaters and 
industrial  liquid-wastes. 

Suspended  Solids - T h e  total suspended  matter (non-filterable 
res idue)  in a wastewater,  e f f luent ,  or  polluted water,  a s  determined 
by  methods descr ibed in t h e  S tandard  Methods, t h e  resu l t s  of this  
test to be given in milligrams p e r  liter ( m g l l ) .  

T r a p  - A device for  retaining s a n d ,  silt, grit,  mineral material, 
petroleum so lvents ,  g rease  or oil by gravity-differential  separation 
from a wastewater.  

Unpolluted Process-Water - Any water ,  uncontaminated cooling water ,  
o r  liquid waste t h a t  does not  contain f r ee  o r  emulsified g rease  or oil; 
acid o r  alkali; phenols o r  o the r  subs tances  inpart ing t a s t e  and  odor 
to a receiving water ;  solution; and noxious o r  odorous gases .  

APPROVED BY: A DATEOFAPPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: 9 l gg2  
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Def in i t ions (continued) 

16. Wastewater - Any and a l l  o f  the used water o f  the par t i cu la r  area 
including normal domestic wastewaters ad indus t r ia l  liquid-wastes, but 
not storm and ground waters. Drainage o f  uncontaminated water i s  not 
wastewater. Wastewater may be a combination o f  the l i q u i d  and water- 
borne wastes from residences, commercial bui ldings, indus t r ia l  plants, 
and ins t i t u t i on .  

17. Wastewater F a c i l i t i e s  - A l l  elements o f t h e  Authority’s sewerage system 
including sewers, structures, equipment, and processes and wastewater 
treatment un i t s  required t o  co l lec t ,  transport and t r e a t  normal domestic 
wastewater and indus t r ia l  liquid-wastes and t o  dispose o f  the ef f luent .  

18. Wastewater Treatment Works - An arrangement o f  devices and structures 
f o r  t rea t ing  wastewater, indus t r ta l  liquld-wastes and sludges from these 
wastewaters. Wastewater treatment works i s  sometimes used synonymously 
wi th  waste treatment p lant  or  sewage treatment plant. 

F. SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC 

1. Photovoltaic (PV) System - The solar module(s), the module mounting 
structure, the control  structure/equipment, wiring, batter ies,  enclo- 
sures, and any other equlpment necessary t o  provide service under t h i s  
schedule. 

2 .  Point o f  Service - The point  where the customer’s e l e c t r i c  system i s  
connected t o  the PV system. 

3. Customer S i te  - The i n s t a l l a t i o n  s i t e  and f a c i l i t i e s  as determined by 
the Authority which are necessary f o r  the i n s t a l l a t i o n  o f  the PV system. 

4. Non-Salvable Cost - The ins ta l l ed  cost o f  the f a c i l i t i e s  less the 
dif ference between the salvable cost o f  the materlal removed and the 
removal labor cost including appropriate overhead costs. 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: A m i 1  1, 1994 

EF F ECTiVE DATE: March 10. 1994 
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1 .  

2.  

3 .  

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8.  

9 .  

10. 

11 .  

12 .  

T A R L E  O F  FEES A N D  CHARGES 

Returned Checks .................................. 
Esta bl is hment Fee Per  U t i  I i t y  

Return  T r i p  Fee to  Connect Utility Services  

Secur i ty  Deposit Per  Utility (Minimum) ............ 
Reconnection Fee Per Utility ...................... 
A .  After 5:OO p.m. ............................. 
Reconnection Fee (Upstream from t h e  Meter) ...... 
Tapping  Fee (Water E Wastewater Only) ........... 

...................... 
....... 

Meter Tes t ing  Service Fee 

A.  Electric ..................................... 
B.  Natural Gas ................................. 
C. Water ....................................... 
Increase in connected capacity without proper  
notice ............................................ 
Wasteful Use Penalty (15% of Total Water Bil l )  

Curtailment Penalty Per MMBTU ................... 
Meter Tamper ing/Fraudulent  a n d / o r  Misuse Penalty/  
In tentiona I Violation 

A .  F i r s t  Offense ................................ 
B .  Second Offense .............................. 
C. Th i rd  Offense ............................... 
D. Violation of Discharge Agreement ............ 

$ 15.00 

10.00 

10.00 

25.00 

10 .oo 
** 
* 

* 

10.00 
10.00 
10.00 

* 

**** 

150.00 
200.00 
300 .OO * 

* Actual Cost ,  Reimbursable Work O r d e r  

** Includes overtime ra tes  p lus  mileage 

**** Actual Cost  incur red  by N T U A  d u e  to customer’s  
u nau thor  i zed takes  

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  1 9  1 9 9 2  
T 
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- 
T A B L E  OF FEES A N D  CHARGES 

(cont inued  1 
- 

c t  
... 

I .. 
13. Meter Damage Fee * 

14 .  Heater  Pilot Light ing Fee ......................... 
................................. - 

*** 

15.  Home E n e r g y  Audi t s  .............................. No Charge  
... 

,. -. ~ 

- _  

< -  a 

.. - 
__ _ 1  

I 

* Actual Cos t ,  Reimbursable  Work O r d e r  

*** Actual cos t  a f t e r  publicized "No Charge"  t i m e  per iod .. 
-. 
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NTUA-0 1-9 7 

RESOLUTION OF THE 

NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
MANAGEMENT BOARD OF W E  ' 

Amending Rules 28 and 29 of the 
Navaio Tribal Utility Authoritv Tariffs 

WHEREAS: 

1. Pursuant to its plan of operation, at 21 N.T.C. fj 7 (a) (l), the 
Management 3oard of the Navajo Tribal Utility Authority is delegated the 
authority and responsibility for the management and operation of the 
Authority; and 

2. The Management Board is furher authorized to adopt rates and 
charges for utility services pursuant to its plan of operation; and 

3. Rules 28 and 29 of the existing tariffs require clarification and 
necessitate Management Board action on an amendment. 

NOW "EREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

The Management Board of the Navajo Tribal Utility Authority 
hereby amends and clarifies Rules 28 and 29 of the Navajo Tribal Utility 
Authority tariffs as set forth in attached Exhibits A and 3. 

CERTIFICATION 

This is to certify that at a duly called meeting held at Gallup, New 
Mexico on the 37dh day of January 1997, at which a quorum was present, the 
foregoing resolution was considered and adopted by the Management 3oard 
of the Navajo Tribal Utility Authority by a vote of 7 in favor, 0 opposed, and 0 
abstaining. 

r n h  
of the Man&&enYBoard, 

NaGajo Tribal Utilityxuthority 



i 

NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
P.O. BOX 170 FT. DEFIANCE, AZ. 86504 

VOLUME V 
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SHEET NO. 

REVISION NO. 

V O L U M E  V 

R U L E S  

A N D  

f o r  

E l e c t r i c  S e r v i c e  

N a t u r a l  G a s  S e r v i c e  

W a t e r  S e r v i c e  

W a s t e w a t e r  S e r v i c e  

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL:  S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992  

EFFECTIVE DATE:  November 1 9  1992 
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I 

Rule 1 

Rule 2 

Rule 3 

RuI? 4 

Rule  5 

Rule 6 

Rule 7 

Rule 8 

Rule 9 

RJle 10 

Rule  1 1  

Rule 1 2  

Rule 1 3  

Rule 1 4  

Rule 1 3  

Rule 15 

Rule 17 

Rule 18 

Pdle 1 9  

Rule 2 0  

Preah I e 

Description of Service 

Application for Service 

Customer &psi t 

Not ices 

Reading o f  Meters 

Rendering and Payment of 3ills 

Meter Tests and Mjus*mnts 

Point of Del ivery 

Increase in Custmr's Connected Load 

Interruption o f  Service & h r t a i  lmnis 

Discontinuance and Restoration o f  Service 

Access to Custmr's Premises 

Care of hthority's Property on Cusicmer's Prmises 

Custaner's Responsibility for Tenants 

Responsibility of AJthority o r  Gustmr f o r  Utility 
Service and Equipnent 

Attactment to Authority's facilities 

Extension of L 

Tenporary Serv 

Trai ler Courts 

Serv i ces 

ne s 

ce 

& Mobile Home Parks 

Sf-IEY + 
51 0 

51 1 

517 

51 9 

5 2 0  

5 2  1 

522 

523 

524 

525 

526 

53 0 

532 

53 3 

534 

535 

53 9 

540 

5 4 8  

549 

550 
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DATE OF APPROVAL: J a n u a r v  1 7 ,  1997 
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VOLUME V 

TARIFF 

SHEETNO. 'lo 

REVISION NO. 

RULES A N D  REGULATIONS 

Preamble 

A .  The  Navajo Tribal Utility Authori ty  was organized by  the  Navajo Nation t o  
provide utility se rv ices  to the  residents  in Navajo Country.  

B.  The  Authority is desirous of rendering the  bes t  possible service a t  all 
times. In o rde r  to  accomplish th i s  without discrimination, certain s tan-  
d a r d  practices must be  observed .  

C .  These  ru les ,  regulations,  terms and  conditions of service set for th  t h e  
pract ices  which best accomplish this  resu l t .  S t r i c t  compliance will be 
adhered  to.  

D .  The  ra tes  and  cha rges  to  be  charged  b y  and  paid to the  Authority for 
utility services  shall be  the  r a t e s  of t he  Authori ty  in effect  and  on file a t  
its Authority 's  offices. 

E.  T h e  complete tar i f f  shee t s  of all t he  Authori ty 's  r a t e s  legally in effect  in 
t h e  service area shall be kept  a t  all times in each of t h e  Authori ty 's  
offices where they  w i l l  be  available for  public inspection. 

F. T h e  Authority has  responsibil i ty to advise  customers  of the  most advanta- 
geous ra tes  available. 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
P.O. BOX 170 FT. DEFIANCE, A t .  86504 

T A R I F F ,  

VOLUME V 

S H E E T N O .  511 

REVISION NO. 

R U L E S  A N D  REGULATIONS 

R u l e  1 
DescriDtion of Service 

A .  ELECTRIC 

Electric se rv ice  furnished by t h e  Author t y  will be of a charac te r  known 
a s  60 cycle a l ternat ing c u r r e n t  in t h e  following s t anda rd  forms: 

1 .  Residential Service 

a .  

b. 

C. 

d .  

e. 

f .  

Residential lighting and fuel installations of t h r e e  K W  and unde r ,  
a t  each del ivery point will be furn ished  a t  t he  following nominal 
voltages : 

1 .  120 vol ts ,  two-wire s ingle  phase 
2 .  120/240 vol ts ,  three-wire single-phase 
3. 120/240 volts,  four-wire three-phase ( subjec t  to paragraph  c .  

below) 

Unless previously agreed  upon in wri t ing,  se rv ice  unde r  residen- 
tial schedules  shall not be used for  t he  operation of individual 
motors with a nameplate ra t ing in excess  of five ( 5 )  HP. 

Three-phase service for  residential  u se  will be furn ished  where 
exis t ing three-phase fines a r e  a l ready installed o r  where such 
lines may be  extended a s  provided in the  Residential Rate Sched- 
ule and  Rule No. 1 7 ,  "Extension of Lines." 

In o rde r  to obtain serv ice  unde r  t h e  residential r a t e ,  t he  owner 
of an  apartment  house,  o r  a single-family house which is convert-  
ed  o r  constructed to  include sepa ra t e  living q u a r t e r s  for more 
than  one family, shall provide sepa ra t e  wiring for  each dwelling 
uni t  s o  t h a t  service to  each separa te  living q u a r t e r s  can be 
metered and  controlled separa te ly .  

Where premises a r e  used and  occupied by a customer a s  a com- 
mercial establishment and  also a s  a res idence,  all se rv ice  supplied 
wilf be  billed unde r  the  applicable General Service Rate Schedule.  

Each sepa ra t e  service o r  meter location will be metered and billed 
separa te ly .  

DATE OF APPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992  



e 

e 

NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
P.O. BOX 170 FT. DEFIANCE, AZ. 86504 

VOLUME V 

TARIFF 

512 SHEET NO. 

REVISION NO. 

RULES A N D  R E G U L A T I O N S  

Ru le  1 (cont inued)  

2 .  Commercial and  Industrial  Service 

a .  Commercial and  industrial  service will  be  furnished a t  t h e  nom- 
inal voltages indicated below: 

1 . 120/240 volts three-wire single-phase service.  

2. 120/240 volts four-wire, three-phase serv ice .  

3 .  240 volts three-wire three-phase serv ice .  

4 .  208 Y/120-volt, three-phase,  four-wire Y connected service 
may be  furnished to individual customers i f  t h e  contract  
billing demand is sufficient in the  opinion of t h e  Authority 
(normally 50 K W  o r  g r e a t e r )  if an approved t ransformer 
station location is provided by t h e  customer,  and  i f  s e rved  
from a t ransformer station dedicated to th i s  customer through 
a s ingle  meter. Customer shall use only motors and  equip- 
ment ra ted  for  208-volt service.  

5 .  480-volt, th ree-phase ,  three-wire serv ice  may be furnished a t  
t he  option of t h e  Authority if t he  customer is present ly  
served  with such  se rv ice ,  o r  if 480-volt three-phase,  three- 
wire secondaries  a r e  available on the  Authori ty 's  lines immedi-  
a te ly  adjacent to customer's  proposed installation. 

6 .  480 Y /277-volt, three-phase,  four-wire,  Y connected service 
may be furnished t o  individual customers if  t h e  contract  
billing demand is sufficient in t h e  opinion of t h e  Authority 
(normally 50 KW o r  g r e a t e r )  if an approved t ransformer 
s ta t ion location is provided by  t h e  customer,  and  if se rved  
from a t ransformer station dedicated to  t h a t  customer through 
a s ingle  meter.  All single phase l ighting and  o the r  non-480- 
volt power requirements will be  provided by  the  customer 
from t h i s  480-volt se rv ice  a s  a p a r t  of t h e  customer's  
electrica I system. 

7.  For loads exceeding 1000 KW, service will be furn ished  a t  the  
Authori ty 's  available transmission or  dis t r ibut ion voltage of 
2,400 vol ts  o r  higher  unless  specifically agreed  to in writing. 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992 
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R U L E S  A N D  REGULATIONS 

Rule 1 (cont inued)  

b. The  General Service Schedule ,  unless  otherwise provided f o r ,  is 
applicable to  single-phase a n d / o r  three-phase service.  Three-  
phase installations will not be made for  single motors of less than 
t h r e e  ( 3 )  horsepower nameplate ra t ing .  Single phase service may 
be  requi red  fo r  single motors of f ive ( 5 )  horsepower o r  less, a t  
option of t h e  Authori ty ,  depending on exis t ing service facilities. 
Where three-phase line extensions a r e  required involving expense 
not justified b y  estimated r evenue ,  then  t h e  cost  of such  special 
extensions will be covered by  special wri t ten agreement t h e  cost  
being negotiated between the  Authori ty  and  customer according to  
t h e  revenue  involved based on three-year  anticipated revenue.  

c .  All motors above five ( 5 )  horsepower shall be three-phase except  
where single-phase serv ice  only is available o r  it is impracticable 
o r  uneconomical to ex tend  three-phase serv ice ,  in which case the  
Authority reserves t h e  r igh t  to  permit single-phase motors larger  
t han  five ( 5 )  horsepower.  . 

d .  Combined billings for s epa ra t e  single-and three-phase service for 
commercial o r  power use  will be furn ished  under  a single bill for 
each meter location provided t h e  customer's  wiring is terminated 
a t  a s ingle  meter location to  be determined by  the  Authori ty .  If 
se rv ice  is supplied a t  more than  one serv ice  o r  meter location on 
t h e  customer 's  premises,  separa te  billing will be made for each 
location or  se rv ice .  More than  one premise or  business  will  not 
be  se rved  th rough  one meter. 

e. Commercial se rv ice  shall include serv ice  to  churches ,  schools, 
o rphanages ,  s to re s ,  hotels,  rooming houses ,  apar tment  houses ,  
multiple housing uni t s ,  motels, t ra i le r  cour t s ,  r e s t au ran t s ,  of- 
fices, c l u b s ,  t hea t e r s ,  e t c . ,  and all o ther  establishments t ha t  a r e  
not other-wise classified in specific r a t e  schedules .  Any estab- 
lishment ca r ry ing  on a bus iness ,  professional,  or commercial 
en te rp r i se ,  acknowledged o r  adver t i sed  a s  s u c h ,  will be con- 
s idered  a s  commercial, b u t  t h e  absence  of such  advert is ing shall 
not be  considered a s  conclusively establ ishing tha t  t h e  service is 
not  commercial. 

f .  Serv ice  to welders ,  X-ray machines, electric furnaces ,  hois ts ,  
e leva tors ,  and  o ther  highly intermittent o r  f luctuat ing loads shall 
be considered individually, according to applicable published rate  
schedules  and  t h e  following general  policy. 

APPROVED BY: DATEOFAPPROVAL:  S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 I g g 2  
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RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Rule 1 (cont inued)  

1 .  General Power Service:  The  Authori ty  reserves  the  r igh t  to  
requi re  t h e  customer to purchase  and  maintain t h e  necessary 
t ransformer capacity to  handle such  intermittent o r  f luctuating 
load. 

2 .  Commercial Light and Small Power Service:  Customers in t h i s  
ca tegory  may be  given t h e  option of installing sepa ra t e  meter- 
ing and  wiring to s e r v e  the  f luctuat ing o r  intermittent load 
where it is used regular ly  in the i r  business .  Necessary 
t ransformer capacity will be provided fo r  th i s  se rv ice .  

3 .  T h e  Authori ty  f u r t h e r  reserves  t h e  r igh t  to requi re  the  
customer to install such  cor rec t ive  equipment necessary t o  
avoid system voltage fluctuations and  o ther  d i s turbances  
which a r e  detrimental to  the  serv ice  furnished o ther  cus- 
tomers. 

g .  In the  e v e n t ,  a s epa ra t e  service o r  t ransformer installation o r  
additional t ransformer capacity is requi red  for f luctuat ing loads, 
a cha rge  will be provided for  in t h e  r a t e  schedules  and  will be 
metered and  billed separately on a monthly basis.  The  customer's  
wiring to such  X-ray, o r  similar t y p e  equipment,  shall be 
installed in a continuous length of rigid conduit  o r  approved 
cable.  

h.  Installations involving special s i tuat ions will be given individual 
consideration. Where customer des i res  se rv ice  unde r  conditions 
o the r  than  those descr ibed above,  a n y  necessary  t ransformer and 
accessory equipment requi red  to supply  t h e  special service re- 
quirements  shall be suppl ied,  installed and  maintained b y  the  
customer.  

i .  Large loads may be  served  a t  primary o r  transmission voltage a s  
provided b y  applicable r a t e  schedules.  

3 .  Frequency Control 

Electric service furn ished  shall be 60 cycle per second al ternat ing 
c u r r e n t  with not  more than  0.5 percent  ( % )  plus  o r  minus variation, 
except  for  a c t s  of God and o ther  unforeseen causes  beyond control of 
t h e  Authority.  In t h e  e v e n t  of variation from a f requency  of 60 
cycles pe r  second,  t h e  Authori ty  will in each case t ake  immediate 
s t e p s  to r e s to re  f requency  to  60 cycles p e r  second a s  soon a s  possi- 
ble. 

APPROVED BY: , DATEOFAPPROVAL:  S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  1 7  1992 



NAVAJO TRlSAL UTILiTY AUTHORiTY 
P.O. BOX 170 FT. DEFIANCE, AZ. 86504 

TARlFf  , 

VOLUME V 

515 SHEET NO. 

REVISION NO. 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Rule 1 (cont inued)  

B.  NATURAL G A S  

1. T h e  Authori ty  suppl ies  natural  gas  th rough  its dis t r ibut ion systems in 
var ious sett lements of Navajo Country in New Mexico, Utah and 
Arizona, and  t h e  customers located along the  wholesale natural  gas  
transmission pipelines on the Navajo Reservation. Gas i s  supplied for  
domestic, commercial, and industrial  uses. 

2 .  Unless otherwise specified b y  contract  o r  agreement ,  deliveries shall 
be  a t  a p r e s s u r e  of not less than  four  ounces per s q u a r e  inch gauge.  

3 .  All natural  g a s  furnished shall be  of a quali ty and  have a heating 
value a s  t ha t  g a s  delivered to  t h e  Authori ty  by  t h e  wholesale suppfi- 
ers. In t h a t  connection, re ference  is made to  t h e  FERC Gas Tariffs ,  
a s  filed by  t h e  wholesale suppl ie rs  for  par t iculars  a s  to  t h e  quality 
and  heat ing value.  

4. T h e  Authori ty  will t ende r  del ivery of natural  g a s  containing an  aver- 
a g e  total heat ing value of not less than  900 g r o s s  Bri t ish Thermal 
Units per cubic  foot. 

5 .  When t h e  premises se rved  a r e  used and  occupied b y  a customer a s  a 
commercial o r  professional establishment and  also a s  a res idence,  all 
se rv ice  suppl ied will be billed unde r  t h e  Commercial Rate Schedule.  

C.  WATER 

1 . Water service for  domestic, commercial, indus t r ia l ,  s an i t a ry  and other  
purposes  shall be  of a quali ty meeting s t a n d a r d s  of t h e  United States  
Public Health Serv ice  o r  Environmental Protection Agency. 

2 .  In o r d e r  t o  obtain service u n d e r  t h e  residential  r a t e ,  t h e  owner of an 
apar tment  house or multiple occupancy dwelling shall provide separa te  
piping for  each dwelling uni t  so  tha t  service to each separa te  living 
uni t  may be  metered and controlled separately.  

3 .  When t h e  premises se rved  a r e  used and  occupied b y  a customer as  a 
commercial o r  professional establishment and  also a s  a res idence,  all 
se rv ice  suppl ied will be billed unde r  t h e  General Service Rate 
Schedule .  

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1 9 9 2  
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Rule  1 (cont inued)  

4 .  T h e  Authori ty  reserves  the  r igh t  to inspect t h e  condition of t he  
piping and charac te r  of installation of t h e  customer 's  facilities; and if 
such  piping a n d / o r  installation is found to  be fau l ty ,  t h e  Authority 
may re fuse  to  provide service.  T h e  Authori ty  does not ,  however, 
assume responsibil i ty fo r  inspections and  shall not be held liable for 
failure of a n y  piping o r  installation. 

5 .  All installation connections to  the  Authori ty 's  system shall be  made in 
accordance with t h e  latest  revised requirements  of t h e  American 
S tanda rds  Association and  a n y  o ther  applicable codes.  

6 .  When water service involves periodic large flows compared with normal 
o r  low flows, t h e  Authority may requi re  installation of e i ther  dual 
metering o r  compound metering a t  its sole discretion. Each meter will 
be  billed a s  a s epa ra t e  meter. 

D .  WASTEWATER 

1. 

2 .  

3 .  

4. 

5. 

Wastewater se rv ice  fo r  domestic, commercial, industr ia l ,  s an i t a ry  and  
o ther  purposes  shall b e  of quality meeting s t a n d a r d s  of t h e  United 
S ta t e s  Public Health Service o r  t h e  Environmental Protection Agency. 

In o rde r  to obtain service unde r  t h e  residential r a t e ,  t h e  owner of an 
apartment  house o r  multiple occupancy dwelling shall declare the  
number of occupancy uni ts  involved and  accept  billings under  t h e  
Residential Rate Schedule for  each uni t .  

When t h e  premises served  a r e  used and occupied by a customer a s  a 
commercial or professional establishment and also a s  a res idence,  all 
service supplied will be billed unde r  t h e  General Serv ice  Rate 
Schedule .  

T h e  Authority r e se rves  the  r igh t  to  inspect t he  condition of t he  
piping and cha rac t e r  of installation of t h e  customer's  facilities; and  if 
such  piping a n d / o r  installation is found to  be fau l ty ,  t he  Authority 
may re fuse  to provide service.  The  Authori ty  does not ,  however,  
assume responsibil i ty for  inspections and  shall not be  held liable for 
failure of a n y  piping o r  installation. 

All installations shall comply with a n y  legally applicable codes.  

APPROVED BY: D A T E O F A P P R O V A L :  September 2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992 
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Rule 2 

Application for  Service 

A .  

B.  

C. 

D. 

E. 

F. 

G .  

When new customers ,  o r  p re sen t  customers a t  a new a d d r e s s ,  request  
uti l i ty se rv ices  t o  be supplied a t  a location, an "Application for Service" 
form will be  filled out  by  t h e  customer request ing such  service.  

T h e  Authori ty  shall have t h e  r igh t  to reject a n y  application for proper  
cause .  Acceptance of a n y  application for  se rv ices  and  a signed 
"Customer Meter Request" shall const i tute  a contract  between t h e  
Authori ty  and  t h e  customer.  

Customers may a t  t h e  t i m e  of original application fo r  service o r  reapplica- 
tion for  se rv ice  be required to furn ish  financial s ta tements ,  c red i t  refer-  
e n c e s ,  o r  o the r  evidence of the i r  credit s tanding  sat isfactory to  the  
Authori ty .  

Upon acceptance of a n  application for  service b y  the  Authori ty ,  such 
serv ice  shall be  supplied to  the  customer unde r  t h e  r a t e s ,  ru les ,  and 
regulations a s  set for th  in t h e  Navajo Tribal Utility Authority Tariff .  

A potential customer using utility se rv ice ,  without f i r s t  s igning an appli- 
cat ion,  will be held responsible for  a n y  amount due for  utility supplied 
th rough  t h e  Author i ty ' s  meters from t h e  t i m e  o f  t h e  last meter reading 
noted on t h e  Author i ty ' s  books o r  an estimated billing if meters a r e  not 
available for reading.  

Each application for  se rv ice  will cover  only one meter installation and one 
c lass  of se rv ice  to  one  customer ( a s  defined herein a t  a s ingle  addres s  o r  
location).  A s ingle  application for  service may not be made to  apply to 
d i f fe ren t  locations o r  to cover  more than  one meter installations a t  t he  
same a d d r e s s  o r  location even though such  serv ice  may be used by the  
same customer.  

T h e  Authori ty  shall supply  serv ice  within a reasonable t i m e  a f t e r  the  
application o r  agreement  is approved and s igned ,  and  a f t e r  a n y  necessary 
permits have  been obtained. The  Authority will advise  t h e  customer 
promptly regard ing  a n y  unforeseen delays.  

APPROVED BY: * DATEOFAPPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
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I) 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 9 1 9 9 2  
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Rule 2 (cont inued)  

H. 

I .  

J .  

Special w r i t t en  cont rac t  fo r  service is  a mat ter  of negotiat ion between the  
A u t h o r i t y  and t h e  customer and shall cover  a l l  matters wh ich  may be 
necessary or  appropr ia te  under  t h e  ind iv idua l  circumstances invo lved.  To  
t h e  ex ten t  t h a t  t h e  prov is ions of such special con t rac t  a re  a t  variance 
w i t h  these ru les  a n d  regulat ions, t h e  prov is ions of t he  cont rac t  shall 
p reva i  I. 

A non-refundable establishment fee wi l l  be requ i red  p e r  utility and shall 
be  pa id  in advance by t h e  customer for serv ice(s )  to  be  established. 
T h e  establishment of a utility serv ice t o  t h e  customer occurs when t h e  
customer's faci l i t ies a re  ready  and acceptable to  the  Au tho r i t y ,  and t h e  
A u t h o r i t y  needs on ly  to  insta l l  or  read a meter a n d  turn t h e  service on. 
'Note: A customer shal l  be informed in advance o f  a charge, as p rov ided 
f o r  under  the  Table of Fees a n d  Charges, fo r  a r e t u r n  trip to connect 
utility services f o r  i nco r rec t  serv ice location, unavai lab i l i ty  o f  customer, 
non-compliance w i t h  serv ice  ent rance specifications, and re la ted policies. 

If t h e  Au tho r i t y ' s  ex i s t i ng  facil i t ies, p rox im i t y  o f  l ines, l ine  size, o r  
o ther  condit ions w i l l  no t  serv ice the  customer's requirements, then the  
customer w i l l  be  responsible for t h e  cost of any  extension or modification 
requ i red  t o  be able t o  serve  the  customer. A n y  extens ion o r  modification 
t o  t h e  system shall  b e  subject  t o  the  A u t h o r i t y ' s  inspection, cont ro l  and 
approval. 

APPROVED BY: D A T E O F  APPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
EFFECTIVE DATE: 1 9  1 9 9 2  
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Rule 3 
Customer Deposit 

A. A t  t h e  opt ion o f  t h e  A u t h o r i t y ,  customers shal l  be requ i red  to  pay a 
re fundab le  secu r i t y  deposi t  w i t h  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  to  guarantee t h e  r e t u r n  of 
t h e  A u t h o r i t y ' s  meter in good condit ion, and the  payment o f  a l l  b i l l s  due 
t h e  A u t h o r i t y  a t  t h e  time serv ice i s  disconnected. 

B. T h e  A u t h o r i t y  may, in i t s  d iscret ion,  r e q u i r e  a customer to  pay  a re fund-  
able secu r i t y  deposi t  in any  amount up to, but n o t  exceeding, t h e  equiv-  
a lent  of t h e  estimated charges for  th ree  billing periods, but no t  less than 
t h e  minimum stated in the  Table of Fees a n d  Charges, based o n  the  
customer's p rev ious  h i s t o r y  or t h e  estimated usage o f  such fac i l i ty .  

C. T h e  deposi t  may be  re funded  by the  A u t h o r i t y  t o  t h e  customer a f te r  a 
per iod  o f  1 2  months, or  upon disconnection of serv ice and  payment o f  a l l  
b i l l s  due t h e  A u t h o r i t y ,  o r  upon establishment of c r e d i t  t o  the  satisfact ion 
of t h e  A u t h o r i t y .  

D. T h e  A u t h o r i t y  w i l l  issue to  each customer making a deposi t  a non- 
assignable receipt ,  showing t h e  date, amount received, and complete 
in format ion as t o  t h e  r e t u r n  of t h e  deposit, 

E. I n te res t  o n  customer deposits shal l  begin when deposits a re  he ld  more 
than twelve ( 1 2 )  months a f t e r  be ing  made and  in te res t  w i l l  be  computed a t  
f i v e  percent  ( 5 % )  p e r  annum. 

F. Following any at tempt  by t h e  A u t h o r i t y  to  r e f u n d  the  deposit, no in te res t  
w i l l  be  accrued or  pa id  f rom t h a t  date. 

DATE OF APPROVAL: Sep tember  2 4 ,  1992 

EFFECTIVE DATE: November ' 9  1992 
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Rule 4 
Notices 

A .  Any notice to the  Authori ty  m u s t  be in writ ing,  and  no telephonic commu- 
nications will be considered proper  notice unless o r  until confirmed in 
writ ing.  Orde r s  taken orally o r  over  t he  telephone by  a n  employee of the 
Authority a r e  fo r  t h e  convenience of t he  customer and  a t  t h e  customer's  
r isk.  The  Authori ty  will  exercise  diligence in car ry ing  out  such  o r d e r s  
from customers ,  b u t  it will not be responsible for  e r r o r ,  delay,  o r  
expense  resul t ing from such  procedure.  

6. Any notice by t h e  Authori ty  to customer regard ing  service s u c h  a s  may 
be necessary o r  requi red  in t h e  Authori ty 's  operat ion,  may be given 
orally by a n  authorized representa t ive  of t h e  Authori ty ,  o r  by  telephone, 
te legraph ,  o r  b y  mail deposited in the  United S ta t e s  Post Office, ad- 
d re s sed  to customer a s  shown on the  Authori ty 's  records ,  postage pre- 
paid. Notice shall be considered given when actually communicated in t he  
case o f  oral communications, and  when deposited in t h e  post office when 
notice is given b y  mail. 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  f I g g 2  
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R U L E S  AND R E G U L A T I O N S  

Ru le  5 
Reading of Meters 

A .  Meters will be read periodically a t  prescr ibed intervals  by  a n  authorized 
employee of t h e  Authori ty .  

B.  I f  in t he  even t  a meter reading i s  not obtained d u e  to ,  b u t  not  limited to ,  
inclement weather ,  road conditions,  vehicle breakdown, a n d  reasons 
beyond the  Authori ty 's  control ,  an  estimated bill may be  rendered  on the  
basis  of pas t  se rv ice  h is tory .  

C. When one o r  more consecutive meter readings a r e  not obtained,  the  
Authority will bill t h e  customer on an  estimated consumption basis and  if 
necessary  t h e  difference adjusted when t h e  meter is again read.  The 
basis for t he  estimate shal I be  normal consumption for  corresponding 
per iods in preceding y e a r s  a n d / o r  normal consumption fo r  preceding 
months. A t  t he  first reading subsequen t  to  a n y  non-reading, t h e  bill 
shall be computed in accordance with t h e  applicable r a t e s  adjusted with 
t h e  foregoing provisions.  Any minimum bill paid in t h e  period for  which 
the  meter reading cove r s  shall be credited to  t h e  total amount of the  bill. 

APPROVED BY: L &&DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
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B '  
EFFECTIVE DATE: * O v e r n b e r  9 1992 I 
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Rule 6 
Render ing a n i r n e n t  o f  B i l l s  

A .  A l l  b i l l s  f o r  utility serv ice(s )  a re  due when rendered and payable w i th in  
25 days from date o f  bill. 

B .  If b i l l s  a re  de l inquent  a t  t he  exp i ra t ion  o f  25 days  from date o f  bill, t he  
util i ty serv ice(s1 may be d iscont inued by the  A u t h o r i t y  a f t e r  f i v e  work ing  
days w r i t t e n  not ice has been g i ven  to  the  customer o f  i t s  i n ten t ion  to  do 
so. I f  service i s  d iscont inued because o f  non-payment o f  b i l ls ,  recon- 
nection wi l l  be made on ly  a f t e r  t h e  customer has re-established h i s  c red i t ,  
a n d  has paid a l l  appl icable fees. (See Table o f  Fees and Charges) .  

C. T h e  words "month", "monthly", o r  " regu la r  billing per iod" ,  as used in 
the  ra te  schedules and ru les  and  regulat ions, a re  def ined to  be  the  
elapsed time between two successive meter readings approximately 30 days 
apar t .  

D. T h e  A u t h o r i t y  wi l l  p rompt ly  invest igate any quest ion as to  accuracy o f  
t h e  meter or  o f  b i l l s  rendered.  

E .  l f  t h e  bill i s  d isputed,  t h e  customer has t h e  right t o  have a conference in 
regards  t o  the  bill. 

D A T E O F  APPROVAL: September  2 4 ,  1992  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November  1 9  1992  
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A.  

B. 

C .  

D. 

R u l e  7 
Meter T e s t s  and Adjustments 

T h e  Authori ty  may, a t  its option, test any  meter a t  a n y  time and  a s  often 
a s  it sees fi t .  The  Authority will test the  accuracy of a n y  meter upon 
t h e  r eques t  of a n y  customer free of cha rge  provided ( 1 )  t h e  meter has 
not been tes ted  within the  12-month period pr ior  there to ,  a n d  ( 2 )  the  
customer will accept  t he  resu l t s  of such  test a s  a basis  for t h e  settlement 
of a n y  difference claimed; otherwise,  t he  customer shall pay in advance a 
special se rv ice  fee ,  a s  provided unde r  t h e  Table of Fees and  Charges ,  to 
cover  t h e  expense  of removing, tes t ing ,  and  replacing the  meter. Such 
serv ice  fee shall be refunded to  the  customer in t h e  even t  t h e  meter is 
found,  upon test, t o  be regis ter ing more than  th ree  percent  ( 3 % )  fas t .  

If a n y  meter is found to  have been regis ter ing more than  t h r e e  percent  
( 3 % )  f a s t ,  t he  Authori ty  shall refund to t h e  customer the  amount equal to 
t h e  excess c h a r g e  paid b y  customer between the  da t e  of repa i r  o r  removal 
of t h e  faul ty  meter and  the  da t e  when t h e  cause of such  e r r o r  occur red ,  
i f  t h e  la ter  da te  can be definitely fixed, b u t  no such  re fund  shall  be 
made for  a period longer than  one-half t h e  t i m e  elapsed s ince  the  previ- 
o u s  test, b u t  not to exceed s ix  months. 

If a n y  meter is found to  have  been regis ter ing more than t h r e e  percent  
( 3 % )  slow, the  Authori ty  may make a cha rge  to t h e  customer for  any  
usage  incorrectly metered between t h e  da t e  of repa i r  o r  removal of the  
faul ty  meter and  t h e  da te  when the  cause of such  e r r o r  occur red ,  if the  
la ter  da t e  can be  definitely f ixed ,  b u t  in no even t  fo r  a period of more 
t h a n  one-half t h e  t i m e  s ince t h e  last  previous test, b u t  not to exceed six 
months. 

If a meter is found not to  have regis tered for a n y  period, t h e  Authority 
shall estimate a cha rge  for  t h e  usage used by averaging t h e  amounts 
reg is te red  over  similar per iods in preceding yea r s .  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1 9 9 2  
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Rule  8 
Point of Delivery 

A.  ELECTRIC 

1 .  T h e  point of delivery of electric se rv ice  will be a t  t h e  customer 's  
meter location unless  prescr ibed in writing to be  elsewhere.  

2 .  When delivery of service is on the  primary side of t h e  customer 's  
t ransformer,  t h e  Authority may install its meter on t h e  secondary s ide 
of t he  t ransformer.  In such  case ,  t ransformer a n d  o the r  losses 
occurr ing between t h e  point of delivery and  t h e  meter will be esti- 
mated and  added  to the  reading of such  meter in determining the  
monthly consumption of power and  ene rgy .  

B .  NATURAL G A S  

1. T h e  point of del ivery for  all g a s  delivered to a n y  customer shall be a t  
t h e  point of interconnection between t h e  facilities of t h e  Authority 
and  those of such  customer. 

2 .  Unless otherwise agreed  to in writing by  t h e  Authori ty ,  such  inter-  
connection a s  provided unde r  Section 8.1. above will be  a t  t he  
Authori ty 's  metering equipment se rv ing  tha t  customer. 

C. WATER 

1 .  T h e  point of del ivery for  all water delivered to  a n y  customer shall be 
a t  t he  point of interconnection between t h e  facilities of t h e  Authority 
and  those o f  such  customer.  

D. WASTEWATER 

1 .  T h e  point of del ivery is a t  t h e  connection between t h e  customer 
service line and  those  facilities t ha t  a r e  owned and  operated b y  the  
Authority and  tha t  receive and  t r anspor t  normal domestic waste- 
waters .  

DATE O F  APPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  APPROVED BY: L 
K L 

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
P.O. BOX 170 FT. DEFIANCE, AZ. 86504 

TARIFF 

525 SHEET NO. 

REVISION NO. VOLUME V 

R U L E S  A N D  REGULATIONS 

A .  

B.  

C .  

D. 

R u l e  9 
Increase in Customer's  Connected Load 

T h e  Authori ty  r e se rves  the  r igh t  to l i m i t  new o r  additiona 
g a s ,  water o r  wastewater service commensurate with the  
se rved  capacity in source ,  transmission, dis t r ibut ion,  ai 
faci I i  ties. 

power, natural  
available unre- 
d / o r  substat ion 

Customers contemplating the  installation of additional equipment (which is 
not  considered a normal residential o r  household appliance o r  equipment ) ,  
o r  changes  in p re sen t  equipment,  plumbing o r  wiring, should consul t  t he  
p rope r  representa t ives  a t  t he  Authori ty 's  office before proceeding with 
t h e  installation in o r d e r  t ha t  t h e  Authority may cooperate w i t h  t h e  cus- 
tomer to  secu re  sat isfactory and  efficient operation of such  equipment 
when installed. 

Customers shall g ive  the  Authori ty  writ ten notice specifying the  increased 
capaci ty  to  be  installed and  t h e  purpose  for  which it shall be used ,  
unless  otherwise specified in r a t e  schedules  o r  cont rac t .  Proper  notice 
shall be  considered to have been given upon writ ten notification by  t h e  
Authori ty  t h a t  it will  s e r v e  the  increased load. T h e  Authority will  make 
e v e r y  effor t  to  supp ly  such  increased capacity a s  soon a s  possible. 
However, if necessary ,  t h e  Authori ty  r e se rves  the  r igh t  to take  90  days  
t o  supply such  increased load, or to advise  t h e  customer of its inability 
t o  supp ly  such  increased capacity.  

If customer increases  his connected capacity without proper  notice t o  the  
Author i ty ,  and  the reby  damages or  des t roys  o r  changes  t h e  accuracy of 
t h e  Authori ty 's  metering equipment o r  t ransformers ,  the  Authority shall 
c h a r g e  t h e  customer for  necessary repa i rs  o r  replacement of its equip- 
ment. 

APPROVED BY: D A T E O F  APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
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A .  

B .  

C. 

D. 

E .  

F. 

R u l e  1 0  
Interrupt ion of Service & Curtailments 

T h e  Authori ty  will u s e  reasonable diligence in furnishing unin ter rupted  
and  regular  se rv ice  to all customers ,  b u t  t he  Authori ty  does not guaran-  
tee  such  service and  shall not be  liable for  damages in case  of inter-  
rupt ion of se rv ice ,  i r respect ive of t h e  cause  of t h e  interrupt ion.  

The  Authority r e se rves  the  r igh t  without liability for  damages to s h u t  off 
t he  supply  of a n y  utility service a t  a n y  t i m e  necessary for t h e  purpose  of 
making repa i rs  o r  changes  in t h e  Authori ty’s  facilities o r  in t h e  case of 
a n y  emergency. In such  cases ,  t h e  Authority will  make e v e r y  reasonable 
effor t  to  res tore  serv ice  a t  t he  ear l ies t  possible moment. Whenever possi- 
ble ,  in te r rupt ions  for repa i rs  o r  changes  will be made a t  t i m e s  of least 
inconvenience to customers.  

Interrupt ion of se rv ice  shall not relieve t h e  customer from a n y  charges  
for  service actually r ende red ,  and  in no case  shall be considered a 
breach of cont rac t .  

Scheduled in te r rupt ions  d u e  to r epa i r s  o r  construct ion,  t h e  Authori ty  will 
notify customers direct ly ,  when practicable,  in advance  of such  scheduled 
interrupt ion.  

The  Authority will always endeavor  to  give reasonable advance notice of 
a n y  planned interrupt ion of se rv ice  o r  shut-off.  

NATURAL GAS 

1 .  If fo r  any  reason,  t h e  Authori ty  is unable to supp ly  t h e  demand for 
natural  g a s ,  interrupt ion o r  curtailment of service shall be made in 
accordance with t h e  following priorit ies:  

a .  Priority 1 - Residential, small commercial (less than  50 MCF on a 
peak d a y ) .  

b.  Priorit  2 - Large commercial requirements (50 MCF o r  more on a -d), industrial  requirements  for plant protection, feedstock 
and  process  needs.  

c. Priority 3 - All industrial  requirements not specified in Priorities 
2 ,  4 and 5 .  

APPROVED BY: DATEOFAPPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992  
EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  3 I g g 2  
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Rule 1 0  (cont inued)  

d .  Priority 4 - Industrial  requirements  for  boiler fuel u s e  a t  less 
than  3 ,000  MCF on a peak d a y ,  b u t  more than 1,500 MCF on a 
peak d a y ,  where a l te rna te  fuel capabilities can meet s u c h  require- 
men ts . 

e. Priority 5 - Industrial  requirements for  large volume (3 ,000  MCF 
o r  more on a peak d a y ) ,  boiler fuel use where a l te rna te  fuel 
capabilities can meet such  requirements .  

f .  For t h e  pu rpose  of th i s  Rule, t he  following definitions shall 
apply :  

1 .  Residential - Service which consis ts  of d i rec t  natural  gas  
usage  in a residential  dwelling for  space heating, cooking, a i r  
conditioning, water heating a n d  o ther  residential uses. 

2 .  Commercial - Service to customers engaged primarily in the  
sale  of goods o r  se rv ices  including insti tutions and  local, 
s t a t e ,  and  federal  government agencies  for uses other than 
those involving manufacturing o r  electric power generat ion.  

3 .  Industrial  - Service to customers engaged primarily in a 
process  which c rea t e s  o r  changes  raw o r  unfinished materials 
into another  form o r  product  including t h e  generation of 
electric power. 

4 .  Plant Protection Gas - Minimum g a s  volumes required to 
p reven t  physical harm t o  t h e  plant facilities o r  dange r  to 
plant personnel when such  protection cannot  be  afforded 
th rough  the  use  of an  a l te rna te  fuel.  This  includes the  
protection of such  material in process  a s  would otherwise be 
des t royed ,  b u t  shall not  include deliveries requi red  to  main- 
tain plant  production. For t h e  purposes  of t h i s  definition, 
propane and o ther  gaseous fuels shall not be  considered 
a l te rna te  fuels .  

5 .  Feedstock Gas - Natural g a s  used a s  a raw material for  its 
chemical propert ies  in creat ing an  end  product .  

APPROVED BY: n d DATEOF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992  
/ - - 

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 
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R u l e  1 0  (cont inued)  

6. 

7. 

8. 

9 .  

Process  Gas - Gas u s e  fo r  which a l t e rna te  fue ls  a r e  not 
technically feasible  s u c h  as  in applications r equ i r ing  prec ise  
t empera tu re  cont ro ls  a n d  prec ise  flame charac te r i s t ics .  For 
t h e  p u r p o s e s  of t h i s  def ini t ion,  p ropane  a n d  o t h e r  gaseous  
fuels  shall  no t  be cons idered  a l t e rna te  fuels .  

Boiler Fuel - Natural  g a s  used  a s  a fuel fo r  t h e  genera t ion  of 
steam o r  e lec t r ic i ty ,  including t h e  utilization of g a s  t u r b i n e s  
fo r  t h e  genera t ion  of e lectr ic i ty .  

Al te rna te  Fuel Capabili t ies - Is defined a s  a s i tuat ion where  
a n  a l t e rna te  fuel could have  been utilized whether  o r  not  t h e  
facilities f o r  s u c h  u s e  have  actual ly  been instal led;  however ,  
where t h e  u s e  of na tu ra l  g a s  is fo r  p lan t  protect ion,  
feeds tock ,  o r  p rocess  u s e s ,  a n d  t h e  only a l t e rna te  fuel i s  
propane  o r  o t h e r  gaseous  fue l ,  t hen  t h e  consumer will be 
t r ea t ed  a s  if h e  had  no a l t e rna te  fuel capac i ty .  

System - Any g r o u p  of interconnected pipelines o r  mains 
owned o r  opera ted  b y  t h e  Author i ty  a n d  so  s i tua ted  t h a t  t h e y  
wil l  be unaffected b y  c h a n g e s  in operat ion o f  a n y  o t h e r  s u c h  
g r o u p  of facilities . 

2 .  Curtai lments  shall  be made ra tab ly  insofar  a s  feasible  within each 
pr ior i ty  g r o u p  s e r v e d  by  t h e  same sys tem provided  however t h a t  t h e  
Author i ty  may provide  b y  r a t e  s chedu le  fo r  two o r  more s u b g r o u p s  
within a n y  pr ior i ty  g r o u p .  Total  cur ta i lments  d u r i n g  a ca lendar  yea r  
shall  be made t o  t h e  end t h a t  insofar  a s  feasible ,  all cus tomers  within 
a pr ior i ty  g r o u p  o r  s u b g r o u p  served b y  t h e  same sys tem may be 
cur ta i led  in t h e  same proport ion t h a t  each  cus tomer ' s  total requi re -  
ments d u r i n g  s u c h  yea r  b e a r s  to  t h e  total  requi rements  of all cus-  
tomers  in t h a t  p r ior i ty  g r o u p  o r  s u b g r o u p  d u r i n g  s u c h  yea r .  

3 .  No curtai lment  shall  be applied to  a n y  customer a t  a n y  t i m e  when a n y  
customer in a lower (i.e.,  h ighe r  numbered)  pr ior i ty  g r o u p ,  who is 
served b y  t h e  same sys tem has  not  been directed by  t h e  Author i ty  t o  
e f fec t  full cur ta i lment  of t h e  cus tomer ' s  service. 

4. T h e  Author i ty  shall  notify in advance  each  customer to  be  curtai led 
u n d e r  t h e  provis ions of t h i s  Section of t h e  e x t e n t  a n d  amount of t h e  
curtai lment  r equ i r ed  from t h e  customer.  If a f t e r  s u c h  notification, 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: September 2 4  t 1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE D A z  
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Rule 10 (cont inued)  

a n y  customer (o the r  than  a customer in Priority 1 )  fails to curtail  
du r ing  t h e  requi red  period o r  to t h e  amount requi red ,  such  customer 
shall pay a penal ty  fee pe r  MMBTU, a s  provided unde r  t h e  Table of 
Fees and Charges ,  for  all t akes  in excess  of t he  authorized amount. 
In addi t ion,  t h e  Authority shall have t h e  r igh t  to disconnect any  
customer who fails to curtail  a s  notified without f u r t h e r  notice if 
se rv ice  t o  customers  in Priority Group 1 o r  2 is threa tened .  

5. Th i s  curtailment procedure  may be  suspended  b y  the  Authority 
du r ing  a n y  emergency when life o r  p rope r ty  is endangered .  

6 .  In te r rupt ions  of service shall not relieve t h e  customer from any  
cha rges  for  se rv ice  actually rendered  a n d  in no case shall be con- 
s idered  a breach of contract .  

G .  W A T E R  

1 .  If t h e  Authori ty  f inds  evidence of excessive waste of water by  the  
customer,  t he  Authority will advise  t h e  customer of such  condition 
and  allow a reasonable t i m e  fo r  correction a n d / o r  repa i rs  before 
discontinuing t h e  service.  

2 .  The Authority reserves  the  r igh t  to r e s t r i c t  t h e  u s e  of water fu r -  
nished b y  it in periods o f  s h o r t  supply .  

a .  Residential purposes  shall have f i r s t  p r ior i ty ,  

b .  Commercial u s e s  involving t h e  public health shall have next  
pr ior i ty  . 

3 .  In such  periods of s h o r t  supp ly ,  lawn watering, c a r  washing, and 
o the r  non-essential uses  shall be  prohibited.  Failure of a n y  customer 
t o  observe  these  priorit ies upon notice shall be cause fo r  suspension 
of se rv ice  to such  customer.  

4 .  Applicable penalty fee as provided u n d e r  t h e  Table  of Fees and 
Charges  shall be  assessed  for wasteful u se  o f  water d u r i n g  periods of 
publicly declared water conservat ions o r  emergencies.  

DATEOFAPPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992  

D 

D 
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Rule 11 
Discontinuance and Restoration o f  Serv ice 

A. I f  the  A u t h o r i t y  detects f raudulent  use o f  a n y  u t i l i t y ( s )  by a customer, 
t h a t  customer's serv ice w i l l  be  s h u t  o f f  w i thout  advance notice. 
Moreover, serv ice wi l l  not  be  resumed until t h e  customer has g i ven  
sat is factory  assurance t h a t  such f raudulent  use of utility serv ice(s)  w i l l  
be  d iscont inued and shal l  have paid t h e  A u t h o r i t y  an  amount estimated by 
the  A u t h o r i t y  to  be reasonable payment for u t i l i t i es  f raudu len t l y  used and 
no t  pa id  fo r ,  and in addit ion, shall have a pena l ty  charge assessed as 
well as a n y  applicable fees. T h e  A u t h o r i t y  also reserves t h e  right t o  
re fuse t o  connect any  customer who has been guilty prev ious ly  o f  
f raudu len t  use o f  uti l i ty serv ice(s) .  

B. In case a dangerous condi t ion (e.g., use of extens ion cords  f rom one 
residence to  another)  is  found t o  ex is t  on the  customer's premises, t he  
serv ice wi l l  be  s h u t  o f f  w i thout  an  advance notice. T h e  A u t h o r i t y  shall 
n o t i f y  t he  customer p rompt ly  of t he  n a t u r e  o f  t h e  dangerous condit ion. 
I f  the  customer does n o t  remedy the  dangerous condi t ion w i th in  t e n  days 
o f  be ing not i f ied,  a reconnection charge and  a n y  applicable fees w i l l  be  
assessed upon res to r ing  service. 

C. In case utility serv ice(s)  i s  misused o r  misapplied by t h e  customer so as 
t o  cause voltage f luctuations, low pressure  o r  o ther  unsat is factory  con- 
d i t ions a f fec t ing  t h e  qua l i t y ,  safety ,  o r  con t inu i t y  o f  serv ice to  other  
customers, t he  A u t h o r i t y  w i l l  disconnect such serv ice a f t e r  two ( 2 )  days 
w r i t t e n  notice unless w i t h i n  such time condit ions complained o f  a re  rem- 
edied or  discontinued by t h e  customer. T h e  A u t h o r i t y  reserves t h e  right 
t o  disconnect serv ice w i thout  advance not ice if t h e  misuse of any  utility 
serv ice causes a dangerous condi t ion o r  fa i lu re  of serv ice t o  o ther  cus- 
tomers. I f  the  A u t h o r i t y  is  compelled to  d iscont inue serv ice f o r  these 
causes, a penal ty  charge in addi t ion to  t h e  reconnection fee wi l l  be 
assessed upon res to r ing  service. 

D. If any utility serv ice(s )  is  resold by t h e  customer w i thout  t h e  consent o f  
t h e  Au tho r i t y ,  serv ice wi l l  be d iscont inued a f t e r  two ( 2 )  days wr i t t en  
notice, and  no  reconnection wi l l  be made until assurance is  g iven,  in 
w r i t i n g ,  t h a t  t h e  commodity w i l l  no t  be  sold again o r  de l ivered to  any 
o ther  p a r t y .  I f  serv ice is  d iscont inued fo r  t h i s  cause, a reconnection fee 
w i l l  be requ i red  before service is  restored.  

DATE OF APPROVAL: September 24, 1992 

I EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992 
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Rule 11 (cont inued)  

E .  

F. 

G .  

H. 

1 .  

J .  

Customers who intend to move from t h e  premises s e r v e d ,  o r  discontinue 
t h e  u s e  of uti l i ty se rv ice(s1  o r  in a n y  way terminate the i r  liability for 
service he reunde r ,  shall give the  Authority reasonable notice of such 
intention and  t h e  customer will be liable for  all usage regis tered until 
p rope r  notice is given and  t h e  Authori ty  h a s  made t h e  final meter 
reading.  

Customers  who tamper with,  in te r fe re  with,  o r  break  the  seals  of meters 
o r  o the r  equipment o f  t he  Authority installed on customer's  premises,  w i l l  
be  assessed  a penal ty  fee a s  provided u n d e r  the  Table of Fees E 
Charges .  In addi t ion,  a reconnection fee and  a n y  applicable fee will be  
requi red  if t h e  serv ice  is restored a f t e r  t he  conditions causing discon- 
t inuance a r e  cor rec ted .  

T h e  Authori ty  r e se rves  the  r igh t  to  discontinue a n y  utility se rv ice  a n d / o r  
t h e  sou rce  of supp ly  where t h e  customer is in a r r e a r s  in payment o f  
bills, fo r  fa i lure  to comply with a n y  of t hese  ru les  a n d  regulations,  o r  for  
illegal u s e  o r  divers ion.  Reconnection will be made a f t e r  t he  bill and  any  
penal ty  cha rges ,  in addition to  reconnection fees a r e  paid in full. 

T h e  following fees  shall be  paid by  a customer who applies for reconnec- 
tion of se rv ice  o the r  than  du r ing  regular  business  hours:  

1 .  Reconnect Fee ( p e r  uti l i ty) 
2 .  Employee's wages (computed overtime hourly r a t e  of 13 times per  hour 

with a requi red  minimum of one hour being c h a r g e d ) .  
3 .  Transpor ta t ion  cost  (computed a t  t h e  Authori ty 's  c u r r e n t  ra te  per  

m i l e )  
4 .  Other  applicable fees 

Whenever t h e  Authori ty  shall have permanently discontinued utility ser-  
vice to  a n y  customer 's  premises,  it shall have the  r igh t  a t  a n y  reasonable 
t i m e  t he rea f t e r  to  e n t e r  upon the  premises and  remove therefrom its meter 
and  a n y  of its p rope r ty  t h e r e  located. 

Any customer desir ing a temporary t u r n  off  of utility service may reques t  
such  discontinuance from the  Authority and  a t  t h e  Authori ty 's  option a 
c h a r g e  may be made for  t he  discontinuance and  restoration of service,  
when done for  t h e  convenience of t he  customer.  

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1992 

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992 
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A .  

Rule 1 2  
Access to  Customer's  Premises 

Upon presentat ion of credent ia ls ,  an  authorized representa t ive  of  t he  
Authori ty  shall have f ree  access  to the  premises of t he  customer a t  all 
reasonable hours  for  t h e  purpose  of reading t h e  meter, .inspecting all 
equipment relating to  the  Authori ty 's  se rv ice ,  for  tes t ing ,  and  changing 
o r  removing its meters.  T h e  Authority may e n t e r  upon t h e  proper ty  o r  
premises a t  a n y  hour  unde r  emergency circumstances.  If t he  Authori ty  is 
refused admittance o r  prevented  from making such  inspections or tests a s  
t h e  Authority may deem necessary ,  service may be discontinued a f t e r  a 
five ( 5 )  day  writ ten notice is given to  the  customer.  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  ' '  
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Rule 13 
Care  of Authori ty 's  Proper ty  on Customer's  Premises 

A.  T h e  customer shall u se  d u e  diligence to protect  t he  p rope r ty  of the  
Authori ty  t h a t  is installed on the  customer 's  premises o r  on the  premises 
u n d e r  t h e  customer 's  control.  T h e  customer a g r e e s  by  accepting service 
from t h e  Authori ty  t h a t  only an authorized employee of t h e  Authority o r  a 
person otherwise lawfully enti t led to  do  so shall be  permitted to remove or 
to  ad jus t  t h e  Author i ty ' s  facilities on the  customer 's  premises o r  premises 
u n d e r  t h e  customer 's  control.  

B .  The  customer shall hold the  Authori ty  harmless from all claims for  t res -  
pass ing ,  injury to  persons ,  o r  damage to lawn, trees, s h r u b s ,  buildings,  
o r  o the r  p rope r ty  tha t  may be  caused in t h e  installation o r  replacement of 
se rv ice  wires and  o the r  necessary  appur tenances  to  s e r v e  t h e  customer,  
unless  it shall be affirmatively proven t h a t  t h e  injury to persons o r  
damage to p rope r ty  complained of has  been caused by  willful faul t  o r  
negligence on t h e  p a r t  of t he  Authori ty  o r  its accredited employees. 

C .  In case  of loss or  damage to t h e  Author i ty ' s  p rope r ty  from the  ac t s  of 
negligence of t h e  customer,  t h e  customer shall pay to  t h e  Authority the  
cos t  o f  repair ing a n d l o r  replacing such  proper ty .  

D. T h e  Authori ty  will maintain and  replace,  when necessary ,  all service 
wires and  appur tenances  furn ished  by  the  Authori ty  to s e r v e  a customer,  
except  for  damages caused by  vandalism. 

APPROVED BY: DATEOF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November  9 1992  
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R u l e  1 4  
Customer's  Responsibility for Tenants  

A .  Any customer having t enan t s ,  whose supply  of utility s e rv i ce ( s )  is depen- 
d e n t  upon a blanket  agreement between t h e  customer and  the  Authority 
covering all t he  meters on t h e  premises, shall ag ree  to accept  responsi- 
bility for t he  full amount,  a s  computed from the  registration upon each 
sepa ra t e  meter. 

APPROVED BY: DATEOF APPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November  9 1g92  
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Rule 15 
Responsib i l i ty  o f  A u t h o r i t y  o r  Customer 

f o r  U t i l i t y  Serv ice and  Equipment 

A. ELECTRIC 

1. 

2.  

3 .  

4. 

5. 

T h e  A u t h o r i t y  shall no t  be  l iable f o r  any loss o r  damage caused by 
unavoidable accidents, ex t rao rd ina ry  action o f  t h e  elements, s t r ikes,  
mob violence, o r  o the r  causes ove r  which t h e  A u t h o r i t y  exer ts  no 
contro l .  

T h e  A u t h o r i t y  shal l  no t  be l iable f o r  a n y  loss, damage, o r  i n j u r y  
whatsoever caused by leakage, escape, o r  loss o f  electr ical energy  
a f t e r  same has passed t h r o u g h  t h e  A u t h o r i t y ' s  meter, o r  defects o r  
lack o f  customer's w i r i ng ,  equipment, o r  p ro tec t ive  devices. 

T h e  A u t h o r i t y  requ i res  p roper  cer t i f icat ion by a l icensed electr ician 
w i t h  p roper  insta l la t ion o f  electr ical w i r i n g  p r i o r  t o  connection o f  
e lect r ic  service. 

T h e  A u t h o r i t y  wi l l  r equ i re  a n  inspection by t h e  Au tho r i t y ' s  employee 
o f  serv ice ent rance and meter c i r c u i t  b reaker  o r  main fuse. 

T h e  customer shal l  use reasonable care in design ing a n d  connecting 
loads t o  h i s  c i r c u i t s  so t h a t  loads on the  ind iv idua l  phases and c i r -  
cu i t s  o f  t h e  A u t h o r i t y ' s  serv ice to  the  customer shall be  as equally 
balanced as possible across the  var ious phases. 

9. NATURAL GAS 

1. T h e  A u t h o r i t y  shal l  b e  responsible for  t h e  safe transmission and  han- 
dling o f  gas until it passes the  po in t  of de l i ve ry  as specif ied in these 
ru les  and  regulat ions.  T h e  A u t h o r i t y  shal l  also be responsible fo r  
t h e  safe instal lat ions of its meters, serv ice  cocks, regulators ,  and 
re la ted f i t t i n g s  (where  insta l led by 'the A u t h o r i t y ) ,  and shall be 
responsible f o r  t h e  safe maintenance of a l l  p r o p e r t y  of t he  A u t h o r i t y  
downstream f rom the  po in t  o f  de l i very .  Except  as s tated here, the  
respons ib i l i t y  f o r  t h e  safe conduct ,  hand l ing  and u t i l i za t ion  o f  t he  gas 
a f t e r  it passes the  po in t  o f  de l i ve ry  shall be t h a t  o f  t h e  customer. 
In case o f  loss o r  damage to  the  Au tho r i t y ' s  p r o p e r t y  f rom the  acts o f  
negl igence o f  t h e  customer, t h e  customer shall pay  to  t h e  Au tho r i t y  
t h e  cost o f  repa i r i ng  and /o r  rep lac ing such p roper t y .  

/- 
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2 .  Although t h e  Authority assumes no responsibil i ty for  t h e  safe  upkeep 
o r  operat ing condition of a n y  of the  customer 's  yardl ines  downstream 
from t h e  point of delivery o r  of his house piping,  f i x tu re s  o r  appli- 
ances ,  the  Authori ty  may nevertheless  refuse to  t u r n  on g a s  to any  
customer's  premises until all t h e  customer's  pipes and appliances have 
been tested and found to  be t i g h t ,  s a fe ,  and f r e e  from leaks and in 
good, safe  operat ing condition. I f  s u c h  proof is requested by  the  
Authori ty ,  it shall be in the  form of a cer t i f icate  executed by  a 
licensed plumber o r  by  a certif ied gas  inspec tor ,  cer t i fying tha t  such  
pipes and appliances have been tes ted and found to be t i gh t ,  sa fe ,  
and  f r ee  from leaks and  ready fo r  use.  After  t h e  g a s  has  been 
turned  on ,  t h e  Authori ty  may also,  though it shall not be obligated to  
do  so ,  test t h e  customer's  pipes and  appliances for  leakage a t  a n y  
reasonable hour .  Whenever leakage is found by  such  t e s t ,  t h e  
Authority r e se rves  the  r igh t  to  re fuse  o r  discontinue serv ice  until 
such  leakage is properly cor rec ted .  

3 .  Immediate notice shall be given to the  Authority by t h e  customer of 
a n y  g a s  escaping on t h e  customer 's  premises. Under no circum- 
s tances  shall t he  Authority be charged  with cons t ruc t ive  notice of 
defects  in piping,  equipment,  a n d l o r  appliances (o the r  than  the  meter 
o r  o ther  facilities installed by  the  Authori ty)  downstream from t h e  
point of delivery specified in these  ru les  and  regulations.  Upon 
receipt of notice of escaping g a s ,  t he  Authori ty  shall a s  promptly a s  
may be feasible under  the  circumstances send  its representat ive to  
investigate t h e  matter .  I f  leakage is found to b e  caused by  any  o f  
t h e  Authori ty 's  facilities, the  Authori ty  shall have  the  r igh t  to tempo- 
rari ly discontinue service until t h e  leakage can be corrected.  In t h e  
even t  t h e  leakage is found to  be caused b y  the  facilities of t h e  
customer,  t h e  Authori ty  shall have t h e  r igh t  to  discontinue service 
until t h e  leakage is cor rec ted .  

4 .  All g a s  piping and  installations to be connected to t h e  Authori ty 's  
system shall be made in accordance with the  requirements of t he  
latest  revision of t h e  National Bureau of Fire Underwri ters  Association 
Gas Safety Manual, t he  rules and  regulations of t h e  Authority a s  
herein set fo r th ,  and  the  writ ten information received from t h e  
Authority.  

APPROVED BY: , DATEOF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
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C .  WATER 

1 .  T h e  Authori ty  does n t ssume a n y  responsibil i ty a s  to t h e  piping or  
f ix tu re s  on a n y  customer's  premises and  shall not be liable for any 
loss o r  damage resul t ing from t h e  presence of t h e  Authori ty 's  water 
service on such  premises. The  customer shall use d u e  diligence to  
protect  t he  Authori ty 's  p roper ty  installed on the  customer 's  premises 
o r  on premises unde r  t h e  customer 's  control,  and  agrees  in accepting 
serv ice  t h a t  only an  employee of t h e  Authori ty  o r  person otherwise 
lawfully ent i t led to  do so shall be permitted to remove or to adjus t  
t h e  Author i ty ' s  meters, connections,  o r  a n y  o the r  of t h e  Authori ty 's  
p rope r ty  on customer 's  premises. 

2 .  T h e  Authori ty  does not assume any  responsibil i ty nor does it guar -  
an tee  adequate  quant i ty  o r  flow of water used for f i re  fighting 
purposes .  (Refer  to Rule 29 "Fire Hydrants  and Fire Protection 
Serv ice") .  

D .  WASTEWATER 

1 .  T h e  Authori ty  does not assume a n y  responsibil i ty a s  to t h e  piping o r  
f ix tu re s  on a n y  customer's  premises and  shall not be liable for  any 
loss o r  damage resul t ing from t h e  presence  of t h e  Authori ty 's  
p roper ty  providing service on the  premises. 

2 .  T h e  customer shall u se  d u e  diligence to  protect  t h e  Authority 's  
p roper ty  installed on the  customer 's  premises o r  on premises under  
the  customer 's  control ,  and ag rees  in accept ing service t h a t  only an 
employee of t h e  Authority o r  person otherwise lawfully enti t led to do 
so  shall be  permitted to remove o r  to ad jus t  t h e  Authori ty 's  connec- 
t ions ,  o r  a n y  o the r  of t he  Authori ty 's  p rope r ty  on customer's  prem- 
ises. 

3 .  T h e  Authori ty  shall be responsible only for  operation and maintenance 
of t ha t  portion of a wastewater system in a community considered a s  
main t r u n k  lines, b ranch  l ines,  and  laterals,  and  not t h a t  portion of 
a system known a s  building wastewater se rv ice  lines. Main t r u n k  
l ines,  b ranch  l ines,  and  laterals a r e  defined a s  that  portion of a 

D 

B 

B 
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wastewater  sys tem ex tend ing  from manhole t o  manhole which collects 
a n d  conveys  wastewater  from a community t o  t rea tment  facilities o r  
point  of disposi t ion.  Building wastewater  service lines a r e  def ined a s  
those  l ines which ex tend  from t r u n k  l ines ,  b ranch  l ines ,  o r  la terals  t o  
individual res idences  o r  bui ldings.  

4.  In no case  will t h e  Author i ty  be  responsible  fo r  r epa i r ing ,  replacing,  
c leaning ,  maintaining, o r  se rv ic ing  a n y  building wastewater  service 
line o r  f i x t u r e s  connected the re to ,  ex tend ing  from main t r u n k  l ines,  
b ranch  l ines ,  a n d  la terals  which serve individual res idences  o r  build- 
ings. 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
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Rule 16 
Attachment to  Au tho r i t y ' s  Faci l i t ies 

A .  

B. 

Noth ing  shall be attached t o  the  A u t h o r i t y ' s  poles, pipes, faci l i t ies, o r  
equipment. 

A special con t rac t  i s  requ i red  f o r  jo in t  use faci l i t ies. Such attachment 
shal l  be  so insta l led t h a t  t hey  w i l l  n o t  i n te r fe re  w i t h  t h e  ab i l i t y  o f  t h e  
A u t h o r i t y  t o  operate and maintain t h e i r  facil i t ies n o r  wi l l  t h e y  be so 
insta l led in the  manner which wi l l  allow contact w i th  t h e  Au tho r i t y ' s  
fac i l i t ies  should e i the r  f a i l  o r  fal l .  

B 

B 
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Extension of L i n e s  

A. ELECTRIC 

1 .  

2 .  

3 .  

4. 

5. 

DEFINITIONS: A line extension for  t h e  purpose  of this  rule  is the  
construct ion o r  modification of t he  Authori ty 's  electric dis t r ibut ion 
system required in o r d e r  t ha t  a consumer o r  g r o u p  of consumers may 
receive electric service.  A service d r o p  shall be a n y  secondary 
service with a voltage of 600 volts o r  less. 

FEASl Bl  L l T Y  
condition be  
underground 

: The  Authority shall not unde r  any  circumstances o r  
required to  make an extension o r  enlargement o r  provide 

facilities t ha t  would be  economically unfeasible and  
the reby  cause  an  undue  hardship  upon t h e  Authority or  its t h e n  
exis t ing customers.  In all cases  where such  exis t ing facilities must 
be  expanded,  t h e  Authority will r equi re  a writ ten cont rac t  for  a 
suitable initial cont rac t  period which will justify and  suppor t  t h e  
necessary investment and  reservation of capacity required to r ende r  
such  power serv ice .  

Residential customers  t o  be served  shall cont rac t  with t h e  Authority 
t o  purchase  serv ice  in accordance with the  r a t e s  specified in the  
Authori ty 's  r a t e  schedule  applicable to  such  service.  

Such cont rac t  shall be for  a period of u p  to five ( 5 )  years .  

PERMANENT SERVICE: 

a .  Definition: "Permanent Service" a s  defined herein is construed to 
mean serv ice  to  domestic, rural  and  u rban  consumers,  when use  
of se rv ice  a n d  permanency can be  reasonably a s su red .  

Consumer shall own the  premises involved o r  have a sui table  long 
term lease, o r  o the r  r igh t  to u s e  the  premises sat isfactory to  the 
Authority.  

All t ra i le rs  a n d  mobile homes a r e  considered to be non-permanent 
in na tu re  except  when t h e  t ra i ler  o r  mobile home is placed on 
permanent foundation of concre te ,  rock o r  c inder  block, with the  
wheels, axles  and  tongue arrangement  permanently removed. 

Recreation-type t ra i le rs  will not be  considered permanent unless 
they  also have been placed on permanent foundation of concrete ,  
rock o r  c inder  block, with the  wheels, axles  and  tongue ar range-  
ment permanently removed. 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  24, 1992 
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b. Contract Term: To assure t h a t  the addi t ions t o  p lant ,  l i n e s  and 
system o f  the Author i ty  required t o  provide e l e c t r i c  service t o  new 
consumers w i l l  not  work an undue hardship upon the  Author i ty  o r  i t s  
then e x i s t i n g  customers, consumer s h a l l  be required t o  receive 
service f o r  a per iod o f  60 months and pay the ra te  spec i f i ed  i n  the  
Author i ty ’s  ra te  schedules, and under special circumstances, enter 
i n t o  a longer term contract .  

c. Extension Charges: 

1. Without Charge: The Author i ty  w i l l  extend a member extension 
t o  any permanent res iden t ia l  consumer provided t h a t  t he  t o t a l  
construct ion investment required does not exceed a construct ion 
cost  o f  $1,500. Meters and transformers w i l l  be provided 
exclusive of t h i s  allowed c r e d i t .  

2.  With Charge: I f  the construct ion investment required f o r  the 
permanent res iden t ia l  consumer does exceed the construct ion 
c r e d i t  as provided under Subsection c.1. above, the consumer 
w i l l  be required t o  pay f o r  the d i f ference and make an advanced 
con t r i bu t i on  as determined by the Author i ty ’s  d i s t r i c t  o f f i c e  
p r i o r  t o  the s t a r t  o f  construct ion o f  any f a c i l i t i e s .  

I n  the event the actual construct ion cost i s  more or  less than 
the estimated cost, the consumer w i l l  be charged o r  refunded 
the di f ference, provided there has been a major design or  
const ruct ion change. 

This advance con t r i bu t i on  i s  required t o  insure t h a t  the 
Au tho r i t y  w i l l  recover i t s  construct ion investment i n  the l i n e  
extension and not place undue hardship on e x i s t i n g  customers. 

For any extension o r i g i n a t i n g  o f f  o f  a l i n e  with an establ ished 
minimum w i t h i n  f i v e  years o f  t he  o r i g i n a l  contract, a l l  costs 
w i l l  be re-evaluated t o  f a i r l y  d i s t r i b u t e  cost t o  o r i g i n a l  
consumer and new consumer a l i k e .  No adjustment w i l l  be 
r e t r o a c t i v e  beyond date o f  new extensions. The non-refunded 
con t r i bu t i on  s h a l l  become the property o f  the Author i ty .  

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: March 4 9  1993 
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In t h e  even t  cons t ruc t ion  of t h e  backbone or  main t r u n k l i n e  
systems i s  necessary to  serve a new res ident ia l  community, 
t he  developer wil l  be  requ i red  to  p rov ide  in advance a non- 
re fundable cont r ibu t ion  in a id  of const ruct ion to  cover the  
ful l-cost o f  such a system. 

3. For  commercial o r  la rge  indus t r ia l ,  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  wi l l  r equ i re  
a w r i t t e n  cont rac t  for a su i tab le i n i t i a l  per iod  which wi l l  
j u s t i f y  and  suppor t  t h e  necessary investment and reservat ion 
o f  capaci ty  requ i red  to  render  such power service. 

6. 

7. 

8 .  

ELECTRIC FACIL IT IES FOR SUB-DIVISION AND LAND DEVELOPMENT: 

Platted developments be ing subd iv ided for f u t u r e  potential res ident ia l  
homesites o r  building development w i l l  r e q u i r e  a non-refundable 
contr ibut ion- in-a id  o f  const ruct ion to  be  made by the  commercial 
developer, t o  cover  the  to ta l  cost of t h e  basic backbone p r imary  
system being instal led. F u t u r e  ind iv idua l  res ident ia l  connections 
eventual ly  made, inc lud ing  necessary t ransformers,  serv ice drops ,  
etc. , wi l l  be extended under  t h e  regu la r  res ident ia l  extension pol icy .  

RELOCATION OF AUTHORITY FACIL IT IES:  

When the  A u t h o r i t y  is  requested t o  relocate i t s  facil i t ies f o r  the  
benef i t  a n d / o r  convenience o f  a consumer, t h e  consumer shal l  reim- 
bu rse  the  A u t h o r i t y  f o r  t h e  to ta l  cost  of work  before const ruct ion 
begins. In t h e  event  the  actual cons t ruc t ion  cost i s  d i f f e ren t  than 
t h e  estimated cost, t h e  owner wi l l  be  charged o r  re funded the  d i f f e r -  
ence. 

SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS: 

Noth ing  contained in t h i s  r u l e  shal l  p r e v e n t  t he  A u t h o r i t y  from 
p r o v i d i n g  serv ice t o  any customer upon terms and condit ions other  
than  as p rov ided  here in  when the  A u t h o r i t y ,  a f t e r  consideration and 
review o f  a l l  o f  t h e  circumstances, shal l  find t h a t  good cause ex is ts  
f o r  t h e  establishment of terms and condi t ions applicable t o  t h e  service 
sought  d i f f e r e n t  from those set f o r t h  in t h i s  r u l e  and t h e  establish- 
ment of d i f f e ren t  terms and condit ions shal l  r e s u l t  in fa i r ,  jus t ,  and 
reasonable ra tes of service which are  n o t  preferent ia l  as to  any  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November 9 1 9 9 2  
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customer o r  unreasonably discriminatory a s  to  a n y  customer,  nor shall 
anyth ing  in th i s  rule  requi re  the  Authori ty  to make an extension tha t  
would not be economically feasible and the reby  cause  undue  hardship 
on o the r  customers .  

B .  NATURAL G A S  

1 .  T h e  Authority from t i m e  to  t i m e  will make such  reasonable extensions 
of its mains and  lines and will install such  o the r  facilities a s  may be 
required to provide natural  g a s  serv ice  to customers  making applica- 
t ions therefore .  

a .  Without cha rge :  T h e  Authori ty  will ex tend  its mains and service 
lines a t  no c h a r g e  to  t h e  permanent residential customer provided 
t h a t  t he  total construct ion investment requi red  does not exceed 
t h e  s t anda rd  t h r e e  t i m e s  average  annual revenue  expected to  be 
genera ted  b y  the  Authority from t h a t  customer class.  

b .  With cha rge :  If t he  construct ion investment required for  the  
residential customer does exceed the  construct ion c red i t  a s  
provided u n d e r  Subsection 7 . a .  above,  t he  customer will be 
required to pay the  difference and  make a n  advanced contribution 
a s  determined by  the  Authori ty 's  d i s t r ic t  office prior to t h e  s t a r t  
of construct ion of any  facilities. 

In the  e v e n t ,  t h e  actual construct ion cos t  is more or less than 
t h e  estimated cos t ,  t he  customer will be charged  o r  refunded t h e  
difference,  provided t h e r e  has  been a major design o r  con- 
s t ruc t ion  change .  

c .  For a non-residential customer,  t h e  Authori ty  will r equi re  a 
writ ten cont rac t  for a sui table  initial period which will justify and 
s u p p o r t  t h e  necessary investment and  reservat ion capacity 
requi red  to  r ende r  such  natural  g a s  service.  T h e  customer will 
be  required to  pay for  t h e  full cos t  of t h e  construct ion and  to 
make an advanced contribution a s  determined by t h e  Authority 
pr ior  to t h e  s t a r t  of construct ion of any  facilities. 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
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b.  The  Authori ty  will not be required to make any  refund on account 
of connection to  the  extension of a n y  customer used a s  a basis 
for  calculation of the  proportionate p a r t  of t he  extension cost  to  
be borne by  t h e  Authori ty .  

c .  No re funds  will be  d u e  o r  payable on account  of a n y  customer 
connecting to  t h e  extension a f te r  expiration of a three-year 
period following completion of t he  extension.  
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c 
2 .  Subject  to the  conditions and limitations set for th  in Section 8 . 3 .  

below, t h e  Authori ty  will  make re funds  of t he  amounts paid by cus-  
tomers in connection w i t h  t he  main extensions a s  follows: 

I 

a .  For each new customer connected direct ly  to  t h e  extension,  an  
amount will be  refunded equal to the  proportionate cost  of t h e  
extension prora ted  over  a five-year allowance extension. 

d .  T h e  total amount refundable shall in no even t  exceed the  amount 
paid to t h e  Authority in connection with the  extension without 
any  in te res t  whatsoever .  

b .  Each such  refund will be  made by t h e  Authority a s  promptly a s  
practicable a f t e r  service is commenced to the  new customer occa- 
sioning t h e  re fund .  

3 .  T h e  Authori ty 's  obligation to make re funds  a s  provided in Section 
B . 2 .  above  shall be subject  to the  following conditions and  limitations: 

a .  No re fund  will be  d u e  o r  made b y  reason of a n y  customer con- 
necting with o r  using g a s  from a f u r t h e r  extension of t he  partic- 
ular  extension for  which payment was made o r  a n y  o the r  exten-  
sion connected laterally there to .  

e. If more than  one pa r ty  executes  t h e  extension agreement ,  r e funds  
will be payable in equal proportions to t h e  par t ies  execut ing t h e  
extension agreement.  

4. Not withstanding t h e  o ther  provisions of th i s  ru le ,  t h e  Authori ty  shall 
not be required to  make a n y  extension of its mains where unde r  the  
circumstances prevailing a t  t he  t i m e ,  such  extension would prove not 
economically feasible in t h e  opinion of t h e  Authori ty .  

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  1 9  1992 
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5 .  T h e  extensions of mains and lines re fer red  to  in th i s  ru le  a r e  con- 
cerned  with dis t r ibut ion mains and  lines and  do not include "yard" 
lines designated solely to s e r v e  the  customer involved. The  yard 
lines shall remain the  responsibil i ty of t he  customer se rved  and  the  
Authori ty  shall not  pay a n y  cost  of such  yard  lines. 

6 .  T h e  dividing point between the  Authori ty 's  system and  t h e  -customer's  
facility shall be a s  defined in Ru le  8 ,  "Point o f  Delivery". 

C. WATER 

1 .  T h e  Authori ty  from t i m e  to  t i m e  will make such  reasonable extensions 
of its mains and  serv ice  lines and  will install such  o the r  facilities a s  
may be required for  water se rv ice  to customers making application 
therefor .  

a .  Without cha rge :  T h e  Authority w i l l  extend  its mains and service 
lines a t  no cha rge  to  the  permanent residential customer provided 
t h a t  t h e  total construct ion investment required does not exceed 
t h e  s t anda rd  t h r e e  times average  annual revenue  expected to be 
genera ted  b y  the  Authori ty  from tha t  customer class.  

b .  With cha rge :  If t h e  construction investment requi red  for the  
residential  customer does exceed t h e  construct ion c red i t  a s  
provided unde r  Subsection 1.a. above,  t h e  customer will be 
requi red  to pay  the  difference and  make a n  advanced contribution 
a s  determined by t h e  Authori ty 's  d i s t r ic t  office pr ior  t o  t h e  s t a r t  
of construct ion of a n y  facilities. 

In t h e  e v e n t ,  t he  actual construct ion cost  is more o r  less than 
t h e  estimated cos t ,  the  customer will  be charged  o r  refunded the  
difference,  provided t h e r e  has  been a major design o r  con- 
s t ruc t ion  change .  

c.  For all o the r  customers ,  t h e  total construct ion cost  of the  exten-  
sion will r equi re  a non-refundable contribution in aid of con- 
s t ruc t ion  for  t h e  full cos t  of t h e  extension from said customers .  

2 .  Subject  to t h e  conditions and limitations set for th  in Section C.3. 
below, the  Authori ty  will make re funds  of t h e  amounts paid by  cus- 
tomers in connection with t h e  extensions a s  follows: 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: September 24 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992 
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e 

a .  For each new residential customer connected direct ly  to the  
extension,  an amount will be refunded equal to t h e  proportionate 
cost  of t h e  extension prorated over  a five-year allowance exten- 
sion. 

b .  Each s u c h  re fund  will be  made by  the  Authori ty  a s  promptly a s  
practicable a f t e r  service is commenced to the  new customer occa- 
sioning t h e  re fund .  

3 .  T h e  Author i ty ' s  obligation to make r e funds  a s  provided in Section 
C.2. shall be  subject  to t h e  following conditions and  limitations: 

a .  No re fund  will be  d u e  o r  made by  reason of a n y  customer con- 
necting with o r  using water from a f u r t h e r  extension of t h e  
par t icular  extension for  which payment was made o r  any  o the r  
extension connected laterally thereto.  

~ b. T h e  Authori ty  will not be required to make a n y  refund on account 

for  calculation of t h e  proportionate pa r t  of t he  extension cost  to 
be borne by  t h e  Authori ty .  

I o f  connection to t h e  extension of a n y  customer used a s  a basis 

c .  No r e funds  will be  d u e  o r  payable on account  o f  a n y  customer 
connecting to t h e  extension a f te r  expiration of a five-year period 

, following completion of t h e  extension. 

d. T h e  total amount refundable  shall in no even t  exceed t h e  amount 
paid to t h e  Authori ty  in connection with t h e  extension without 
a n y  in te res t  whatsoever.  

e .  If more than  one pa r ty  executes  t h e  extension agreement ,  re funds  
will be payable in equal proportions to  the  par t ies  executing the  
extension agreement .  

4.  The  Authori ty  shall not unde r  any  conditions be  obligated o r  required 
to make an extension tha t  is not economically feasible. 

5 .  T h e  extensions of mains and  lines re fer red  to  in th i s  rule a r e  con- 
cerned with dis t r ibut ion mains and  lines and do not include "yard"  
lines designated solely t o  s e r v e  the customer involved. The  yard  
lines shall remain t h e  responsibil i ty of t he  customer se rved  and the  
Authority shall not  pay any  cos t  of such  ya rd  lines. 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992 
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6 .  Nothing in th i s  ru le  shall p revent  t he  Authori ty  from negotiating 
special a r rangements  for extensions so long a s  such  agreements a r e  
fa i r  and  reasonable and do  not discriminate unfairly aga ins t  other  
customers  o f  t h e  Authori ty .  

7. T h e  Authori ty  r e se rves  the  r igh t  to inspect  such  construct ion while 
in p rogres s  and  will r equi re  actual supervis ion by  t h e  Authori ty 's  
representa t ive  of t h e  physical connection between t h e  Authority 's  
exis t ing system and  a n y  new construct ion.  

D.  WASTEWATER 

~ ~ 

-1 

A 

1. In view of t h e  fac t  t h a t  t h e  Authori ty 's  wastewater service is pro- 
vided unde r  r a t e s  which r e t u r n  revenue  solely for  operation and 
maintenance o f  t h e  system, t h e  Authori ty  will not under take  extension 
of its wastewater mains o r  t r u n k s .  

2 .  Customers reques t ing  serv ice ,  which will r equi re  extensions of t he  
Authori ty 's  l ines,  shall be required to  bear  the  full cost  of such 
ex tens ions ,  including des ign ,  engineer ing,  and  construct ion.  All 
such  extensions shall conform to t h e  Authori ty 's  over-all plan for its 
system in t h e  a rea  a n d  all plans and  specifications shall be approved 
in writ ing by  t h e  Authori ty  pr ior  to construct ion.  

3 .  T h e  Authori ty  r e se rves  the  r igh t  to inspect  such  construct ion whi le  
in p rogres s  and  will r equi re  actual supervis ion by t h e  Authority 's  
representa t ive  o f  t h e  physical connection between t h e  Authori ty 's  
exis t ing system and  a n y  new construct ion.  

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  24 ,  1992  
I 
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A. Temporary service, as here in defined, shal l  re fe r  t o  serv ice t o  circuses, 
b izarres,  fa i rs ,  rodeos, cons t ruc t ion  work, concessions, and o ther  enter- 
pr ises o f  a temporary nature.  I f  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  deems the  permanency o f  
a v e n t u r e  questionable, t h e  serv ice may b e  considered in t h i s  class a t  the  
opt ion of t h e  A u t h o r i t y .  Temporary serv ice shall be cont inued fo r  a 
per iod  no longer than  1 8  months. Thereaf ter ,  serv ice may be cont inued 
in accordance w i t h  terms o f  t h e  extension pol icy, as out l ined in Rule 17, 
"Extension o f  Lines". 

B.  The  A u t h o r i t y  shal l  r equ i re  t h e  customer t o  advance a l l  o f  t h e  cost of a 
temporary ( u p  and down costs) service extension, such advance t o  be  
reta ined by the  A u t h o r i t y  if serv ice i s  d iscont inued w i th in  18  months. 

C .  Customers under  a temporary serv ice agreement shal l  be b i l led  fo r  serv ice 
under  t h e  f i led  r a t e  f o r  o ther  service o f  l i ke  character. Serv ice fo r  
specialized usage shal l  be  considered as a special case when no t  covered 
by a specif ic r a t e  schedule for  t h a t  usage. T h e  deposi t  requi rement  fo r  
guarantee o f  payment o f  b i l l s  shal l  be the  same as fo r  permanent service. 

D. No addit ional customer w i l l  be connected to  a temporary extension. 

E. Al l  temporary serv ice connections shal l  be approved by the  Au tho r i t y .  

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1992 
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T r a i l e r  Cour ts  E Mobile Home Parks  

A .  Serv ice p rov ided  t o  t ra i l e r  cou r t s  o r  mobile home p a r k s  wi l l  be  considered 
special and wi l l  be  p rov ided  under  the  fol lowing general po l i cy :  

1. 

2 .  

3 .  

4. 

5 .  

Serv ice t o  permanent off ice bu i ld ings ,  restrooms, b a t h  houses, 
laundry faci l i t ies, outside lighting, etc., necessary to  t h e  general 
operation o f  t h e  t ra i l e r  c o u r t  wi l l  be considered General o r  Commercial 
Service, and  w i l l  be  b i l led  under  t h e  applicable General Service o r  
Commercial Rate Schedule. 

Serv ice to  a “ t rans ien t ”  t ra i l e r  complex shall be  l imited to  those 
operations where a t ra i l e r  is  hooked up to  available utility services 
f o r  a per iod  of Jess than  f i f teen (IS) days. Such serv ice i s  not to b e  
ind iv idua l l y  metered, but master metered, and  plans and specifications 
f o r  t h e  serv ice must  be  submitted to  and  approved by t h e  Au tho r i t y .  
A l l  faci l i t ies w i th in  t h e  complex w i l l  be  t h e  respons ib i l i t y  o f  t h e  
developer. Serv ice wi l l  b e  b i l led  u n d e r  t h e  General Serv ice o r  
Commercial Rate Schedule. 

T h e  A u t h o r i t y  reserves the  right t o  inspect  t h e  books and records o f  
a n y  t ra i l e r  c o u r t  o r  mobile home p a r k  operation in o r d e r  to  insure  
compliance w i t h  t h e  i n ten t  of t h i s  Rule insofar as l imitat ions on 
avai lab i l i ty  o f  serv ice under  t h e  Commercial Rate o r  t h e  General 
Serv ice Rate Schedule i s  concerned. 

Under  no condi t ions wi l l  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  p rov ide  facil i t ies beyond the  
meter, and t h e  A u t h o r i t y  reserves the  right t o  discontinue serv ice fo r  
v io la t ion of t h i s  Rule and any  o ther  Rule o r  Regulat ion o f  the  
A u t h o r i t y  pa r t i cu la r l y  where safety is  invo lved.  

Water and sewer services to  t ra i l e r  cou r t s  and mobile home p a r k s  wi l l  
be master metered in close prox imi ty  t o  the  p a r k  boundary  and  b i l led 
a t  t h e  General o r  Commercial Rate. A l l  the  water and  sewer lines 
w i th in  i t s  p a r k  shal l  remain p r i va te  faci l i t ies. 

B .  ELECTRIC 

1 

1.  Serv ice t o  t ra i l e r  cour ts ,  mobile home p a r k s  o r  complexes shall be 
ind iv idua l l y  metered to  a l l  such t ra i l e rs  o r  mobile homes, and the  
developer shal l  p rov ide  ind iv idua l  meter bases, approved by the  
Au tho r i t y ,  in accordance w i th  th is  ru le .  Plans and specifications fo r  
such ind i v idua l l y  metered serv ice shall b e  submi t ted to  and approved 
by the  A u t h o r i t y  in advance o f  serv ice be ing  made available. A l l  
such ind iv idua l l y  metered serv ice shall be  b i l led  under  t h e  Residential 
Rate Schedule. 

APPROVED BY: DATEOFAPPROVAL:  Sep tember  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November 1,  1992  
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C. NATURAL GAS 

1. The provision o f  Rule 17.B.l.a. and b. sha 1 apply tothe installation 
of natural gas service for  existing residential units in trailer courts 
or mobile home parks, and service to eachtrailer or mobile home shall 
be individually metered. 

2 .  In order to qualify f o r  natural gas service, the record owner of the 
mobile home park must enter into a standard form agreement with the 
Authority granting the Authority the right to install its lines and 
meters within the mobile home park, at no additional expense to the 
Authority and providing for  any contribution to be made by the owner of 
the park where required by operation of Rule 17.B.l.b. In addition, 
such standard agreement shall obligate the owner of the mobile hme 
park to guarantee the Authority’s right to provide natural gas service 
to the park for  a three year period following completion of the 
installation of the facilities or  be responsible fo r  payment o f  
liquidated damages in an amount equivalent to the allowance provided by 
the Authority toward the construction investment. 

3 .  The Authority under no circumstances will provide natural gas service 
through the facilities constructed by others except where constructed 
under the immediate inspection of the Authority’s authorized 
representative. 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: March 4, 1993 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 1* lW2 
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Rule 20 
Services  

A .  Where serv ices  a r e  installed and  approved ,  t h e  Authori ty  will install 
metering equipment upon execution of customer 's  application for service 
and  the  customer's  compliance with the  Authori ty 's  rules  and  regulations 
herein s e t  for th  a s  to deposi ts  and  service requirements.  

1 .  ELECTRIC 

a .  Where serv ice  wires a r e  not installed,  t he  Authori ty  will install 
them, from dis t r ibut ion pole lines to serv ice  terminal a t  exter ior  
of customer 's  premises ,  provided it does not exceed t h e  extension 
allowance for  service line. 

b. T h e  pract ice  of extending t h e  service from house to  house instead 
of running  a special se rv ice  o r  extending the  pole lines shall be 
absolutely prohibited.  

I c. Not more than  one  set of se rv ice  wires will be  r u n  to t h e  same 
premises for each class  of service furn ished  to the  customer 
except  where,  in t he  judgement of t he  Authori ty ,  additional 
se rv ice  wires a r e  necessary to  supply  proper  service.  

d .  Underground electric se rv ice  can be supplied to  a customer upon 
r eques t  and receipt of t he  necessary contribution based upon the  
difference between t h e  underground cost  and  t h e  cost  of an 
equivalent overhead s y s  tern . 
1 .  Materials and  construct ion methods a s  well  a s  items required 

to be  suppl ied b y  the  customer will be furn ished  by  the  
Author i ty ' s  Elect rica I Engineering Department . 

I 2 .  NATURAL G A S  

a .  T h e  Authori ty  shall des ign ,  install, opera te  and  maintain its 
facilities u p  to and  including the  metering equipment.  All facil- 
ities located a f t e r  t he  metering equipment shall be the  respon- 
sibility of t h e  customer.  

b .  No connection shall be  made between t h e  facilities of the  
Authority including t h e  metering equipment and those  of t he  
customer,  nor shall a n y  facilities of t h e  Authority be discon- 
nec ted ,  removed, repa i red ,  or a l te red ,  except by t h e  Authori ty 's  
authorized representa t ives  and  agen t s .  

APPROVED BY: DATEOF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992 
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c .  Buildings located on sepa ra t e  lots a r e  to  be  supplied with indi- 
vidual se rv ice  connect ions,  except  in cases  of special contractual 
a r rangements  with the  Authority.  

The  Authori ty  may decline service i f  t h e  conditions do not ,  in the  
Authori ty 's  sole opinion, afford adequate  protection fo r  t h e  occu- 
pant  o r  occupants  thereof ,  o r  t h e  persons  o r  p rope r ty  of o the r s .  
In no event  will g a s  se rv ice  be commenced o r  continued i f ,  to the  
Authori ty 's  knowledge, t h e  customer o r  customer 's  facilities fail to 
meet applicable requirements  of law and the  National Fuel Gas 
Code. 

d .  

3 .  WATER 

a .  T h e  Authori ty  r e se rves  t h e  r igh t  to specify t h e  point of service 
en t r ance  to a n y  premise and  must be contacted for  exac t  informa- 
tion regard ing  t h e  serv ice  en t rance  before any  piping in t h e  in- 
ter ior  of t h e  building has  been s t a r t ed .  If such  information is 
not s ecu red ,  expensive changes  in piping installation may result 
for which t h e  Authori ty  shall not be held liable in a n y  way and  
will not assume a n y  responsibil i ty.  

l 

b.  Not more than  one serv ice  line for  each c lass  of service shall be 
installed on t h e  premises for  any  one customer.  Where it is 
desired to  a r r a n g e  t h e  water piping of a n y  building o r  premise so  
tha t  s epa ra t e  metering facilities a r e  provided for  var ious portions 
of same, proper  space  for  facilities must be provided in such  
building o r  premise to accommodate all of t h e  Authori ty 's  metering 
equipment for  t he  en t i r e  building o r  premise and  piping performed 
accordingly.  All se rv ice  meters fo r  a n y  par t icular  building o r  
premise m u s t  be located in t h e  same space  or  a t  t he  same point 
outside o f  buildings or  premises. More than  one premise will not 
be  se rved  th rough  one meter except  a g r o u p  of buildings under  
one management o r  control ,  and  f u r t h e r  provided tha t  each build- 
ing is an  integral  p a r t  of and necessary to  the  operation of t he  
facility. If s epa ra t e  metering is required to  s e r v e  an additional 
premise on t h e  same p r o p e r t y ,  billing will be sepa ra t e  on each 
meter and  will not be combined. 

APPROVED BY: D A T E O F  APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
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c .  Every  customer request ing a new serv ice ,  o r  series of se rv ices ,  
shall complete and  submit for  each serv ice  a Permission-To-Tap 
form to  t h e  appropr ia te  Authori ty 's  office for  review, approval ,  
and  subsequen t  processing. This  form must include the  appro- 
priately sized service schematic and  specific materials list for t h e  
new connection o r  connections. In addi t ion,  t h e  customer will be 
required to  complete, o r  have completed to  the  satisfaction of t h e  
Authori ty ,  a utility site plan (which will be  subsequent ly  submit- 
ted a s  an "as-built" drawing with installation construct ion notes 
and  changes )  indicating the  length of service line, placement of 
valves ,  meters ,  and appur tenances ,  location a n d  station of 
exis t ing source  line, and  all o ther  buried and overhead utilities 
t h a t  will affect  construct ion.  I f  appropr ia te ,  following 
cons t ruc t ion ,  t h e  customer will be required to  s ign an NTUA 
Utility T r a n s f e r  Agreement which will allow t h e  Authority to 
opera te  and  maintain t h e  facility following a one year  material and  
workmanship guarantee  provided by  agreement with t h e  customer.  
T h e  customer is also responsible for providing all right-of-way 
documentation necessary for  t h e  new service installation. 

d .  T h e  customer shall be responsible for  all cos t s  beyond the  exten-  
sion allowance related to  the  new serv ice  connection tha t  will be 
absorbed  subsequent ly  into t h e  Authori ty 's  systems fo r  operations 
and  maintenance. The  Authori ty 's  operation and  maintenance 
responsibil i ty shall cover  only tha t  segment of t h e  service line 
from t h e  main line u p  to and  including t h e  meter. All costs  of 
operation and  maintenance of t h e  system from t h e  meter to the  
building shall remain t h e  responsibil i ty of t he  customer 

1 .  If r eques t ed ,  t he  Authori ty  a t  its sole option shall p repa re  a 
construct ion cost  estimate for t he  customer's  review. This  
estimate shall include the  cost  of materials, labor ,  t ranspor-  
ta t ion,  and  all related expenses  and  overheads applicable to  
t h e  project.  The  customer will  be  required to t ende r  payment 
pr ior  t o  t h e  Authori ty 's  initiation of contruction. If t he  
actual construct ion cos t ,  including all applicable overhead 
c h a r g e s ,  is more o r  less than  the  estimated cost  and provided 
the re  has  been a major design o r  construct ion change ,  t h e  
Authori ty  shall collect payment or issue a re fund  for t he  
difference in costs  pr ior  to the  Authori ty 's  accepting the  
system. 

i 

D 
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2 .  The  customer a t  his expense  may retain a pr iva te  plumbing 
contractor  approved  by  t h e  Authori ty  to  install all service 
lines and  appur tenances .  T h e  contractor 's  materials and  
workmanship shal I conform t o  t h e  Authori ty 's  s t a n d a r d s  and 
shall be  subjec t  to continual inspection by  t h e  Authori ty  
du r ing  all phases  of t h e  construct ion act ivi ty .  T h e  Authority 
will  be  t h e  sole judge  regarding t h e  acceptability of a n y  and 
all facets  of t h e  project,  and  all deficiencies must be 
cor rec ted  to t h e  satisfaction of t h e  Authority pr ior  to the  
installation of t h e  meter or initiation of service.  

e. No cross  connections with any  o the r  source  of water shall be 
made to Authori ty 's  lines. 

, 
I f .  Where t h e  operat ing water p r e s s u r e  is less than  20 psi a n d  the  
I water p r e s s u r e  and  volume is determined by  the  customer to be 

less than t h e  customer's  requirements ,  t he  customer shall a t  the i r  
own expense  install a pump and  p r e s s u r e  s to rage  tank .  

g. If t he  water p r e s s u r e  a t  t h e  customer 's  se rv ice  is in excess  of 80 
psi ,  t h e  customer shall a t  his own expense  install an adjustable  
pressure regulat ing device to reduce  del ivery p re s su re  to 60 psi .  

h ,  A t  t he  customer's  r eques t ,  t he  Authori ty  will make an individual 
engineer ing s t u d y  and  recommend equipment required to provide 
adequate  serv ice  and  all special equipment to be  pu rchased ,  
installed and  owned by t h e  customer.  T h e  customer may be billed 
for  labor,  material ,  and  overhead bas is .  

i .  On all projects wherein construct ion is performed by t h e  United 
S ta t e s  Public Health Service unde r  Public Law 86-121 and  t h e  fin- 
ished system is tu rned  over  to t h e  Authority complete with 
customer connections,  all service connection cha rges  shall be 
waived. Additional connections a f t e r  d a t e  of  assumption of  
responsibility by t h e  Authority shall be charged  a s  provided in 
these  rules and  regulations and  in t h e  r a t e  schedules .  

4 ,  WASTEWATER 

a .  All customers shal l ,  in addition to  t h e  connection c h a r g e  a s  
provided u n d e r  t h e  Table  of Fees and  Charges ,  bear  all cos t s  of 
service lines and  t a p s  t o  connect with exis t ing mains and  t r u n k s .  

APPROVED BY: DATEOF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November 1 9  1 9 9 2  
/ 
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b. On a l l  p ro jec ts  where in cons t ruc t ion  i s  performed by the  Uni ted 
States Publ ic  Health Serv ice under  Public Law 86-121 and t h e  fin- 
ished system i s  t u r n e d  ove r  t o  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  complete w i t h  cus- 
tomer connections, a l l  serv ice connection charges shal l  be  waived. 
Addi t ional  connections af ter  date of assumption of responsib i l i ty  
by t h e  A u t h o r i t y  shall be  charged as prov ided in these ru les  and 
regulat ions and in t h e  ra te  schedules. 

c. E v e r y  customer reques t ing  a new service, o r  series o f  services, 
shall complete and submi t  fo r  each serv ice a Permission-To-Tap 
fo rm t o  t h e  appropr ia te  A u t h o r i t y ' s  o f f ice for rev iew,  approval, 
and  subsequent  processing. T h i s  form must  inc lude t h e  appro- 
p r i a te l y  sized serv ice schematic and  specif ic materials l i s t  f o r  t he  
new connection o r  connections. In addi t ion,  t h e  customer wi l l  b e  
r e q u i r e d  t o  complete, o r  have completed t o  the  satisfact ion o f  t h e  
A u t h o r i t y ,  a utility s i te  p lan  (wh ich  w i l l  be subsequent ly  sub- 
mi t ted  as a n  "as-bui l t"  d raw ing  w i th  instal lat ion const ruct ion 
notes a n d  changes) ind ica t ing  t h e  length  o f  serv ice l ine, place- 
ment o f  valves, meters, and  appurtenances, location and  stat ion 
o f  ex i s t i ng  source l ine, a n d  a l l  o ther  b u r i e d  a n d  overhead ut i l i t ies  
t h a t  w i l l  affect const ruct ion.  If appropr ia te,  fol lowing con- 
s t ruc t i on ,  t h e  customer wi l l  be  r e q u i r e d  to  s i g n  an  NTUA U t i l i t y  
T rans fe r  Agreement which wi l l  allow the A u t h o r i t y  to  operate and 
maintain t h e  fac i l i ty  fol lowing a one year material and  workrnan- 
ship guarantee p rov ided  by agreement w i t h  the  customer. The 
customer i s  also responsible f o r  p r o v i d i n g  a l l  r ight-of-way 
documentation necessary fo r  t he  new serv ice instal lat ion. 

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
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B .  

C. 

Rule 21 
T rans fo rmer  Subs ta t ions  

When a n  indoor installation of t r a n s f o r m e r s ,  switching equipment ,  o r  o t h e r  
a p p a r a t u s  is made b y  t h e  Au thor i ty ,  t h e  cus tomer  shall f u r n i s h ,  without  
cos t  t o  t h e  Au thor i ty ,  a weatherproof  bui lding or  room upon h i s  p r o p e r t y  
in accordance  with specif icat ions of t h e  National Board of F i re  Under-  
writers a n d  NTUA specif icat ions f o r  housing s u c h  equipment  fu rn i shed  b y  
t h e  Author i ty .  Sa id  bui lding o r  room shall  be well  vent i la ted  a n d  f r e e  of 
excess ive  moisture  o r  d u s t .  T h e  customer shall  a l so  f u r n i s h  without  c o s t  
t o  t h e  Au thor i ty ,  right-of-way fo r  t h e  Au thor i ty ' s  pole l ine,  if r equ i r ed .  

If a n  outdoor  subs t a t ion  is found necessa ry  o r  des i r ab le ,  t h e  customer 
shall  f u r n i s h  without  cos t  t o  t h e  Author i ty  suf f ic ien t  g r o u n d  a r e a  t o  
install  s u c h  equipment  a s  may be requ i r ed  a n d  provide  t h e  necessa ry  
right-of-way to  s e r v e  t h e  s ta t ion .  

I f  t h e  customer is not  t h e  owner  of t h e  premises  to  be served, t h e  
owner ' s  wri t ten consen t  t o  t h e  installation of t h e  subs t a t ion  shall  be 
f u r n i s h e d  to  t h e  Au thor i ty .  

APPROVED BY: DATEOF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1992  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1992 
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Rule 22 
Meter Installations 

Electric a n d  g a s  meters shall be  furn ished ,  installed,  owned and main- 
tained by  t h e  Authori ty .  Residential water meters u p  to and  including 
one inch shall be furn ished  b y  the  Authori ty .  All other  water meters 
shall be  approved  and  subsequent ly  absorbed  by  t h e  Authori ty  for opera- 
tion and  maintenance, b u t  shall be  furn ished  (paid f o r )  by t h e  customer. 
T h e  customer shall exercise reasonable c a r e  in protect ing t h e  Authority 's  
meters from the f t  o r  damage, a n d  t h e  customer may be held responsible 
for  deliberately tampering, removing, o r  damaging a n y  meter. Only the  
Authori ty  shall be permitted to ad jus t ,  repa i r ,  connect ,  disconnect o r  in 
a n y  way change  the  meter o r  o the r  facilities o f  t h e  Authori ty  installed a s  
p a r t  of t h e  customer 's  service.  

1 .  ELECTRIC 

a .  T h e  Authori ty  r e se rves  the  r igh t  to seal all meter en t rance  
switches,  meter sockets ,  meter enc losures ,  and  all service 
en t r ance  boxes regard less  of ownership where t h e  operation o r  
tampering with such  equipment may affect  t h e  registration of the  
meter o r  u se  of ene rgy  con t r a ry  to the  provisions of these  rules 
and  regulations o r  t he  provisions of t he  applicable r a t e  schedule.  

b .  All meters installed fo r  residential u se  shall be  of t h e  outdoor 
t y p e  which shall be mounted a t  a height  of five feet ,  s ix  inches 
(5'6'') from t h e  center  of the  meter to t h e  g r o u n d ,  o r  s tanding 
position from which it is to be  read.  T h e r e  shall be an  u n -  
b roken ,  exposed conduit  r u n  from t h e  serv ice  en t r ance  cap  to  t h e  
socket .  

c .  The customer shall f u r n i s h  and install t h e  meter socket  and  the  
necessary  wiring from serv ice  head to  meter. 

1.  T h e  meter socket shall be located so t h a t  it is ent i re ly  on the 
outs ide of t h e  building. In t h e  even t  a porch or  other 
s t r u c t u r e  is bui l t  so tha t  t h e  meter location is inaccessible, 
t h e  meter socket a n d / o r  se rv ice  conduit  o r  cable shall be 
moved to an  accessible location a t  t h e  expense  of t h e  cus- 
tomer. Whenever t h e  construct ion of a building on an adja- 
cen t  lot p reven t s  proper  access  to a n y  meter o r  t he  point of 
attachment o f  serv ice  conductor ,  t h e  customer shall be re- 
sponsible for  all cha rges  related to moving the  meter a n d / o r  
t h e  serv ice  en t r ance  conductor to a location which will be 
accessible to  t h e  Authori ty 's  employees. 

APPROVED BY: I DATE OF APPROVAL: September 24  t 1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  9 1 9 g 2  
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2 .  T h e  meter socket  shall  be  so  placed t h a t  t h e  meter can  be set 
a n d  t h e  sealing r ing  installed easi ly .  Should a n y  p las te r  o r  
abu tmen t s  be installed a f t e r  t h e  socket  is in place t h a t  would 
in t e r f e re  with t h e  s e t t i n g  of t h e  meter a n d  seal ing r i n g ,  t h e  
customer shall move t h e  socket .  

d .  When more than  one  meter is requ i r ed  for  a building s u c h  a s  a n  
apar tment  bui lding,  all of t h e  meter socke t s  shall  be g rouped  
ad jacent  t o  each o t h e r  a n d  must  be individually numbered and  
identified according t o  apa r tmen t s .  In remodeling, where  two 
s e p a r a t e  houses  a re  combined with a n  addi t ion t o  form one  build- 
i ng ,  there shall be  only one meter. In all remodeling where  t h e  
meter loop is changed  o r  moved, o r  a n y  change  made in t h e  
wir ing,  it will be necessa ry  t o  install ou tdoor  meter socke t s .  

e. All single-phase meters installed for  commercial u s e  t h a t  do  not 
r equ i r e  c u r r e n t  t r ans fo rmers  shall  be socket  t y p e  with t h e  socket  
installed a t  a location approved  b y  t h e  Author i ty .  T h e  meter 
socke t s  shall  be  mounted a t  a he ight  of f ive  fee t  six inches (5'6'') 
above  t h e  f inished floor line o r  g r o u n d  line t o  c e n t e r  of t h e  meter 
a s  t h e  c a s e  may be.  T h e  se rv ice  d isconnec t  switch a n d  cabine t  
shall be  installed ad jacent  to meter socket  o r  a s  nea r  t h e  point of 
service e n t r a n c e  a s  pract icable .  An outdoor  location is p re fe r r ed  
fo r  s ingle-phase commercial meters, provided  t h e  meters will  not 
be sub jec t  t o  damage d u e  t o  a hazardous  location. 

f .  When s ingle-phase meter installations r e q u i r e  c u r r e n t  t r ans -  
formers ,  t h e  customer shall  f u r n i s h  a n d  install a metal cab ine t  o r  
b racke t ,  app roved  b y  t h e  Author i ty ,  to  mount t h e  t r ans fo rmers .  
T h e  cabine t  o r  b racke t  shall  be provided with a su i tab le  means 
fo r  mounting t h e  t r ans fo rmers .  

g .  In all installations r equ i r ing  c u r r e n t  t r ans fo rmers ,  whether  
s ingle-phase o r  th ree-phase ,  t h e  customer shall  p rovide  t h e  meter 
loop a n d  leads fo r  connection of t h e  c u r r e n t  t ransformers .  When 
t h e  meter is t o  be placed in t h e  ins t rument  t ransformer  cabine t ,  a 
su i tab le  window shall be  provided  so t h a t  t h e  meter can  be  read  
without opening t h e  door .  

APPROVED BY: DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: N o v e m b e r  1992  
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h. T h e  customer w i l l  ins ta l l  a meter ing ins t rument  cabinet  whenever, 
in the  A u t h o r i t y ' s  opinion, customer 's load exceeds the  capaci ty 
o f  t he  appl icable self-contained meter. Detai led specifications o f  
meter ing  cabinets a r e  available, upon  request ,  a t  t h e  Au tho r i t y ' s  
o f f ice.  

i. A meter ing  ins t rument  cabinet shal l  be  insta l led by the  customer 
u n d e r  a n y  of t h e  fo l lowing condi t ions:  

1.  When t h e  single-phase 120/240-volt main o r  disconnect swi tch 
i s  l a rge r  than  350 amperes. 

2 .  When t h e  three-phase 240-volt main o r  d isconnect  sw i tch  is  
l a rge r  t h a n  200 amperes. 

3. When t h e  three-phase 480-volt main o r  disconnect sw i tch  i s  
l a rge r  than  200 amperes. 

j .  Meter ing  cabinets shal l  n o t  b e  used to  house customer owned 
equipment such as d i s t r i b u t i o n  panels o r  o ther  equipment,  nor  
used as a j unc t i on  box  f o r  t he  d i s t r i b u t i o n  o f  c i r cu i t s .  

k. All meter loops for single-phase meters t h a t  do  n o t  r e q u i r e  cur -  
r e n t  t rans formers  shal l  b e  w i red  in accordance w i t h  the  approved 
meter sequence; t h a t  is, ( 1 )  Meters,  (2 )  Swi tch  and  ( 3 )  Fuses. 
A l l  la rge  capaci ty  meter  loops t h a t  r e q u i r e  meter t ransformers 
shal l  be  w i red  ahead o f  t h e  main swi tch.  

2.  N A T U R A L  GAS 
I 

a. T h e  customer shal l  f u r n i s h  a locat ion sa t is fac to ry  to  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  
on h is  premises f o r  t h e  A u t h o r i t y ' s  meter ing  equipment which 
shall be  accessible a t  a l l  times to  the  A u t h o r i t y ' s  author ized 
representat ive.  

b. A l l  meters shal l  be located where t h e y  w i l l  n o t  b e  damaged and 
where t h e y  w i l l  be  adequately vent i la ted.  

WATER 

a. T h e  A u t h o r i t y  shal l  determine t h e  make, manufac turer ,  s ty le ,  and 
insta l la t ion procedure  for  al l  meters  used in i t s  system. 

APPROVED BY: DATEOFAPPROVAL:  Sep tember  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
/ 

EFFECTIVE DATE: November  1 ,  1992  
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b. All individual meters o r  meters in tandem shall be installed in the  
Authori ty 's  s t anda rd  vaul t  o r  which can be  properly sized t o  
contain necessary p r e s s u r e  regulating devices ,  valves ,  and 
appur tenances .  

c. All metering systems shall be located a t  o r  near  t h e  proper ty  
boundary  or o ther  established l i m i t s  of land withdrawal of t he  
customer a s  applicable. In all s i tuat ions,  both the  meter and  the  
serv ice  line to the  meter shall be installed within right-of-way 
provided to  o r  a l ready retained by  the  Authori ty .  To facilitate 
maintenance, all metering devices shall have an  unobstructed 
minimum clear dis tance of 25 feet  from a n y  permanent s t r u c t u r e ,  
building wall, o r  improvement belonging to  the  customer,  unless  
specifically authorized b y  t h e  Authority.  Whenever practical ,  
meters shall not be installed unde r  concrete ,  asphal t  or  other  
sur face  improvements which could be  damaged dur ing  excavation. 

4 .  WASTEWATER 

a .  If a non-residential customer with a pr ivate  water supply  system 
is des i rous  of connecting to  a wastewater system belonging to  the  
Author i ty ,  then  the  appropr ia te  metering system a n d / o r  flow 
test ing device,  along with the  financial, f iduciary,  and o ther  
obligations shall be  s t r u c t u r e d  fo r  each reques t .  
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R u l e  23 
Customer's I nstat Iations 

A .  ELECTRIC 

1. 

2 .  

3 .  

4. 

5 .  

6. 

7. 

T h e  u n d e r  aking of t h e  Authority shall b e  complete( by the  supplying 
of electric c u r r e n t  a t ,  o r  a s  near a s  possible to the  s t anda rd  voltage 
for  t h e  class  of service rendered a t  t h e  point of en t r ance  on t h e  
customer 's  premises.  Any appliance or  equipment required to  t rans-  
form, control ,  regulate ,  o r  utilize such  ene rgy  m u s t  be furn ished  and 
maintained by  t h e  customer.  

All wiring between the  point of connection with the  Authority 's  
service and  t h e  meter m u s t  be provided b y  t h e  customer. 

T h e  customer is requested to  consul t  t h e  p rope r  officials a t  t h e  
Authori ty 's  office before proceeding with t h e  installation of wiring, 
appl iances ,  e t c .  

T h e  customer should obtain information in writ ing from t h e  Authority 
a s  to t h e  kind of se rv ice ,  voltage,  f r equency ,  e t c . ,  which the  
Authori ty  has  available a t  a given location, and  a s  to the  proper  
location of t h e  point of connection between t h e  customer's  installation 
and  Authori ty 's  se rv ice  connection. 

Where a new service is to  be installed o r  where the  location of a 
p re sen t  meter is changed ,  t h e  wiring from t h e  Authori ty 's  service 
wire to the  meter shall be in conduit  subject  to the  approval of t h e  
Authori ty 's  authorized employee. 

Where t h e  customer has  failed to provide t h e  proper  installation for 
a t taching the  Authori ty 's  service a s  herein specified,  t he  Authority 
may re fuse  to  connect  until t he  customer has  made t h e  necessary 
changes  a t  his  expense .  

T h e  location of t h e  point where the  customer's  se rv ice  out le t  connects 
t h e  Author i ty ' s  service shall be determined by t h e  Authori ty .  Cus- 
tomer 's  condui t  o r  cable shall be carr ied out  of t h e  building to a 
point a t  least  1 2  feet  and  not more than 25 feet  from the  g round ,  
excep t  in special cases  where the  customer has  obtained permission 
from t h e  Authori ty .  A t  least two feet of wire must ex tend  from the  
condui t ,  which m u s t  be equipped with an  approved weatherproof 
f i t t ing.  

APPROVED BY: A DATE OF APPROVAL: S e p t e m b e r  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  
/ -  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November  9 1992 
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8 .  

9. 

10. 

11. 

12.  

13. 

All electric wiring and  installations to be  connected to the  Authori ty 's  
dis t r ibut ion system shall be made in accordance with t h e  Authori ty 's  
se rv ice  en t rance  requirements.  The  Authori ty  reserves  the  r igh t  in 
all cases  to make final connection of wiring of its system. In case  of 
a n y  damage resul t ing from unauthorized connections,  t h e  customer 
shall be  held responsible for  such  damage. 

T h e  customer's  wiring should be designed so t h a t  t h e r e  is not more 
than  two percent  ( 2 % )  loss in voltage between t h e  point where con- 
nection is made with the  Authori ty 's  se rv ice  and  a n y  p a r t  of t h e  
customer 's  load a t  t he  t i m e  of his g rea t e s t  possible demand. 

Where f luorescent  l ighting uni t s  or l ighting uni t s  of similar low power 
factor a r e  used, capaci tors  to br ing power factor  to  a s  near  uni ty  a s  
possible shall be  p a r t  of each uni t .  Customers will  be  charged  fo r  
using KVA a n d  KVAH d u e  to low power factor 

The  Authori ty  will c h a r g e  fo r  all materials furn ished  and  for  all work 
done on t h e  customer 's  premises; such  a s ,  for  t rouble  calls not 
occasioned b y  defaul t  or negligence on t h e  p a r t  of t he  Authori ty ,  t he  
replacement of fuse  p lugs ,  and a n y  o the r  work reques ted  and 
authorized b y  t h e  customer for  t he  repair  of customer 's  wiring and 
equipment.  T h e  Authori ty  will not c h a r g e  for  a n y  cos ts  of replace- 
ments or repa i rs  to  equipment furnished and owned by  the  Authority 
on customer 's  premises, except  a s  otherwise noted herein.  

Where t h e  customer furn ishes  the  necessary  complete substat ion 
equipment to t ake  service a t  primary serv ice  voltage,  such  equipment 
shall be maintained b y  t h e  customer and  shall include the  necessary 
t ransformers ,  structures,  controls and  protect ive equipment. The  
quali ty and  construct ion of such  equipment shall b e  equivalent  to  the  
Authori ty 's  s t a n d a r d s ,  shall be approved by  t h e  Author i ty ,  and  m e e t  
t h e  code applicable to the  installation. 

Where wiring has  been installed e i ther  before o r  a f t e r  t he  meter by  a 
pr iva te  cont rac tor ,  t h e  contractor  shall supp ly  t h e  Authority with a 
letter cer t i fying t h e  adequacy of such  wiring. 

D A T E O F  APPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1992  
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5 .  NATURAL GAS 

1 .  T h e  customer shall provide a waiver letter tha t  s t a t e s :  

a .  The  Authori ty  w i l l  not be liable for  a n y  customer piping done by  
pr iva te  cont rac tors .  

b .  All customer piping is free of leaks based upon an  acceptable 
p r e s s u r e  test. 

C .  WATER 

1 .  The  customer shall provide a waiver letter t h a t  s t a t e s :  

a .  T h e  Authori ty  will not b e  liable for  any  customer piping done by 
pr iva te  cont rac tors .  

b. All customer piping is free of leaks based upon a n  acceptable 
p r e s s u r e  test. 

D. WASTEWATER 

1 .  T h e  customer shall provide a waiver letter t h a t  s t a t e s :  

a. T h e  Authori ty  will not be liable for a n y  customer piping done by 
p ri va te cont rac tors  . 

b. All customer piping is free of leaks based upon an  acceptable 
p r e s s u r e  test. . 

APPROVED BY: DATEOFAPPROVAL: September 2 4 ,  1992 

EFFECTIVE DATE: November 1 9  1992 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
P.O. BOX 170 FT. DEf IANCE, AZ. 86504 

VOLUME V 

TARIFF 

SHEET NO. 563 

REVISION NO. 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Rule 24 
Motor Instal lat ions 

A .  

B.  

C .  

D. 

E. 

F. 

G .  

H. 

1 .  

I nd i v idua l  instal lat ions of t h ree  ( 3 )  horsepower o r  smaller shal l  be  s ingle- 
phase. Except ions w i l l  be  made a t  the  A u t h o r i t y ' s  opt ion o n l y  a t  po in ts  
where three-phase serv ice  is available. 

A l l  motors o f  f ive (5)  horsepower o r  la rger  shal l  b e  three-phase except  
t h a t ,  a t  po in ts  where t h e  A u t h o r i t y  has no  three-phase serv ice,  single- 
phase motors may b e  permi t ted  on the  w r i t t e n  approva l  o f  t h e  A u t h o r i t y .  

Motors o f  one-hal f  (1 /2 )  horsepower o r  less may b e  operated a t  120 vo l ts ,  
unless t h e i r  operat ion ser ious ly  af fects the  qua l i t y  o f  t h e  serv ice ren-  
dered  in wh ich  case t h e y  shal l  b e  operated a t  240 vo l ts .  Motors which 
s t a r t  f requen t l y  and operate in te rmi t ten t ly ,  such as those opera t ing  meat 
g r i nde rs ,  grinding machines, e lec t r i c  organs,  water  pumps, compressors, 
weld ing machines, etc., a re  usua l ly  considered in t h e  la t te r  class. 

Single-phase motors l a rge r  t h a n  one-half (1 /2 )  horsepower shal l  b e  
operated a t  240 vol ts.  A l l  three-phase motors shal l  be  ra ted  to  operate a t  
208 vo l ts  except  in special cases to  be  taken up w i t h  the  A u t h o r i t y .  

A l l  motors seven and  one-half (7 -1 /21  horsepower o r  l a rge r  shal l  be 
equipped w i t h  s t a r t i n g  devices o r  compensators o f  a t y p e  approved by the  
A u t h o r i t y .  Each dev ice must  have e i ther  low vo l tage release o r  low 
vo l tage pro tec t ion  at tachments unless t h e  main sw i t ch  is so protected.  
T h e  insta l la t ion o f  a crossl ine s t a r t i n g  equipment must  be approved in 
advance by t h e  A u t h o r i t y ' s  E lec t r i c  Eng ineer ing  Department.  

Automatic motor-s tar t ing equipment shal l  be  so ar ranged  that ,  in case o f  
i n t e r r u p t i o n  o f  power supp ly ,  t h e  c i r c u i t  w i l l  b e  opened en t i re l y  and  he ld  
open until t he  s t a r t e r  has been r e t u r n e d  to  s t a r t i n g  posi t ion.  

Spl i t -phase motors w i l l  n o t  be  permi t ted  in sizes above one-hal f  ( 1 / 2 )  
horsepower . 
A l l  motors w i t h  a ra ted  capaci ty  o f  25 horsepower o r  la rger  shal l  be  o f  
t h e  s l i p - r i ng  o r  wound-rotor type ,  except  in cases where the  use o f  o ther  
t y p e s  may be  approved in advance in writing by t h e  A u t h o r i t y ' s  E lect r ica l  
Eng ineer ing  Department.  

High-reactance across-line s t a r t i n g  motors o f  t ypes  approved  by t h e  
A u t h o r i t y ' s  E lect r ic  Eng ineer ing  Department may b e  used up to  capacities 
o f  30 horsepower.  

APPROVED BY: DATEOFAPPROVAL: Sep tember  2 4 ,  1 9 9 2  

EFFECTIVE DATE: November 1 9 1 9 9 2  
* 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
P.O. BOX 170 f T. DEf IANCE, AZ. 86504 

TARlFf 

SHEETNO. 564 

VOLUME V REVISION NO. 
I 

R U L E S  A N D  REGULATIONS 

Rule 2 4  (Cont inued)  

J .  

K. 

T h e  installation o f  synchronous  motors will  be permitted only on approval 
of t h e  Authority.  

Add-a-phase o r  Rotophase equipment tha t  simulates three-phase power 
from a single-phase may b e  utilized when approved  in advance  b y  the 
Authori ty 's  E lectr ica I Engineering Department . 
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Pubilc r e h l n g  burden for ttus collection of lniormation IS estlmated to aveme 17 hours per response mcludmg the tune for rewewng mtmctions, s e a r c h  eustlng dam sources. 

dOmaW~n mcludlng sugg@tlons far dwmg this burden, to Department of Agriculture Clearance Dtficer, O m <  AG Box 7630, Washmgto~ DC 20250, and to the O6ce  of Management and 
I Eathew and m-bintng the data neede4 and completmg and r e n e w  the ~ollection of dormation Send cammentc, regardmg t h ~ ~  burden estmate or any other aspect ai ttus collechn ot 

I Budge< Papewark Reducuon %en (OMB #0577,-0032). Washmgton, DC 20503 OMB FORM NO 0577,4032. Expires 06/30/98 

Thrs data mll be used bv RUS to r m e w  vow financral muahon Your response II requrred (7 U S  C POI et seq ) and IS not confidenhaL 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 
AZO27 

USDA-RUS 
_ _  

BORROWER NAME AND ADDRESS 

FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL REPORT NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTH 
P 0 BOX 170 
FORT DEFIANCE, AZ 865044170 

1 

NSTRUCTIONS - Submlt an ongtnal and Wo copes to RUS Round all amounts to 
marest dollar. For detailed 1nstructions.see RUS Bulletin 171 78-2 

PERIOD ENDED RUS USE ONLY 

1999 Annual 
CERTIFICATION 

We hereby ceftrv that the entnes in ths mpod are in accordance w/th the accounts and other records of the system and mnect the status of the system to Me best 
of our knowledge and beljef. 

F 7 CFR CHAPTER XVII, RUS, WAS IN FORCE DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD AND 

7. Extraordinary Items ....................................................... 1 0 0 0 0 

8. Patronage Capital or Margins (20 tbru 27) .__._.._.........__,.. I 2.326.733 I 1,248.075 1 0 1  ( 736.708) 

PART B. DATA ON TRANSMISSION AND DiSTRlBUTlON P U N T  
YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE 

THIS YEAR ITEM LAST YEAR THIS YEAR ITEM LAST YEAR 
(a) (bJ (aJ (bJ 

1. New Services Connected 793 91 8 5. Miles Transmission 513.06 513.3( 

,6 2. Services Retired 17 Overhead 5,637.22 5,866.5 

30,396 31.314 Underground 36.50 37.6' 

6. Miles Distribution - 

7. Miles Distribution - Total Services in Place 

(Exclude Seasonal) (5+6+7) 
55 77 8. Total Miles Energized 6,186.78 6,417.5 

I .  Idle Services 

RUS Form 7(Rev. 6-94) Page 1 of 7 Pages 



This data will be used by RUS to review your financial situation. Yowresponse I S  required (7 U.S.C.QO1 et s q . J  and is not confiddal. 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 
AZO27 USDA-RUS 

PERIOD ENDED RUS USE ONLY 

1999 Annual FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL REPORT 
JSTRUCTIONS - See RUS Bulletin 17178 - 2 

PART C. BALANCE SHEET 

0 

0 

28.635.881 
633.102 

2. Construction Work in Progress ................ 
3. Total Utility Plant f7+2J ....................................... 

.................... 4. Accum. Provision for Depreciation and Amort.. 33. Operating Margins - Current Year 

35. Other Margins and Equities 
5. Net Utility Plant (3-4) .. ........................ 34. Non-Operating Margins ..................................... 614,973 

............................... 53,184,832 
83,068.788 
23,126,941 

0 
0 

9.203.086 
32.330,027 

0 

0 

7. investments in Subsidiary Companies ............... 

0. Invest. In Assoc. Org. - 0th. - Nongen. Funds.. 
1. Investments in Economic Development Projects 

3. Special Funds .......................................... 

5. Cash - General Funds. 

7. Special Deposits ......... ........................... 

39. Long-Term Debt - Other - REA Guarantee 

41. Total Long-Term Debt (37 t t ) ~  40). ..................... 
42. Obligations Under Capital Leases - Noncurrent 

2. Other Investments ............................................. 40. Long-Term Debt - Other (Net) .......................... 

.................... 

45. Notes Payable ................................................... 0 
4,466.750 

61.998 
48. Other Current and Accrued Liabilities ............... 2.556.130 
49. Total Current & Accrued Liabilities (45 thru'a) 7,084.878 

4.39 1.447 
0 

'0. Accounts Receivable - Sales of Energy (Net).. 
:1. Accounts Receivable - Other (Net) .................. 

3. Prepayments ....................................... 
:4. Other Current and Accrued Assets ................. 
'5. Total Current and Accrued Assets 

16. Regulatory Assets ............................................ 

ESTIMATED CONTRIBUTIONS IN AID OF CONSTRUCTION (15 t t ) ~  24) 

53. Balance Beginning of Year.. 

PART D. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

rHlS SPACE IS PROVIDED FOR IMPORTANT DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT CONTAINED IN THIS REPORT. 
REPORT ITEMS CONTAINED IN THE INSTRUCTIONS AND ADDITIONAL MATERIAL ITEMS. 
'A SEPERAE SHEET MAY BE USED IF ADDITIONAL SPACE IS NEEDED.) 
Cash Received From Patronage Capital Refunds: 0 

IO. Lnvesment in Associated Org-other Nongeneral Funds: 
In 1982. the Authority became a member of the National Rural Utilities Cooperative 
Finance Coporation (CFC). 
Membmhip in CFC requires the purchase of CFC Capital Term Certificate as defmed in 
the subscription agreement. 
50. Deferred Credits: 
This amount represents a cumulative figure horn January 1,1986 to&?&rent month and 
is reconciled as follows: 

Beginning Balance01/01/1999: (%8,43 2,3 87) 
Gas Segment - Dr. (Cr.) 
Waler & Wastewater Segment - Dr. (Cr.) 
Photovoltaic Segment - Dr. (Cr.) 
Balance as of 12j3 1/1999 

25,307 
86,554 

138.487 
($8,299,797) 

RUS Form ?(Rev. 6-94) Page 2 of 7 Pages 
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USDA - RUS 

FINANCIAL AND 
STATISTICAL REPORT 

BORROWER DESIGNATION 

AZO27 
RUS USE ONLY 

UCTJONS - Submit an onginai and two copies to RUS. 
tailed iflstrvctions,see RUS Bulletin 17176-2. 

- _ _  - - 

ADJUSTMENTS BALANCE END ' DEPRECIATION BALANCE 

OF YEAR TRANSFERS 1 OFYEAR RATE 
BEGINNING ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS AND ITEM 

YEAR ENDING 
1999 Annual 

!8. Structures and Improvements (352) ......_.__...__._ 637.057 645.857 I 3.00 % 

19. Station Equipment (353) ....................................... 5,902.022 620.940/ 0 01 6,522,962 1 3.00 

30. Towers and Fwures and Poles and I I I I I 
Fixtures (354. 355) ...................... .___.....____....___... . 1.975.022 249 0 6.228.503 I 

33. Underground Conductors and Devices (358) 1 0 0 0 0 01 0 00 yo 
34. SUBTOTAL - Transmission Plant 127 fhru 331 I 11 5 u f i - d  n 1 P QQ? &7/ 

35. Production Plant - Steam (370 thru 316) ._.._....... I o( . ,-- ., . 

36 Production Plant - Nuclear (320 thru 325) I 0 0 O! 7- ~ ( 

47. Production Plant - Hydro (330 thru 336) ............. 
38. Production Plant - Other (340 thru 346) .._..._._..... 

~ ~ 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 
I 

5,956,386 39. All Other Utility Plant (102 104706, 174, 778) 9,915,718 0 0 ( 3,959,332) 

10 SUBTOTAL (15 + 25 + 26 + 34 + 35 fhru 391 151 RSfiZl71 171Q 1 5 0  1&7 7 l A 7 h l  

i t .  Construction Work in Progress .. (707) ...__.__....__ 



USDA - RUS 1 BORROWER DESIGNATION RUS USE ONLY 

AVERAGE HOURS PER CONSUMER BY CAUSE 

POWER SUPPLIER EXTREME STORM PREARRANGED ALL OTHER 
ITEM 

fc) (9 fa) fb) 

0 06 158 
0 08 2.26 

0 48 -. 101 . Present Year 

. Five - Year Average 0 4 4  1.07 

AZO27 
FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL REPORT 
INSTRUCTIONS -See RUS Bulletin 171752 1999 Annual 

YEAR ENDING 

TOTAL 

(e) 
3 13 
3 85 

PART F. ANALYSIS OF ACCUMULATED PROVISIONS FOR DEPRECIATION -TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT 
DISTRIBUTION GENERAL TRANSMISSION OTHER 

PLANT PLANT PLANT PLANT ITEM 

fa) fb) fc) (d) 
........................................... 0 

1. Balance Beginning of Year 38350,350 16.980.738 3.771.072 
2. Additions- Depreciation Accruals Charged to: 

............................................. 0 

0 0 
0 

a. Depreciation Expense 3.742.206 1,328.759 409.263 

b. Cleanng Accounts and Others 598.047 548,071 

c. Subtotal (a + b) 4.340.253 1,876.830 409.263 

................................ 
........................................................ 

3. Less - Plant Retirements: 

ments - Debit or ................... 

ed 2,233,264 . Number of Fu 

. Man-Hours Worked - Regular Time 
I 

192.009 ' 5. 

I 38,487 14.669 6. Payroll Other Man-Hours Worked - Overtime 

I I 
Payroll Capitalized 71 8.265 1 

PART K. DUE FROM CONSUMERS 

FOR ELECTRIC SERVlC 

kwh PUCHASED TOTAL COST 



_ _ _ -  

BORROWER OESIGNATION USDA - RUS 
AZO27 

YEAR ENDING 
FINANCIAL AND STATlSTlCAL REPORT 
NSTRUCTIONS - See RUS Bulletin 171 7 5 2  1999 Annual 

R U S  USE ONLY 

NONE 

.IST BELOW ALL "RESTRICTED PROPERTY" * HELD UNDER "LONG - TERM LEASE. (If  none. state "NONE".) 

NAME OF LESSOR TYPE OF PROPERTY 
la) 04 

NONE 

RENTAL 
THIS YEAR 

(cl 

$ 0 

. TOTAL 

.$ 0 

0 - S 

. Date of Last Annual Meeting 2. Total Number of Members 3. Number of Members Present at Meeting 4. Was Quorum Present? 
Proxy or Mail 

loll411 999 

1. Number of Members Voting by 
I for Board Members I Contract? Proxy or Mail I 

0 0 I l ? ~ l . ~ e s  NO 

6. Totai Number of Board Members 1 7. Total Amount of Fees and Expenses I 8. Does Manager Have Written 

0 I EI Y e s  No 7 537,365 

PART 0. LONG -TERM DEBT AND SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

BILLED THIS YEAR BALANCE 
J 

ITEM END OF YEAR INTEREST PRINCIPAL TOTAL 
(a) (b) IC) (@ 

ural Utilltles Sewce (Exdudes RUS - Economic 
1.665,040 23.126,941 1,062.52 1 6023 19 Development Loans) 

Corporabon 
2 National Rural UtilRies Cooperative Ftnance 

1.000.936 9,135,882 599.049 401,887 

0 0 0 
3 Bank for Cooperatnes 

4 Federal Financing Bank 

5 R U S  - Economic Development Loans 

6 Lease Equipment Purchases 

7 

0 0 0 
-- 

0 0 0 

67,204 2,964 34,177 37,141 

a 

9 

0 

1 

2 

TAL (Sum of 1 thru 12) 32,330,027 1,664,534 1,038,583 2,703,117 

RUS Form 7 (Rev. 6-94) Page 5 of 

RUS USE 
ONLY 

(e) 

1 

2 

0 3  

0 4  

0 5  

6 

7 Pages 



I ‘ I BORROWER DESIGNATION USDA-RUS 

IO. TOTAL NO. Consumers (/ines ?a - Sa) 

f 1. TOTAL kWh Sold (lines Ib - 9b) 

12. TOTAL Revenue Received From Sales of 
Electric Energy (lines IC - sc) 

13. Other Electric Revenue 

14. kWh - Own Use 

15. TOTAL kWh Purchased 

16. TOTAL kWh Generated 

17. Cost of Purchases and Generation 

18. interchange - kWh - Net 

AZO27 

I RUS USE ONLY 
FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL REPORT 

PERIDD ENDED 

30.709 30.704 30,663 , 30.787 30.816 30.899 

M),2S4,880 53,337,215 52.1 26.21 9 49,007.303 45.85 1.223 42408,991 

3,497,654 3.745.65 1 3.01 251 5 3,258.828 3,266,996 2,782253 

84.678 79.641 88.525 88.675 18.677 89.936 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

49,407,834 47,647.025 49,673.425 I 

~ 

55.237.98 I 55.368,435 62,627.386 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
-4  7” ~ 

~ 

I 2 1 87,689 1,917.570 1,665,430 1,869,445 1,556,263 1,835,948 

I 

-.-.---------B. I 0 0 0 0 0 ,  

108.091 19. Peak - Sum All kW Input (Meted) 

0 Coincident Non-Coincident 

100,501 91,453 91,580 
I 



' I BORROWER DESIGNATION USDA-RUS 
AZO27 

FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL REPORT PERIODENDED RUS USE ONLY 

1999 Annual NSTRUCTIONS - See RUS Bulletin 17176-2 

4RT R. POWER REQUIREMENTS DATA BASE (Continued) 
IING PAGE 6 OF R U S  FROM 7 FOR HEADINGS OF LINE ITEM NUMBERS BELOW.) 

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER TOTAL 

I I7 Contains a rhru I1 

I I 
(SEE PREC 1 JULY 1 AUGUST ITEM 

3;RI fgJ j m 
27,683 27.646 

10.418,029 8.98284 

yuJ 

1. 

2. 

__ 

3. 

8.645.130 I 9.785.906 I 9.782.31 1 I 12.166.501 I 131.989.44 

c. I 795.656 1 71 7.942 

a. 76 7t 

305.123 I 153.22L 4 0 2 6  189.232 131.983 4,570 1.1 83.211 

C. 15.673 10.798 

a. 2903 290: 

b. 13.029.701 12,086,474 

C. 961.709 936.W 

4. 12,411.797 1 13.435.668 1 12.233.780 I 13.126.012 1 157.556.03 

a. 5 < 

b. 18.892592 26,879.21C 5. 

_. 

6 .  

C. 1,166.321 I 1.300.867 

a. 3c 

b. 47.272 44,488 

C. 3.833 3.630 

a. 339 3 4  

b. I .228.639 976,939 

C. 4 1 2 9  77,221 

a. 0 0 

b. 0 0 

C. 0 0 

3.594 I 4060 I 4.410 I 4.102 1 38.28: 

7. 

I-- 8. 

9. 

84,559 I 73,292 I 82615 I 9 9 3 3  

0 0 0 0 

0 1  n l  n l  n l  f 

0 1  0 1  01 C 
0 1  0 1  0 1  01 C 

3 1.036 31.001 

43.85 1,356 49.123.183 I 47.456,22 1 54,065.407 597,030,005 47,790,742 5 I ,757.269 

2,856.1 63 I 3,200,868 3.173.242 3,339,112 38,216,024 '*. I 3.035.321 1 3.047.4221 
I 

I I '  
109.41 5 106.706 99,906 99,639 1,133.786 13. I 99,972 1 108.016 

O /  O /  O /  O I  
0 

47,322195 I 52773,133 I 54,666,588 I 64,400,089 I W,752205 15. I 49,860,746 I 51,727,368 

0 0 0 0 0 

1.599.680 1s737508 I 1s04m I 2,125,794 I 1,928,628 1 21.652.472 
I I 
1 

I 1 I I 
I 

O I  O I  
0 0 0 

)18. 
I 90,296 96,238 111,171 1 1  1,701 1 19,471 1 19,471 

R U S  Form 7 (Rev, 6-94) Page 7 of 7 Pages 
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Exhibit 6 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF AN APPLICATION FOR SALE OF ASSETS 
AND/OR TRANSFER OF THE CERTIFICATE OF CONVENIENCE 

AND NECESSITY BY CONTINENTAL DIVIDE ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVE 

Continental Divide Electric Cooperative (CDEC) has filed with the Arizona 
Corporation Commission (“Commission”) an application for authority to sell its 
assets andor transfer its Certificate of Convenience and Necessity to provide 
electric service to the Navajo Tribal Utility Authority. If the application is granted, 
Navajo Tribal Utility Authority would be the exclusive provider of electric service in 
your area. 

The Commission will hold a hearing on this matter. As a property owner or 
customer you may have the right to intervene in the proceeding. If you do not want 
to intervene, you may appear at the hearing and make a statement on your own 
behalf. You may contact the Commission at the address and telephone number 
listed below for the date and time of the hearing and for more information on 
intervention. You may not receive any further notice on the proceeding unless 
requested by you. 

If you have any questions or concerns about this application, have any objections to 
its approval, or wish to make a statement in support of it, you may contact the 
Consumer Services Section of the Commission at 1200 West Washington Street, 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 or call 1-800-222-7000/400 West Congress, North Building, 
Room 218, Tucson, Arizona 85701 or call 1-800-535-0148. 
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Exhibit 7 

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, Continental Divide Electric Cooperative, Inc.'s (hereinafter called 

"CDECI') original and subsequent franchises to serve electrical energy on the Navajo 

Nation having expired or expiring; 

I 

AND WHEREAS, Navajo Tribal Utility Authority (hereinafter called IINTUA') has 

agreed to purchase CDEC's electric facilities on and adjacent to the Navajo Nation at a 

reasonable price. NTUA also agrees to purchase power from CDEC for 3 years. 

NOW THEREFORE, on motion made by Grant Clawson seconded by Lyle Adair, 

it was resolved that CDEC, through its President, execute the Definitive Agreement of 

Purchase and Sale selling to NTUA those portions of CDEC's electric distribution 

facilities located on the Navajo Nation in Arizona and New Mexico and certain facilities 

adjacent and outside of the Navajo Nation in New Mexico and Arizona described in said 

Agreement for $2.3 million and that the Purchase Power Agreement be executed by the 

Cooperative President whereby CDEC sells power to NTUA for cost plus 2 mils per 

KWH for three years. The motion carried. The Resolution was unanimously adopted. 

State of New Mexico ) 

County of Bernalillo ) 
) ss. 

The undersigned, Arsenio Salazar, Secretarynreasurer of Continental Divide 

Electric Cooperative, Inc. certifies that at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of 

Continental Divide Electric Cooperative, Inc. held April 13, 2000 at which a quorum was 

present the foregoing Resolution was considered and adopted by the Board of Trustees 

of Continental Divide Electric Cooperative, Inc. by a vote of 8 in favor, 0 opposed and 0 

abstaining. Attached to this Certificate are true copies of the Definitive Agreement of 

Purchase and Sale with attached exhibits and a true copy of the Purchase Power 



Agreement which were approved by the above Resolution of the Board of Trustees of 

Continental Divide Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

(Seal) 
Continental Divide Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

2 

.-.-...l~l..ll""l, . .  . . . . . .-. . . . . 



Exhibit 7 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

OF THE NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 

NTUA-05-00 

Approving the Def in i t ive  Agreement for Purchase and 
Sale and Purchase Power Agreement between the 

U t i l i t y  Authority and Continental Divide Electric 
Cooperative, Inc.  

WHEREAS : 

1. Pursuant to 21 NNC 5 7 (A) (1) , the Management Board of the 
Navajo Tribal Utility Authority (hereinafter “Authority”) 
is delegated the authority and responsibility for the 
management and operation of the Authority; and 

2. Continental Divide Electric Cooperative, Inc. (CDEC) has 
been operating as an electric utility business on certain 
portions of the Navajo Indian Reservation since at least 
May 7, 1964. By terms of a 1964 Franchise, the Navajo 
Nation granted CDEC rights-of-way for a term of 25 years 
and upon expiration of the Franchise, the Navajo Nation 
had the option to purchase CDEC‘s lines and facilities on 
the Reservation at such price and terms as shall be 
negotiated; and 

3.CDEC and the Navajo Nation entered into a further 
Franchise Agreement dated September 24, 1992, providing 
for CDEC to continue on an interim basis to provide 
electric service on the Reservation and install 
additional facilities and provide electric service on 
certain additional lands (“New Lands”) which were added 
to the Reservation under the Navajo-Hopi Settlement Act, 
25 USC § 640d, et seq.; and 

4.The Navajo Nation notified CDEC on December 28, 1994, 
that it was exercising its option pursuant to the 1964 
and 1992 agreements to purchase CDEC’s electric system 
located on the Reservation and on the New Lands, and that 
NTUA would act as its agent to negotiate and purchase 
these facilities; and 



5.  

6 .  

7 .  

Subject to the obtaining of corporate, regulatory, and 
lender approvals, CDEC desires to sell to the Authority 
all of its facilities located in Arizona and certain 
other facilities located in and around Standing Rock, New 
Mexico, as more fully described in Exhibit C attached to 
the Definitive Agreement for Purchase and Sale (Exhibit 
A); and 

CDEC is also willing to sell power and energy to the 
Authority for the Arizona facilities, as more fully 
described in the attached Purchase Power Agreement 
(Exhibit B); and 

It is in the best interest of the Authority that the 
Management Board approve the Definitive Agreement for 
Purchase and Sale and Purchase Power Agreement with CDEC. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The Management Board of the Navajo Tribal Utility 
Authority hereby approves the Definitive Agreement for 
Purchase and Sale and a Purchase Power Agreement, 
between the Authority and Continental Divide Electric 
Cooperative, Inc., copies of which are attached hereto 
as Exhibits A and B. 

2. The Management Board authorizes the two agreements and 
directs the General Manager to take further actions as 
are appropriate to obtain lender and regulatory 
approvals and to close the purchase and sale, and 
purchase power agreements. 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N  

This is to certify that a duly called meeting at 
Dilcon, Arizona, held on the 27th day of April, 2000, at 
which a quorum was present, the foregoing Resolution was 
considered and adopted by the Management Board of the 
Navajo Tribal Utility Authority by a vote of 6 in favor and 
0 opposed, and 0 abstaining. 

Assistant Secretary 
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6565 Americas Parkway NE-#700 
Post Office Box 3939 
Albuquerque, NM 87190 

Telephone 505 884 3939 
Fax 505 884 8348 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Management Board 
Navajo Tribal Utility Authority: 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Navajo Tribal Utility Authority (the Authority) 
as of December 3 1, 1999 and 1998, and the related statements of earnings and retained earnings, and cash 
flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Authority as of December 3 1 , 1999 and 1998, and the results of its operations and 
its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. The supplementary information included in Schedule 1 is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary information 
included in Schedule 1 has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic 
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards we have also issued our report, dated March 24,2000 
on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

As discussed in note 9 to the financial statements, the Authority changed its method of accounting for its 
pension plan in 1998. 

March 24,2000 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
(A NAVAJO NATION ENTERPRISE) 

Balance Sheets 

December 31,1999 and 1998 

Assets 
Utility plant, at original cost (notes 4 and 5) :  

Plant in service: 
Electric 
Gas 
Water 
Wastewater 
Photovoltaic 
Common 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Construction work in progress 

Net utility plant 

Other property and investments, at cost: 
Nonutility property, net of accumulated depreciation 

of $973,474 in 1999 and $924,62 1 in 1998 
Investments in associated organizations (note 2) 

Total other property and investments 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments - unrestricted 
Investments - restricted special funds 
Receivables: 

Utility service (note 5 )  
Unbilled revenues (note 5) 
Other 

Less allowance for doubtful receivables 

Net receivables 
Materials and supplies, at average cost 
Prepaid expenses 
Deferred gas costs 

Total current assets 
Long-term receivables excluding current installments (note 3) 
Deferred charges 

Equity and Liabilities 
Equity: 

Investment by Navajo Nation 
Retained earnings 

Contributed capital, net (note 4) 

Total equity 
Liabilities: 

Long-term debt, excluding current installments (note 5) 

Current liabilities: 
Current installments of long-term debt (note 5) 
Accounts payable 
Customer deposits 
Accrued expenses 
Deferred purchased power revenues 
Deferred gas revenues 
Deferred credits 

Total current liabilities 

Customer advances for construction 
Commitments and contingencies (notes 9 and 10) 

Total liabilities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

1999 1998 

$ 145,602,347 
14,939,295 
20,121 ,I 96 

6,738,569 
505,132 

35,000,575 

222,907,114 
92,570,834 

130,336,280 
8,300,928 

138,637,208 

137,490,102 
14,512,307 
18,648,771 
6,154,739 

5 19,027 
33,147,012 

21 0,471,958 
84,419,460 

126,052,498 
7,254,943 

133,307,441 

755,003 777,992 
2,381,406 2,378,757 

3,136,409 3,156,749 

1,315,111 424,563 
4,033,601 4,713,082 

2,772,407 2,826,376 

6,086,465 5,764,2 17 
1,962,300 2,290,500 
1,3 18,243 1,130,253 

9,044,760 9,507,218 
870,017 857,347 

8,174,743 8,649,871 
2,996,2 15 2,278,910 

64 1,937 558,090 
291,443 - 

20,279,426 19,396,923 
558,817 24 1,766 

$ 168,349,357 161,098,456 

5,137,497 4,995,577 

$ 17,603,364 17,603,364 
56,795,438 53,966,806 

74,398,802 71,570,170 
45,441,555 42,809,434 

1 19,840,357 114,379,604 

32,001,684 32,901,694 

1,175,291 
5,649,321 

144,660 
1,365,077 
3,911,905 

2,339,353 

14,585,607 

1,921,709 

- 

1,073,921 
5,343,492 

141,042 
1,547,608 
1,912,117 

28 1,300 
1,888,007 

12,187,487 

1,629,671 

48,509,000 

$ 168,349,357 

46,718,852 

161,098,456 

2 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
(A NAVAJO NATION ENTERPRISE) 

Statements of Earnings and Retained Earnings 

Years ended December 31,1999 and 1998 

Operating revenues (notes 5 and 7): 
Electric 
Gas 
Water 
Wastewater 
Photovoltaic 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Electricity, gas and water purchased for resale 
Operation and maintenance 
Customer accounts and sales 
Administrative and general 
Provision for depreciation (note 8): 

Plant acquired with contributed capital 
Other 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Other income (deductions): 
Allowance for hnds used during construction 
Interest earned 
Decrease in fair market value of investments 
Jobbing, net 
Other 

Net other income 

Earnings before interest charges 

Interest charges: 
Long-term debt 
Other 

Total interest charges 

Net earnings before cumulative effect adjustment 

Net earnings 

Disposition of net earnings: 

Cumulative effect adjustment for new accounting standard (note 9) 

Net earnings 
Credit arising from transfer of depreciation to contributed capital 

Earnings transferred to retained earnings 
Retained earnings at beginning of year 

Retained earnings at end of year 

Pro forma net earnings assuming the new accounting 
standard is applied retroactively 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

3 

1999 

$ 37,350,022 
7,285,601 

10,030,796 
2,749,324 

24,865 

57,440,608 

24,123,672 
10,529,23 1 
4,244,214 
8,832,865 

1,830,905 
5.885.398 

1998 

38,595,082 
9,980,5 13 
9,85 1,336 
2,730,040 

24,000 

61,180,971 

26,773,038 
10,857,154 
3,739,935 
9,285,384 

1,699,776 
5.607.304 

55,446,285 

1,994,323 

84,738 
654,570 

(253,653) 
159,196 
58,834 

703.685 

2.698.008 

57,962,591 

3,2 18,380 

606,522 
708,098 

(63,530) 
(128,534) 

1,122,556 

4.340.936 

- 

1,697,434 
2,847 

1,700,28 1 

997,727 

$ 997.727 

- 

1,764,234 
3,833 

1,768,067 

2,572,869 
645,790 

3.218.659 

$ 997,727 
1.830.905 

3,218,659 
1.699.776 

2,828,632 
53.966.806 

4,918,435 
49.048.371 

$ 56,795,438 53,966,806 

$ 2,572,869 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
(A NAVAJO NATION ENTERPRISE) 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Years ended December 3 1, 1999 and 1998 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net earnings 
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash 

flows from operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Write-off of deferred charges 
Allowance for funds used during construction 
Net decrease in fair market value of investments 
Change in certain assets and liabilities: 

Receivables 
Materials and supplies 
Prepaid expenses 
Deferred gas and purchased power costshevenues 
Accounts payable 
Customer deposits 
Accrued expenses 
Deferred credits 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Additions to utility plant 
Additions to nonutility property 
Investments in associated organization 
Increase in deferred charges 
Purchases of investments 
Proceeds from investment maturities 
Customer advances for construction 

Net cash used by investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Capital contributions for utility facilities that are to be 

recovered through rates charged to customers 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Supplemental cash flow disclosures: 
Interest paid 
Noncash capital contributions for utility facilities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

4 

1999 

$ 997,727 

9,2 12,785 
228,966 
(84,738) 
253,653 

47 5,128 
(717,305) 
(83,847) 

1,427,045 
305,829 

3,618 
(182,53 1) 

1998 

3,218,659 

8,694,616 
333,174 

(606,522) 
- 

(258,29 1) 
148,2 19 

(480,140) 
1,586,134 
1,074,372 

(14,433) 
(327,024) 

45 1,346 54 1,933 

12,287,676 13,9 10,697 

(1 3,241,366) (12,065,642) 
(26,116) (28,482) 

(2,232,415) (2,279,058) 
(679,355) (7,077,168) 
1,05 1,2 14 6,606,000 

69,173 114,205 

(2,649) (3,093) 

(15,061,5 14) (1 4,733,23 8) 

244,507 
(1,043,147) 

4.463.026 

3,664,386 

890,548 
424.563 

$ 1.3 15.1 11 

113,252 
(1,159,969) 

2,139,323 

1,092,606 

270,065 
154,498 

424.563 

1,700,487 
$ 835,635 

1,768,156 
657,884 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
(A NAVAJO NATION ENTERPRISE) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 1999 and 1998 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Accounting Entity 

The status of the Navajo Tribal Utility Authority (the “Authority”) as an enterprise of the 
Navajo Nation was initiated pursuant to Resolution CD-61-61 of the Navajo Tribal Council, 
dated December 5, 1961, and was confirmed by Council Resolution CAP-46-65, dated 
April 22, 1965. The Authority, located in Fort Defiance, Arizona, provides electric, gas, water 
and wastewater, and photovoltaic services within the Navajo tribal reservation. As a tribal 
enterprise, the Authority considers itself exempt from federal and state income taxes. 

The Authority has 5 major customers that aggregate to approximately 33 percent of net 
receivables, 41 percent of electric operating revenues, 33 percent of gas operating revenues 
and 3 1 percent of total operating revenues as of and for the year ended December 3 1, 1999. 

(b) Regulation and Method of Accounting 

The Authority is not regulated by any federal or state utility commissions. The Authority’s 
rates for utility services are regulated by its management board. The accounting records of the 
Authority are maintained substantially in accordance with the uniform systems of accounts of 
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, Rural Utilities Service (“RU S”) and National 
Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners, as applicable to the various services. 

As a result of the rate-making process governed by the management board, the application of 
generally accepted accounting principles by the Authority differs in certain respects from the 
application by nonregulated businesses. Such differences generally regard the time at which 
certain items enter into the determination of net earnings in order to follow the principle of 
matching costs and revenues. 

(c) Accounting Standards 

As an enterprise of the Navajo Nation, the Authority follows proprietary fund accounting as 
set forth in Statement No. 20 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities 
That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. The Authority has elected not to apply the accounting 
standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board subsequent to the issuance of 
GASB Statement No. 20. 

5 (Continued) 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
(A NAVAJO NATION ENTERPRISE) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 3 3,1999 and 1998 

(4 Utility Plant 

All of the Authority’s operations are conducted from utility plants located on tribal land. 
Utility plant, which is to be recovered through rates charged to customers, is stated at original 
cost, which includes applicable payroll taxes, pension costs, other fringe benefits, 
administrative and general costs and an allowance for funds used during construction. Such 
allowance is computed using the actual rate of borrowed funds where projects are financed by 
a specific borrowing and 5.1 percent and 8.5 percent for other projects in 1999 and 1998, 
respectively. The rates used were 5.1 percent and 8.5 percent for all plant in 1999 and 1998, 
respectively. No allowance is computed on construction projects funded in advance with 
contributed capital. 

Rates charged to water and wastewater customers are not intended to recover depreciation on 
water and wastewater facilities acquired with contributed capital. This policy was adopted for 
the reasons that: (1) significant amounts of the capital invested in water and wastewater 
facilities have been contributed to allow the Authority to construct facilities for which the 
customer base is not adequate to allow such costs to be recovered through user charges; (2) the 
Authority anticipates that replacement capital requirements will also come from contributions; 
and (3) it is the policy of the Authority to provide water service and wastewater treatment at 
the lowest possible cost in an effort to improve the environmental health of the Navajo people. 
In accordance with the Authority’s application of Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 71 of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, Accounting for the Efsects of 
Certain Types of Regulation, these facilities, which had an original cost of $29,641,170 at 
December 31, 1999 and $28,805,535 at December 31, 1998, are not considered to be assets of 
the Authority. In addition, the statements of earnings include revenues and expenses 
applicable to the Authority’s operation and maintenance of certain water and wastewater 
facilities owned by the Navajo Nation and the Indian Health Service, the original cost of 
which is estimated to be approximately $229,492,892 at December 3 1, 1999 and $214,043,868 
at December 3 1, 1998. No costs are recorded in the accompanying financial statements for any 
of the aforementioned facilities or land and, accordingly, no provision for depreciation is 
recorded. 

The cost of electric, gas and photovoltaic assets acquired with contributed capital is included 
in utility plant in service since depreciation on such facilities is recovered through rates 
charged to customers. Contributions received from customers to meet their special 
construction requirements are credited to utility plant. 

The Authority expenses the cost of repairs and minor replacements and capitalizes the cost of 
betterments. Gains or losses resulting from plant retired, or otherwise disposed of in the 
normal course of business, are credited or charged to accumulated depreciation. 

6 (Continued) 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHOFUTY 
(A NAVAJO NATION ENTERPRISE) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,1999 and 1998 

(e) Depreciation 

Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method at the following annual rates: 

Vehicles 20% 
Plant in service - common 3% to 10% 
All other plant in service 3% to 5% 
Nonutility property 3% 

Depreciation charged to operations which is applicable to electric, gas, photovoltaic and 
common plant in service financed by contributed capital is transferred as a charge against such 
contributed capital rather than retained earnings. 

03 Revenues and Cost of Etectricity and Gas Purchased for Resale 

The Authority accrues estimated unbilled revenues from the last cycle billing dates to the end 
of the fiscal period. 

The Authority has adjustment clauses that pass on to customers actual costs of purchased 
power and gas. Any differences between actual costs of purchased power and gas and those in 
base rates are reflected as deferred gas costs and deferred purchased power revenues in the 
balance sheet. Such differences are deferred until the applicable revenue is billed or refunded 
and recorded. Electricity and gas purchased for resale are stated at actual cost incurred. 

(g) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

(h) Restricted Special Funds 

The Authority is required under certain of its debt covenants to restrict various amounts for 
payment of debt and contingencies. Restricted investments consist of U.S. government 
obligations and are recorded at fair value. 

7 (Continued) 
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NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
(A NAVAJO NATION ENTERPRISE) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 3 1, 1999 and 1998 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Authority considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. 

The Authority’s investments are made up primarily of certificates of deposit, government 
agency securities and corporate bonds. All investments, with the exception of investments in 
associated organizations, are recorded at fair value and any changes in fair value are reported 
as revenue or expense in the Statement of Earnings and Retained Earnings. Fair value is 
determined by quoted market values as of December 3 1, 1999. Investments in associated 
organizations are recorded at amortized cost plus allocated patronage capital, because the 
investments do not have readily determinable fair values. 

All investments are held in the name of the Authority or are fully insured and are therefore, 
considered Category 1 investments in accordance with Statement No. 3 of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. 

Pension Accounting 

The Authority accounts for its pension plan in accordance with Statement No. 27 of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local 
Government Employers (GASB 27). This Statement established standards for the 
measurement, recognition and display of pension expense and related liabilities assets, and 
note disclosures. 

Reclassification of Prior Year Amounts 

Certain 1998 amounts have been reclassified to conform with the 1999 presentation. 

(2) Investments in Associated Organizations 

The Authority is a member of the National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation 
(“CFC”). Membership in CFC requires the purchase of CFC Capital Term Certificates as defined in 
the subscription agreement. The Authority’s investment in CFC amounted to $2,086,846 and 
$2,084,197 at December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The Authority is not committed to 
purchase any additional certificates. 

The Authority has an investment of $294,560 in 1999 and 1998 in Cooperative Services, Inc. 
(“CSI”). CSI provides computer and data processing services to the Authority. 

8 (Continued) 



I' 
I 
1 

NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
(A NAVAJO NATION ENTERPRISE) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 3 1,1999 and 1998 

(3) Long-term Receivables 

The Authority has long-term receivables comprised of the following: 

Long-term Other Total 
leases Pinon note long-term long-term 

receivable receivable receivables receivables 

Total long-term receivable $ 369,535 2 17,699 25,000 612,234 
Less - current installments 17,729 23,688 12,000 53,417 

Long-term receivables, 
excluding current 
installments $ 351,806 194,O 1 1 13,000 558,817 

The current installments of the above long-term receivables are included in other receivables in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

Pinon Note Receivable. During 1998, the Authority borrowed funds from the Economic 
Development Administration to construct wastewater facilities for the benefit of the Pinon Unified 
School District (the District) in Pinon, Arizona. As part of this construction, the District signed a 
note payable to the Authority in the amount of $262,000 to fund the construction. The District is 
required to pay $2,750 on a monthly basis. The note is subject to an interest rate of 4.5% and 
matures in 2007. The principal balances outstanding on the note as of December 3 1, 1999 and 1998 
were $21 7,699 and $240,347, respectively. 

Long-term Leases Receivable. During 1999, the Authority entered into a series of standardized 15- 
year direct financing leases to finance the purchase, installation and maintenance of photovoltaic 
systems for residential customers. These financing arrangements are subject to an interest rate of 
7.5% and expire at various dates through December 2014. The components of the finance 
receivables, net, are as follows: 

Gross receivables 
Unearned income 

Lease receivables 
Less - current portion 

Long-term lease receivables 

9 

$ 595,125 
(225,590) 

369,535 
17,729 

$ -  351,806 

(Continued) 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
(A NAVAJO NATION ENTERPRISE) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31,1999 and 1998 

At December 31, 1999, future payments to be received under direct financing leases were as 
follows: 

Year ending 
December 31: Amount 

2000 $ 40,500 
200 1 40,500 
2002 40,500 
2003 40,500 

Thereafter 433,125 
$ _  595,125 

(4) Contributed Capital 

Since inception, contributed capital, excluding that for water and wastewater (note l(d)), in the form 
of property and grants for the construction of property consists of: 

December 31, 
Grantor 1999 1998 

Bureau of Indian Affairs $ 5,699,432 5,637,229 
Indian Health Service 1,63 8,836 1,599,22 1 
Other, primarily governmental grants received 

through the Navajo Nation and grants 
received from other tribal-related entities 55,315,176 50,953,968 

$ 62,653,444 58,190,4 18 - 

Plant in service constructed by the use of contributed capital and related accumulated depreciation 
are summarized as follows: 

December 31,1999 December 31,1998 
Contributed Accumulated Contributed Accumulated 

amount depreciation Net amount depreciation Net 

Electric $ 58,049,653 15,709,706 42,339,947 53,755,085 14,032,592 39,722,493 
Gas 4,333,076 1,372,464 2,960,6 12 4,164,618 1,245,038 2,919,580 
Photovoltaic 260,7 15 121,379 139,336 260,7 15 95,3 14 165,401 
Common 10,000 8,340 1,660 10,000 8,040 1,960 

$ 62,653,444 17,211,889 45,441,555 58,190,418 15,380,984 42,809,434 - -  

lo (Continued) 
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NAVAJO TRIBAL, UTILITY AUTHORITY 
(A NAVAJO NATION ENTERPRISE) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 3 1,1999 and 1998 

Short-term Debt 

The Authority has a perpetual line of credit with CFC to borrow up to $6,000,000 at an interest rate 
of bank prime plus 1 percent (7.05 percent at December 3 1, 1999), or lower as may be fixed by CFC. 
At December 3 1, 1999 and 1998, there were no amounts outstanding. 

Transactions with the Navajo Nation and Affiliates 

The Authority provides utility services for the Navajo Nation and various other entities and activities 
of the Navajo Nation. Rates for all such services are in accordance with the Authority's tariffs 
applicable to all customers. Utility revenues from the Navajo Nation and affiliates approximated 
$2,111,179 and $1,832,400 for the years ended December 3 1, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Other 
transactions with the Navajo Nation and affiliates are not significant. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is summarized as follows: 

December 31, 
1999 1998 

Charged to: 
Operating expenses $ 7,716,303 7,307,080 
Transportation clearing 1,836,194 1,633,907 

Other 252 252 

Total depreciation 9,601,350 8,990,632 
388,565 296,O 16 Less depreciation capitalized 

Other income (deductions) - nonutility property 48,601 49,393 

Depreciation charged to operations $ 9,212,785 8,694,6 16 

The provision for depreciation of vehicles is charged to a transportation clearing account, together 
with other vehicle costs, and subsequently distributed to various accounts, including construction 
work in progress, based on vehicle usage. 

12 (Continued) 



NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
(A NAVAJO NATION ENTERPRISE) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 3 1, 1999 and 1998 

(9) Pension Plan 

(a) Plan Description. The Navajo Tribal Utility Authority Employees’ Retirement Plan (the 
Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Authority. The 
Plan provides retirement benefits to retirees of the Authority and their beneficiaries. Cost-of- 
living adjustments are provided to retirees and beneficiaries at the discretion of the 
management board of the Authority. For the January 1, 2000 actuarial valuation, the 
retirement assumption was changed. The new assumption is that 50 percent of employees 
retire when they reach the Rule of 85 or age 62 and 20 years of service with remainder retiring 
at age 65. The prior assumption was that 100 percent of employees would retire when they 
reached the Rule of 85. 

Funding Policy. The Authority’s policy is to fund the Plan in accordance with the actuarially 
determined contribution. 

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset. The Authority’s annual pension cost and net 
pension obligation to the Plan were as follows: 

Annual required contribution (ARC) 
Interest on net pension asset 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 

Annual pension cost 
Contributions made 

Increase in net pension asset 
Net pension asset at beginning of year 

Net pension asset at end of year 

December 31, 
1999 1998 

$ (606,368) 450,415 
(19,858) (14,505) 
65,443 - 44,466 

N/A 480,376 
33,047 551,708 

33,047 71,332 
264,727 193,395 

$ 297,774 - 264,727 

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the January 1, 
2000 actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions 
included a (a) 7.5 percent investment rate of return and (b) projected salary increases of 
5.0percent per year. Both (a) and (b) assumptions included an inflation component of 
3.5 percent. The assumptions did not include future post-retirement benefit increases, 
however, they did include those increases previously approved by the management board. The 
actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term 
volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The amortization periods 
at December 3 1, 1999 were as follows: 

Gains and losses 
Differences between ARC and amounts contributed 
Changes in actuarial assumptions 
Amendment 

5 years 
5 years 

10 years 
30 years 
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NAVAJO TRIBAL UTILITY AUTHORITY 
(A NAVAJO NATION ENTERPRISE) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 3 1 , 1999 and 1998 

Three-year Trend Information 
Annual Percentage of Net 

Year ending Pension Cost APC pension 
December 31: (APC) contributed asset 

1999 - NIA $ 297,774 
1998 480,376 114.8% 264,727 
1997 5,592.3 193,395 

Accounting Change. A pension asset of $193,395 was recorded upon adoption of GASB 27 
on January 1 , 1998. At the time of adoption of GASB 27, the Authority had a pension liability 
of $452,395 resulting in a difference of $645,790 which was reported as a cumulative effect 
of a change in accounting principle in the accompanying financial statements. 

(6) Required Supplementary In formation - Unaudited 

Schedule of Funding Progress 
(Dollar amounts in thousands) 

Actuarial Excess Excess as a 
Actuarial Actuarial accrued (deficiency) percentage 
valuation value of liability of Funded Covered of covered 

date assets (ARL) over AAL ratio payroll payroll 

1-1-98 25,954 26,683 (729) 97.3% 13,029 5.6% 

1-3-00 33,206 28,549 4,657 116.3% 14,016 33.2% 
1-1-99 29,636 25,115 4,521 1 18.0% 13,509 33.5% 

(10) Commitments 

The Authority has agreements providing for the future purchase and wheeling of electricity to 
supply its customers. Per the agreements, the Authority is subject to minimum future charges, and 
these charges are subject to increase based on actual demand. The Authority’s total payments under 
such agreements were approximately $2 1,086,740 and $2 1,270,973 for the years ended 
December 3 1, 1999 and 1998, respectively. These agreements expire at various dates from May 1 , 
2009 through September 30,2024. 

The Authority has an agreement providing for the future purchase of natural gas to supply its 
customers. Under this agreement, the Authority’s natural gas purchases during 1999 and 1998 were 
$3,825,012 and $6,569,114, respectively. This agreement expires October 31, 2000, subject to 
renewal. 
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